
 
 
 

Audit Committee 
 
 
Date Thursday 4 April 2013 

Time 10.00 am 

Venue Committee Room 1A, County Hall, Durham 

 
 

Business 
 

Part A 
 
 

Items during which the Press and Public are welcome to attend. 
Members of the Public can ask questions with the Chairman's 

agreement. 
 
 
1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Minutes of the meeting held on 21 February 2013  (Pages 1 - 8) 

3. Declarations of interest, if any   

4. Exemptions to the P2P Process - Report of Corporate Director, 
Resources  (Pages 9 - 16) 

5. Changes to the Code of Practice for Local Authority Accounting in the 
U.K for 2012/13 - Report of Corporate Director, Resources  (Pages 17 - 
26) 

6. Consideration of "Going Concern Status" for the Statement of Accounts 
for the year ended 31 March 2013 - Report of Corporate Director, 
Resources  (Pages 27 - 42) 

7. Agreement of Accounting Policies for Application in the 2012/13 
Financial Statements - Report of Corporate Director, Resources  
(Pages 43 - 70) 

8. Final Accounts Timetable for the year ended 31 March 2013 - Report of 
Corporate Director, Resources  (Pages 71 - 88) 

9. Action Plan - 2011/12 Audit of Accounts - Update - Report of Corporate 
Director, Resources  (Pages 89 - 102) 

10. Durham County Council - Audit Strategy Memorandum 2012/13 - 
Report of the External Auditor  (Pages 103 - 128) 

11. Durham County Council Pension Fund - Audit Strategy Memorandum 
2012/13 - Report of the External Auditor  (Pages 129 - 152) 

12. Pension Fund Committee - Terms of Reference - Report of Corporate 
Director, Resources  (Pages 153 - 162) 



13. Action Plan for Corporate Governance Improvements - Report of 
Corporate Director, Resources  (Pages 163 - 166) 

14. Financial Management Standards - Report of Corporate Director, 
Resources  (Pages 167 - 174) 

15. Such other business as in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting 
is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration   

16. Any resolution relating to the exclusion of the public during the 
discussion of items containing exempt information   

Part B 
 
Items during which it is considered the meeting will not be open to the 
public (consideration of exempt or confidential information) 
 
 
 
 
17. Such other business as in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting 

is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration   

 
 
 

Colette Longbottom 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
County Hall 
Durham 
25 March 2013 
 
 
To: The Members of the Audit Committee 

 
 Councillor E Bell (Chairman) 

Councillor O Temple (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 Councillors C Carr, B Harrison, M Hodgson, L Marshall, B Myers, 
R Ord and D J Southwell 

 
 Co-opted Members: 
 
 T Hoban and K Larkin-Bramley 
 
 
 
 

Contact: Jackie Graham Tel: 03000269704 

 



 

DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 

At a Meeting of Audit Committee held in Committee Room 2, County Hall, Durham on 
Thursday 21 February 2013 at 10.00 am 

 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor E Bell (Chairman) 

 

Members of the Committee: 

Councillors O Temple (Vice-Chairman), C Carr, B Harrison, M Hodgson, R Ord and 
D J Southwell 
 
Co-opted Members: 

T Hoban and K Larkin-Bramley 
 
Also Present: 

Councillor J Shuttleworth 

 
 

1 Apologies for Absence  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors L Marshall and B Myers. 
 
 

2 Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the Meeting held on 22 November 2012 were confirmed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman, subject to the following amendments: 

• K Larkin-Bramley’s attendance being removed; 

• Councillor M Hodgson being shown as in attendance; 

• Minute No. 3 being amended in paragraph 2 to read ‘unqualified opinion’ 
rather that ‘qualified opinion’. 

 
 

3 Declarations of interest 
 
Declarations of interest were provided by Members of the Committee.  A generic 
declaration of interest would be recorded given that Members were school 
governors, members of various Committees of the Council, former District 
Councillor’s and bodies such as the Probation Board and Fire Authority. 
 
 

4 Risk Management Update - Quarter Ending December 2012  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Corporate Director of Resources which 
highlighted the strategic risks facing the Council and provided an insight into the 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



work carried out by the Corporate Risk Management Group during the period 
October to December 2012 (for copy see file of Minutes). 
 
Resolved: 
That the report be approved. 
 
 

5 Integrated Services - One Point Risk Update 
 
The Committee received an update from the Head of Finance on the One Point 
Risk. 
 
The Head of Finance informed the Committee that the risk related to a £230k 
“double count” in the establishment of the pooled budgets for the One Point 
Service.  The County Durham and Darlington Foundation Trust (CDDFT) included 
four Sure Start Cluster Managers in their management costs baseline figures but 
these posts were fully funded by the County Council and should not have been 
included in the baseline as they were not part of their core budgets.  Children and 
Young Peoples Services took out the payment to the CDDFT for these staff at the 
creation of One Point but the CDDFT didn’t take out the income on their side.  
 
The dispute and consequential risk, was that the CDDFT stated that this was the 
County Council’s mistake in establishing the baseline cost apportionments and that 
the County Council had been made aware of this.  CDDFT had restructured, made 
other efficiencies and had no capacity to absorb the loss of income if the County 
Council did not continue to fund these posts.  However, the County Council’s 
viewpoint was that the apportionments were wrong and needed correcting, which 
would have cost implications for CDDFT to resolve. 
 
CDDFT had now accepted that further efficiencies were required to offset this issue 
and CDDFT were currently working on the details of how these would be achieved. 
 
 

6 Action Plan for Corporate Governance Improvements 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Corporate Director of Resources which 
provided an update on progress in implementing the agreed governance plan, 
which highlighted areas of improvement arising from the annual review of the 
effectiveness of corporate governance arrangements (for copy see file of Minutes). 
 
Mr Hoban referred to Action Plan point number 3 and asked whether the revised 
Financial Management Standards had been signed off.  The Corporate Director of 
Resources agreed to feed this information back to Mr Hoban. 
 
Resolved: 
That the report be approved. 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



7 Action Plan 2011/12 Audit of Accounts Update 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Corporate Director of Resources which 
provided an update on progress on implementation of the Action Plan from the 
agreed recommendations for improving control weaknesses incorporated in the 
External Auditors 2011/12 Interim and Final Governance Reports (for copy see file 
of Minutes). 
 
The Action Plan, which was reported to the Committee in November, was being 
used by management for monitoring purposes and the report formed part of regular 
reporting leading to the approval of the Statement of Accounts for 2012/13.  The 
report was presented in accordance with paragraph 4.1.26 of the Committee’s 
Operational Terms of Reference. 
 
Resolved: 
That the report be approved. 
 
 

8 2011/12 Annual Grant Report 
 
The Committee received the annual report of the External Auditor on the outcomes 
of the Council’s 2011/12 claims and returns (for copy see file of Minutes). 
 
The Audit Manager advised of their work in order to provide assurance to grant 
paying bodies that claims for grant and subsidies are made properly and that 
information on financial returns is reliable.  She provided further information on the 
outstanding claims and of the robust measures in place for 2012/13 for housing and 
council tax benefits and NNDR to strengthen reconciliation and control processes. 
 
Resolved 
That the report be noted. 
 
 
Ms K Larkin-Bramley and Mr T Hoban left the meeting during discussion of the 
following item. 
 
 

9 Co-opted Members to the Audit Committee 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Corporate Director of Resources 
regarding the appointment of co-opted Members to the Committee for 
recommendations to be made to Council (for copy see file of Minutes).  The 
Committee discussed various options for the appointment of co-opted Members 
and their length of tenure. 
 
Resolved: 

(i) That the contracts of the current co-opted Members be extended for a 
period of 3 years from May 2013 

(ii) That, upon the expiry of this extension of contract, applications be sought 
for co-opted Members 

Page 3



(iii) That subsequent contracts for co-opted Members be for a period of 3 
years. 

 
 
Ms K Larkin-Bramley and Mr T Hoban re-joined the meeting. 
 
 

10 Internal Audit Progress Report Quarter Ending December 2012 Update 
 

The Committee considered a report of the Manager of Internal Audit and Risk which 
informed members of the work carried out by Internal Audit during the period 
October to December 2011 ( for copy see file of Minutes). 
 
The Committee referred to the overdue audit reports and requested that more detail 
of what these reports related to be included in future reports to Committee. 
 
The Committee referred to the Limited Assurance Opinion regarding Direct 
Payments as shown on page 78 and requested that the full Audit Report be brought 
to a future meeting of the Committee on Direct Payments.  The Committee also 
sought assurances around the controls in place to ensure that an  appropriate level 
of care was provided to those who needed it most. The appropriate service 
manager was also requested to attend to provide an update on the implementation 
of agreed audit recommendations and to provide wider assurance on the wider 
risks associated with Personalisation. 
 
Resolved: 

(i) That the progress made on delivering the internal audit plan for 2011/12 
to gain assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s 
internal control environment be noted. 

(ii) That greater detail of overdue audit reports be provided to future 
meetings 

(iii) That the full Audit Report on Direct Payments be brought to a future 
meeting of the Committee with the appropriate service manager in 
attendance. 

 
 

11 Sale of Windlestone Hall 
 
The Committee considered a joint report of the External Auditor and the Manager of 
Internal Audit and Risk Management regarding a review of the sale of Windlestone 
Hall (for copy see file of Minutes).  The report had been prepared following a 
compliant made by Councillor Shuttleworth to the external auditor and concerns 
raised by Councillor Ord at the November 2012 Audit Committee. 
 
In response to the concerns raised a joint review of the sale was carried out by 
External and Internal Audit to help minimise the cost of additional external audit 
fees, and this investigation was now complete.  The findings and conclusions from 
the review were set out in Appendices 2 and 3 of the report. 
 

Page 4



The Head of Planning and Assets informed the Committee of the procedures and 
processes carried out for the sale of Windlestone Hall and responded to questions 
from the Committee. 
 
The Committee requested that an update be brought back in three months time on 
actions taken and planned to improve systems and processes for disposals and 
that a process map illustrating a disposal be provided.  The Committee also 
requested that Internal Audit review the effectiveness of controls in approximately 6 
months time, as part of next year’s audit plan, and report the outcomes to a future 
meeting of the Committee. 
 
Resolved: 

(i) That the Committee was assured the allegation had been appropriately 
investigated 

(ii) That the Committee was assured officers were taking appropriate action 
to improve the management of risks associated with land and building 
disposals in response to control weaknesses identified through the 
review. 

(iii) That an update be provided in three months time on actions taken and 
planned to improve systems and processes for disposals and that a 
process map illustrating a disposal be provided. 

(iv) That Internal Audit review the effectiveness of controls as part of next 
year’s audit plan. 

 
 

12 Exclusion of the Public 
 
That under Section 100 (A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of 
Schedule 12A to the said Act. 
 

13 Internal Audit Progress Report Quarter Ending December 2012 Update 
 
The Committee considered Appendices 7 and 8 of the report of the Manager of 
Internal Audit and Risk which informed Members of actions agreed by managers in 
response to internal audit recommendations that were overdue at the end of 
December 2012. (for copy see file of Minutes). 
 
Resolved: 
That the report together with the recommendations included therein be approved. 
 

14 Overdue Audit Recommendations 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Manager of Internal Audit and Risk which 
provided details of Overdue Audit Recommendations (for copy see file of Minutes). 
 
The Manager of Audit and Internal Risk informed the Committee that, following 
discussions with the Chair and the Vice Chair, officers from Customer Relations 
and the Travellers Liaison Service were in attendance.  The Officers provided the 

Page 5



Committee with explanations as to why agreed recommendations had not been 
implemented as planned. 
 
Resolved: 
That the report be noted. 

Page 6



 1

Action Plan - Work of Audit Committee - Part A – 4 April 2013 
 

Ref 
No. 

Date of 
Meeting 

Item 
No. 

Title of Report Action Required By Whom Report to 
Committee 
(date)/ 
implemented 

2 16.2.12 
21.2.13 

6 
6 

F M Standards Once Section 151 
Officer had 
completed the 
process, further 
details be brought 
back to Committee 

Corporate 
Director, 
Resources 

4/4/13 
 
Agenda Item 
14 
 

6 27.9.12 
22.11.12 
21 2.13 

5 
7 

Annual 
Governance Report 
(and Interim 
Governance 
Report)  

Update on progress 
of new monitoring 
system to be brought 
back to Committee 

Ian Herberson, 
Asst Finance 
Manager 

 
4/4/13 
 
Agenda Item 9 

 22.11.12 14 Fraud  & 
Irregularity   

Further assurance on 
work carried out with 
partners 

Manager of 
Internal Audit & 
Risk 

31/5/13 

9. 21.2.13 11 Windlestone Hall Update to Committee 
on actions taken to 
improve systems and 
processes relating to 
disposals. 
 
Process map of 
example to illustrate 
the process 
 
Internal Audit to 
review effectiveness 
of controls as part of 
next years audit plan 
 

Head of 
Planning and 
Assets 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Manager of 
Internal Audit 
and Risk 

27/6/13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approx 6 
months time 

10 21.2.13 10  
Direct Payments 

 
Directs payment audit 
with limited 
assurance - Full Audit 
report to be brought 
back and service 
managers to attend 
meeting to provide 
further information 

 
Manager of 
Internal Audit 
and Risk/ 
Personalisation 
Development 
Manager 

 
 
27.6.13 

 

 

 

 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

Audit Committee 
 

04 April 2013 
 

Exemptions to the P2P Process 

 

 

 
 

Don McLure,  Corporate Director Resources 

 

Purpose of the Report 

1 To present an overview of the approved exemptions to the standard Procure 
to Pay (P2P) Process. 

 

Background 

2 The standard process for paying suppliers is to match invoices received to 
approved Purchase Orders (PO’S) raised. This ensures that commitments are 
held against budgets when the order is raised and, providing goods are 
received / receipted as received, speeds up invoice payments. 

 
3 There are however, agreed exemptions to this process for commodity areas 

which it is deemed impractical to follow the standard process (e.g. utility and 
telephone bills where the cost/usage is not known until after the billing period). 

 
4 Guidance was issued in 2010 on the procedures to be followed when 

processing invoices without a requisition and Purchase Order having been 
raised on Oracle in advance (See Appendix 2 attached) 

 
 Current Position 
 
5 Appendix 1 provides a breakdown of the agreed categories of spend which 

have been approved as exemptions to the standard P2P process. 
 
6 Based on February 2013 figures approximately 14% (volume) of all invoices 

paid were classed as an exemption. This equated to approximately 23% 
(value) of invoices paid.  

 
7 Based on the value of exemptions invoices paid 69% were either Payroll and 

Pension Payments (40%), Utility Payments (19%) or Transport and 
Concessionary Fares (10%) 

 
8 Accounts Payable (AP) currently pay approximately 29,000 invoices per 

month, of which 17,000 are electronically interfaced with the remaining 12,000 
either Standard Invoices (PO’s) or Exemption Invoices (Manually Authorised) 

 
9 In November 2012 a reminder was sent to all Oracle Users (via email) 

reminding all staff involved in the Procure to Pay (P2P) Process of their 
responsibility to ensure PO’s are provided to suppliers prior to ordering any 
good/works/services, excluding the agreed exemptions.  

Agenda Item 4

Page 9



 

  
 
10 Work continues between AP Staff, Financial Systems Staff, Oracle Service 

User Reps and Budget Managers to ensure the agreed P2P Processes, 
Policies and Procedures are adhered to within each service. 

 
11 Members can are assured that any additions to the exemptions list require a 

Business Case to be approved by the P2P Board and that any requests are 
subject to substantial challenge. 

 
12 February performance statistics show that 81% of exemption invoices were 

paid within 30 days, from date of invoice. Overall performance for the Council 
was 91%.    

 
13 Current checks carried out by AP staff prior to payment include checking 

coding grids are completed correctly in terms of monetary value and 
appropriately certified and verified. 

 
14 Coding Grids and Payment Vouchers have recently been amended to include 

the Printed Name and Contact Details of the certifier and validator. 
 
15 AP Supervisors are now carrying out a random check of a sample of manually 

coded invoices. Randomly selected invoices on a daily basis are checked for 
input error and authorisation anomalies. 

 
Future Actions 
 
16 AP Staff, Financial Systems Staff, Oracle Service User Reps and Budget 

Managers, will continue to work with Oracle Users to reduce the volume of 
standard invoices that are received with no PO’s quoted. These are invoices 
where a PO ought to have been used. 

 
17 Alternative methods of payment, including Procurement Card and iExpenses, 

are being considered to reduce the number of manual exemption invoices 
which are being received. 

 
18 There are currently 2 lists (hardcopy of approved signatories and electronic 

oracle approval list) of staff who have authorisation to approve expenditure. 
Centrally maintaining up to date lists of approved signatories (including 
sample signatures) can be problematic, so the P2P Board are currently 
discussing whether the electronic lists within Oracle should be the master 
schedule, with directorates responsible for maintaining signatures within their 
service. (As per Financial Management Standard 24, Paragraph 38). 

 
19 The P2P Board are reviewing and challenging the current exemptions list to 

determine whether the categories of spend are still valid exemptions. 
  
Conclusion 
 
20 The Council has an agreed business process for ensuring non-electronic 

invoices are paid via the standard process of being matched to an approved 
PO where possible, however there are instances where this is not practical 
and an alternative process for approving exemption invoices is required. Work 
is ongoing to challenge and review payments falling within the exemption 

Page 10



 

category and to ensure compliance with the standard P2P processes 
continues to increase. 

 
21  Members are advised that a P2P Audit Review is currently in progress and 

this will include a review of Non Purchase Order Payments, recommendations 
arising will be address accordingly.  

 
Recommendations 

22 Members are asked to note the Council process for payment of invoices from 
commodity areas covered via the list of agreed exemptions. 

 

Contact:  Paul Darby    Tel: 03000 261930 

 

Page 11



 

 

APPENDIX 1 –  
Exceptions to the ‘No PO, No Pay’ Policy – Revised February 2012 

 

Exception Area Reason 

Building Project Payments (contractor 
certificates & payment requests) 

Project Reclaims 

Civil Engineering Project Payments (contractor 
certificates & payment Requests) 

Project Reclaims 

Clergy Fees Payment Vouchers 

CRB Checks Unknown Usage and 
Consolidated Invoice 

Emergency Payments (Young People / Boarding 
Out / Fostering Allowances) * 

SSID – Electronic Interface 

* Other emergency payments should have a 
purchase order (see the emergency 
purchase order guidance) 

 

Energy / Utilities Utilities – unknown usage 

Estate Management Fees Unknown usage 

Ex-gratia Payments Payment Vouchers 

Extra Care & Shared Living Voids Payment Vouchers 

Fleet and Plant Hire Fleet – Electronic Interface 

Food Unknown Usage  

Foreign Currency Payments Only pay GBP in Oracle 

Gratuity Payments Payment Vouchers 

Independent Child Placements SSID – Electronic Interface 

Independent Special School Fees School Electronic Interface 

Interview Expenses Claim / Payment Vouchers 

Kennel Fees (including stray dogs & emergency 
accommodation) 

Unknown Emergency Usage 

Land Compensation Claims (Including Agents 
Fees) 

Payment Vouchers 

Library Books Ordered via Halcyon 

Members Initiatives Payment Vouchers 

Newspapers Unknown Usage 

Parish Council Precepts Payment Vouchers 

Pathology Services Unknown Usage 

Payroll / Pension and Redundancy Payments Payment Vouchers 

Recharges for Staff Employed by Other 
Agencies 

Payment Vouchers 

Refunds (Including Care Fees, Overpayments) Payment Vouchers 

Rents Payment Vouchers 

Respite Care Retainers SSID – Electronic Interface 

Road Stone (suppliers: Tarmac Ltd, Sherburn 
Stone, Aggregate Industries UK Ltd) 

Unknown Usage, Price 
Variations 

Sanitary Bins Unknown Usage, Price 
Variations 

School Funding Payments School Electronic Interface 

Subscriptions Unknown Volumes 

Telephone Bills Unknown Usage 

Transport / Concessionary Fares Payments Managed via ITU 

TV Licences Unknown Usage / Fees 

Volunteer Drivers Payment Vouchers 

Page 12



 

APPENDIX 2 –  
Non-Purchase Order Invoice Checks 

 
 
PROCEDURES TO BE FOLLOWED WHEN PROCESSING INVOICES WITHOUT A 
REQUISITION AND PURCHASE ORDER HAVING BEEN RAISED ON ORACLE IN 
ADVANCE 
 

Introduction 
 

1. These guidelines have been written to support services in the processing of invoices 
in those exceptional circumstances when payment is required without an official 
purchase order having being raised in advance on Oracle.   

 
ACTION REQUIRED WITHIN SERVICES 
 
Receipt 
 
2. Upon Receipt within the County Council, all invoices must be date stamped. 
 
Certification 

 
3. All invoices submitted for payment must be certified as correct. 

 
4. Certification means that the invoice has been checked to ensure that is it complete 

and accurate. 
 

5. The invoice should be checked to ensure that : 
 

a) It is an original invoice not a copy. 
b) The invoice is addressed to DCC 
c) The invoice clearly states what the payment is for and when the goods / 

services were received; 
d) Details of goods or services and the amounts charged can be substantiated 

from supporting documentation.  Where possible the receipt of goods should 
be evidenced from goods receipt notes or other written confirmation. Any 
discrepancy should be raised with the supplier immediately and if necessary 
an amended invoice or credit note obtained. 

e) The invoice is arithmetically correct and the amount demanded is as 
expected; 

f) A VAT number is recorded and the VAT elements of the invoice should be 
checked to ensure that the correct rates have been applied 

g) The correct cost centre and detail account code can be established 
 

6. In addition to the above checks, where the original invoice has not been received and 
there is no alternative but to make payment using a copy invoice, the copy invoice 
must be clearly marked ‘Not previously passed for payment’ and be signed and dated 
by the officer undertaking the certification checks set out in 5 above 

 
7. Each invoice should have a duly completed coding grid attached i.e. coded to the 

correct expenditure codes, VAT and totals shown correctly.   The allocation of the 
expenditure code is confirmation that the expenditure can be charged to an approved 
budget. 

 
8. The supporting documents should be marked to show that the goods / services have 

been received, have been agreed to the invoice and the date passed for payment.   
 
9. The invoice should then be marked, ”OK to Pay” and be signed and dated by the 

officer undertaking the certification checks set out in 5 above. 

Page 13



 

 
10. If for any reason there has been a substantial delay between the date the invoice 

was first received and the date the invoice was certified for payment a note should be 
made on the invoice as to the reason e.g. disputed payment.   

 
11. Invoices offering discount for prompt payment should be processed within the time 

limit. 
 

Authorisation 
 
12. All invoices certified for payment must also be authorised by an appropriate officer. 
 
13. Each service should have a scheme of delegation which specifies which officers 

have authority to approve invoices for payment, and invoices can only be approved 
by an authorised officer. 

 
14. A list of employees authorised to approve invoices for payment should be maintained 

by each Service and, where applicable, each establishment. Copies of these must be 
supplied to the central Accounts Payable Section.  

 
15. Given the degree of staff changes the authorised signatory lists should be reviewed 

regularly. 
 

16.  If in any doubt, consult your line manager or head of service to confirm who has this 
delegated authority.  

    
17. Authorised officers should check that invoices have been properly certified and then 

sign  and date as evidence of approval.  
 

18. Details of the invoice number, total amount and date the invoice was passed for 
payment should be noted on supporting documentation.         

   
Payment 

 
19. Authorised invoices should be submitted to Accounts Payable Section in batches. 

 
20. A batch total should be established for each batch 

 
21. Each batch of invoices sent from an establishment should have a batch header 

attached which shows the number and total value of the invoices and the date 
submitted. 

 
22. A batch control record detailing all batches passed to the Accounts Payable Section 

for payment should be maintained by the Service. 
 
 

Accounts Payable Section 
 

23. Copies of the authorised signatory lists maintained by the Services, showing the 
employees authorised to certify invoices, should be held in Accounts Payable 
Section. 

 
24. A batch control record showing details of all batches of invoices received for payment 

should be maintained by the Accounts Payable Section. 
 

25. Only invoices that have been authorised properly should be processed i.e. checked 
to the authorised signatory lists. Where applicable invoices should be returned to the 
Service concerned for re-authorisation. 

 

Page 14



 

26. Invoices that appear to have been changed / altered should be examined/ queried 
carefully. 

 
27. Batch totals should be checked to ensure that the correct number and total value of 

the invoices has been received. 
 

28. When a batch is processed it should be recorded in the batch control book. 
 

29. Invoices should be stored securely and filed in batch and date order. 

 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Audit Committee 
 

4 April 2013 
 

Changes to the Code of Practice for 
Local Authority Accounting in the UK 
for 2012/13 

 

 

 
 

Don McLure, Corporate Director Resources 

 
 
Purpose of the Report 

 

1 The purpose of the report is to provide the Audit Committee with a summary 
of the key accounting changes in the latest edition of the Code of Practice 
for Local Authority Accounting in the UK (the Code).  These changes 
apply to 2012/13 accounts.  

2 The report is presented in accordance with paragraph 4.2.3 of the 
Committee’s operational terms of reference which requires it ‘to maintain an 
understanding of internal and external reporting requirements’. 

3 Appendix 2 provides a summary of all changes and their relevance to the 
Council. 

Background  

 

4 The Code is based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), 
and has been developed by the CIPFA/LASAAC Code Board overseen by the 
Financial Reporting Advisory Board.  It is based on approved accounting 
standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and 
interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations 
Committee, except where these are inconsistent with specific statutory 
requirements.  

5 The Code also draws on approved accounting standards issued by the 
International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board and the UK 
Accounting Standards Board where these provide additional guidance.  The 
latest edition of the Code applies for accounting periods commencing on or 
after 1 April 2012.  It supersedes the 2011/12 Code. 

6 In England and Wales, the Code constitutes a ‘proper accounting practice’ 
under the terms of section 21(2) of the Local Government Act 2003. 

 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 17



Changes to the Code 

7 The CIPFA/LASAAC Code Board overseen by the Financial Reporting 
Advisory Board is in a position to issue mid-year updates to the Code.  This 
will only be done in exceptional circumstances.  Consultation on the Code 
included an Update to the Code, principally relating to Housing Revenue 
Account (HRA) self financing, the Carbon Reduction Commitment Energy 
Efficiency Scheme Assets for allowances held and other items of legislation 
and policy.   

8 In the case of HRA self financing, this is a legislative change and the Code 
has been updated to reflect this, although direct reference should be made to 
the relevant statutory sources. 

9 An update has been issued to provide accounting guidance in respect of the 
Carbon Reduction Commitment Energy Efficiency Scheme Assets for 
allowances held, which is, at the time of publication of the original Code was 
the subject of consultation.   

10 Guidance on other legislative developments has also been covered in an 
update in 2012/13. 

 

Recommendations and reasons 

11 Members are asked to note the changes detailed in Appendix 2. 

 

Contact:  Hilary Appleton  Tel: 03000 266239  

 
 

Page 18



 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

 
Finance –   
There are no direct financial implications arising for the Council as a result of this 
report, although by implementing the changes in the Code in our financial reporting 
we are demonstrating efficient arrangements for the proper administration of the 
County Council’s financial affairs 
 
Staffing -  

None 

 

Risk -  

This report requires no decision and so a risk assessment has not been carried out 

 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty - 

None 

 

Accommodation -  

None 

 

Crime and Disorder -  

None 

 

Human Rights -  

None 

 

Consultation -  

None 

 

Procurement -  

None 

 

Disability Discrimination Act -  

None 

 

Legal Implications -  

None 

Page 19



 

Appendix 2:  Changes to the Code of Practice for Local Authority Accounting in the UK for 2012/13 

 
The table below provides a summary of the changes in the 2012/13 CIPFA Code and their applicability to Durham County Council. 
 

 Change Relevant to Durham 
County Council 

1 The 2012/13 Code includes changes in relation to the objective of the financial statements and the 
qualitative characteristics of financial information as a result of the publication of the first phase of 
the International Accounting Standards Board’s (IASB’s) The Conceptual Framework for Financial 
Reporting 2010 (the Conceptual Framework) (see section 2.1). 

Yes 

2 The 2012/13 Code includes an encouragement for local authorities to prepare the Explanatory 
Foreword taking into consideration the requirements of the Government’s Financial Reporting 
Manual (FReM) (see section 3.1). 

Yes 

3 The 2012/13 Code includes the amendments in relation to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: 
Disclosures (transfers of financial assets) (see paragraph 7.4.2.4).  This amendment will need to be 
considered for disclosure against the requirements of paragraph 3.3.4.3, i.e. the requirement to 
disclose information relating to the impact of an accounting change. 

Yes 

4 The 2012/13 Code Update (and the 2013/14 Code), includes amendments in relation to the Local 
Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011, its associated regulations and statutory guidance 
in relation to the introduction of the new prudential capital finance system in Northern Ireland.  The 
amendments included changes to the recommended wording in the Statement of Responsibilities in 
section 3.2, the statutory accounting requirements in chapter four Non-current Assets and Part 2 of 
Appendix B Sources and Legislation.   

No – applies only to 
Local Authorities in 
Northern Ireland 

P
age 20



 Change Relevant to Durham 
County Council 

5 The 2012/13 Code does not include either of the voluntary options suggested in the consultation on 
the 2012/13 Code to measure transport infrastructure assets on a depreciated replacement cost 
(DRC) basis.  CIPFA/LASAAC will revisit options for future adoption of this measurement basis 
following consideration of the progress of the provision of DRC information (based on the CIPFA 
Code of Practice on Transport Infrastructure Assets) as a part of the Whole of Government 
Accounts process. 

Yes – for future 
adoption 

6 The 2012/13 Code (following the amendments introduced in the 2011/12 Code Update) provides 
clarification in relation to the recognition of Business Rate Supplements income and other minor 
amendments.  It also includes additional minor amendments and clarification in relation to the 
recognition of the Community Infrastructure Levy (see section 2.2). 

Yes 

7 The 2012/13 Code (following the amendments introduced in the 2011/12 Code Update) includes 
reference to the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Amendment Regulations 2011 (SSI 2011/64) 
which introduced a requirement for Scottish local authorities to produce a remuneration report as a 
part of the statutory Statement of Accounts (see paragraph 3.4.5.2). 

No – applies only to 
Local Authorities in 
Scotland 

8 The 2012/13 Code (following the amendments introduced in the 2011/12 Code Update) incorporates 
the new requirements of the Housing Revenue Account (Accounting Practices) Directions 2011 (see 
section 3.5). 

Yes 

9 The 2012/13 Code (following the amendments introduced in the 2011/12 Code Update) incorporates 
the requirement introduced in the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 that the 
statement of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is the Annual Governance Statement 
(see paragraph 3.7.1.1). 

Yes 

P
age 21



 Change Relevant to Durham 
County Council 

10 The 2012/13 Code (following the amendments introduced in the 2011/12 Code Update) incorporates 
the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 including the changes regarding the dates at 
which the financial statements are required to be approved by members and clarifying the impact on 
the authorised for issue date in England (see section 3.8) and also the featuring changes to the 
relevant bodies that may be permitted or required by the regulations to follow the Code (see 
paragraph 1.2.4). 

Yes 

11 The 2012/13 Code (following the amendments introduced in the 2011/12 Code Update) includes the 
November 2009 amendments to the definition of a related party, related party transactions, close 
members of the family of a person, the guidance on the treatment of a related party and other minor 
amendments (see section 3.9) 

Yes 

12 The 2012/13 Code (following the amendments introduced in the 2011/12 Code Update) includes a 
revision to the Accounts Direction – Northern Ireland district councils’ requirements in relation to the 
treatment of short-term accumulated compensated absences.  The Direction now requires that the 
accrued element of short-term accumulating compensated absences is to be held within the 
Accumulated Absences Reserve until the liability is discharged (see paragraph 6.2.5.1). 

No – applies only to 
Local Authorities in 
Northern Ireland 

13 The 2012/13 Code (following the amendments introduced in the 2011/12 Code Update) incorporates 
the requirements of the Scottish Government Finance Circular 1/2011 Accounting for Local Authority 
Pension Funds (Scotland). The Code sets out in accordance with the circular that administering 
authorities in Scotland are no longer required to include the pension fund accounts in the local 
authority financial statements but are required instead to make the disclosures stipulated by the 
circular (see section 6.5). 

No – applies only to 
Local Authorities in 
Scotland 

P
age 22



 Change Relevant to Durham 
County Council 

14 The 2012/13 Code (following the amendments introduced in the 2011/12 Code Update) includes 
reference in Appendix B to the new statutory guidance issued by the Scottish Government including 
Scottish Government Finance Circulars Accounting for Investments – Icelandic Banks (Circular 
5/2011), Accounting for Grants Contributions and Donated Assets (Circular 6/2011) and Accounting 
for Investment Properties (Circular 7/2011). 

No – applies only to 
Local Authorities in 
Scotland 

15 The 2012/13 Code does not include the changes anticipated in the consultation on the Code relating 
to the amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes (Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets) as at 
the date of approval for publication it appeared that this standard would not be adopted by the EU by 
its effective date and the effective date applicable to the 2012/13 Code. 

No 

16 The 2012/13 Code also does not include the accounting requirements in relation to Housing 
Revenue Account reform in England.  It is anticipated these will be included in a 2012/13 Code 
Update. 

Yes 

17 The 2012/13 Code Update (and the 2013/14 Code), includes requirements for the accounting 
treatment of allowances in respect of the Carbon Reduction Commitment (CRC) Energy Efficiency 
Scheme in section 2.4.  

Yes 

18 The 2012/13 Code (following the amendments introduced in the 2011/12 Code Update) removes 
references to ‘Area Based Grant’. 

Yes 

P
age 23



 Change Relevant to Durham 
County Council 

19 The 2012/13 Code Update (and the 2013/14 Code) includes minor amendments to the HRA Income 
and Expenditure Statement.  It also includes revisions to reflect the changes in the statutory 
accounting requirements for property, plant and equipment in relation to the transfers to and from 
the Major Repairs Reserve under the new self-financing arrangements for housing authorities in 
England. 

Yes 

20 The 2012/13 Code Update (and the 2013/14 Code) includes a minor amendment to indicate that in 
cases where policy development might mean that authorities are not acting as agent for non-
domestic rate income then authorities will need to use the principles of section 2.6 of the Code to 
assess whether or not for elements of the income they are agent or principal in the transaction. 

Yes 

21 The 2012/13 Code (following the amendments introduced in the 2011/12 Code Update) clarifies the 
requirements in a number of areas where uncertainty was identified in the 2010/11 and 2011/12 
Codes: 

 

 • The 2012/13 Code (following the amendments introduced in the 2011/12 Code Update) includes 
clarifications to the recognition requirements and the treatment of general and unringfenced 
grants (see paragraphs 2.3.2.9 and 2.3.2.10). It also includes the definition of a stipulation from 
IPSAS 23 Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers) (see paragraph 
2.3.2.6). 

Yes 

 • The 2012/13 Code (following the amendments introduced in the 2011/12 Code Update) clarifies 
the statutory reporting requirements in the Movement in Reserves Statement in respect of the 
HRA and the Major Repairs Reserve (see paragraph 3.4.2.40). 

Yes 

 • The 2012/13 Code (following the amendments introduced in the 2011/12 Code Update) includes 
the clarification that the disclosures relating to partnership schemes should also include schemes 
under s33 of the National Health Service (Wales) Act 2006 (see paragraph 3.4.4.1). 

No – applies only to 
Local Authorities in 
Wales 

P
age 24



 Change Relevant to Durham 
County Council 

 • The 2012/13 Code (following the amendments introduced in the 2011/12 Code Update) includes 
the statutory requirement to disclose the audited memorandum account of a fund established 
under section 15(1) (c) of the Community Care and Health (Scotland) Act 2002 (see paragraph 
3.4.5.1). 

No – applies only to 
Local Authorities in 
Scotland 

 • The 2012/13 Code (following the amendments introduced in the 2011/12 Code Update) includes 
a minor clarification to the Balance Sheet and a number of minor clarifications to the Cash Flow 
Statement (see section 3.4). 

Yes 

 • The 2012/13 Code (following the amendments introduced in the 2011/12 Code Update) clarifies 
that for local authorities in Scotland the Accounts Commission has set a non statutory date for 
providing the audit opinion on the financial statements. 

No – applies only to 
Local Authorities in 
Scotland 

 • The 2012/13 Code (following the amendments introduced in the 2011/12 Code Update) includes 
additional clarification that local authorities in Scotland are able to post capital receipts to a 
statutory capital fund (see chapter four). 

No – applies only to 
Local Authorities in 
Scotland 

 • The 2012/13 Code (following the amendments introduced in the 2011/12 Code Update) includes 
clarification in relation to the accounting treatment of IAS 19 Employee Benefits, IAS 32 Financial 
Instruments: Presentation, IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and 
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures in relation to pension funds, particularly in relation to 
disclosures concerning the financial instruments held by funds (see paragraph 6.5.1.2). 

Yes 

 • The 2012/13 Code (following the amendments introduced in the 2011/12 Code Update) removes 
references to Scottish police and fire boards (see paragraph 9.1.2.46). 

No – applies only to 
Local Authorities in 
Scotland 

 
 P

age 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Audit Committee 
 
4 April 2013 
 
Consideration of ‘Going Concern Status’ 
for the Statement of Accounts for the year 
ended 31 March 2013 
 

 

Don McLure, Corporate Director Resources 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1. Each year, Durham County Council assesses whether it should be 

considered a ‘going concern’, and whether the accounts should be 
prepared on that basis.  This report considers the County Council’s 
status as a going concern and asks Members to agree this. 

 
Background 
 
2. The general principles adopted in compiling the Statement of Accounts 

are in accordance with the ‘Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting 2012/13’ (the Code) as published by the Chartered Institute 
of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).  The Code defines proper 
accounting practices for local authorities in England, Wales, Scotland 
and Northern Ireland. 

 
3. The Code requires that a local authority’s Statement of Accounts is 

prepared on a going concern basis; that is, the accounts should be 
prepared on the assumption that the authority will continue in 
operational existence for the foreseeable future.  This means that the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and Balance 
Sheet assume no intention to curtail significantly the scale of the 
operation. 
 

4. An inability to apply the going concern concept can have a fundamental 
impact on the financial statements. 
 

5. However, it is highly unusual that a local authority would have a going 
concern problem.  There may be cases where part of an authority’s 
operations cease to be viable or affordable.  However, this will not give 
rise to a going concern issue for the authority; the impact would be 
restricted to only that part of the operation. 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 27



 

Key Issues 
 
6. The assumption that a local authority’s services will continue to operate 

for the foreseeable future is made because local authorities carry out 
functions essential to the local community and are themselves 
revenue-raising bodies (with limits on their revenue-raising powers 
arising only at the discretion of central government).  If an authority 
were in financial difficulty, the prospects are therefore that alternative 
arrangements might be made by central government either for the 
continuation of the services it provides or for assistance with the 
recovery of a deficit over more than one financial year. 
 

7. Local Authorities derive their powers from statute and their financing 
and accounting framework is closely monitored by primary and 
secondary legislation.  It is a fundamental concept of local authority 
accounting that wherever accounting principles and legislative 
requirements are in conflict the legislative requirements apply. 

 
8. An organisation must consider its financial performance to assess its 

ability to continue as a going concern.  This assessment should cover 
historical, current and future performance. 

 
Historical Position 
 
9. Durham County Council became a Unitary Authority on 1 April 2009, 

bringing together the seven former District Councils in County Durham 
with the County Council. 
 

10. The assets and liabilities of the former District Councils were 
transferred to the County Council on 1 April 2009.  At that date, the Net 
Assets of the County Council were £1,240.742m, reducing to 
£900.094m at 31 March 2010.  At 31 March 2011 there was a further 
decrease to £856,994m.  
 

11. Net assets as at 31 March 2012 were £571.779m. 
 

12. External Audit provide a ‘Value For Money’ conclusion at each year 
end which gives their opinion on the County Council in two areas: 
 

• Financial Resilience  - The organisation has robust systems and 
processes to manage effectively financial risks and 
opportunities, and to secure a stable financial position that 
enables it to continue to operate for the foreseeable future; and 

• Securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness - The 
organisation is prioritising its resources within tighter budgets, 
for example by achieving cost reductions and by improving 
efficiency and productivity. 

Page 28



 

13. In their Annual Governance Statement for 2011/12, External Audit 
stated, as evidence of financial resilience: 
 
“The Council understands the financial challenges and risks it faces 
and has worked hard to deliver a sustainable Medium Term Financial 
Plan (MTFP) for 2012/13 and beyond and is aware of the challenges 
ahead. 
 
Senior officers and members provide constructive scrutiny on financial 
matters and there is an effective Audit Committee in place. The Council 
has updated its medium term financial plan to reflect the savings 
required over the next four years. Senior officers receive regular 
finance reports that provide a clear link between budget, in-year 
forecasts and the year-end forecast.” 
 
“The positive financial out-turn for 2011/12 means the Council has 
positioned itself well for future challenges.  In the short-term, the 
Council is facing existing challenges of dealing with: 
 

• changes to welfare reform; 

• business rates localisation; 

• new public health responsibilities from April 2013; and  

• the further savings and efficiencies required along with any 
agreed tri-borough collaboration arrangements.  
 

Members and officers recognise the need to continue to work together 
to maintain momentum on achieving the wider-reaching changes 
needed to address the required efficiency savings.” 

 
14. In their Annual Governance Statement for 2011/12, External Audit 

further stated, as evidence of securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness: 
 
“The Council has put proper arrangements in place to challenge how it 
secures economy, efficiency and effectiveness.  
 
The medium term financial plan (MTFP) covers the four year period 
2012/13 to 2015/16.The main objective of the programme is to achieve 
budget savings of up to £79.3 million by 2015/16 while maintaining 
focus on its vision and priorities for the county which were developed 
with partners. 
 
The Council is continuing to ensure that sufficient capacity is provided 
to deliver the programme effectively.  Accurately monitoring savings 
from these projects will continue be important if budget savings are to 
be achieved as planned.” 
 

Page 29



 

Current Position 
 
15. The County Council holds general reserves of £21.874m at 31 March 

2012 and reserves earmarked for specific future purposes of 
£100.425m. 

 
16. The Net Assets of the County Council at 31 March 2012 amounted to 

£571.779m, a decrease of £299.604m.  
 

17. Current forecasts of the likely position as at 31 March 2013 were 
reported to Cabinet in March 2013.  It is anticipated that the County 
Council will hold general reserves of £24.653m and reserves 
earmarked for specific future purposes, including those held for schools 
will be £96.330m. 
 

18. The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) forms part of the County 
Council’s main accounting statements.  General reserves held by the 
HRA as at 31 March 2012 amounted to £7.821m, and those held for 
specific purposes were £2.460m. 

 
Future Plans 
 
19. The County Council approved its budget for 2013/14 and Medium Term 

Financial Plan to 2016/17 in February 2013.  
 
Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) – 2013/14 to 2016/17 
 
20. The council has faced unprecedented reductions in Government grants 

since the 2010 Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) when the 
expectation for local government was a 28% cut in Government grant 
for the period 2011/12 to 2014/15.  Since then, the position has 
deteriorated for local government and in total the council are now 
forecasting that Government support over the six year period 2011 to 
2017 will reduce by £139m.  This equates to a 36% reduction in 
Government support over this period.   

21. The council’s provisional funding baseline for 2013/14 was announced 
by the Government on 19 December 2012 with the final settlement 
being announced on 4 February 2013.  The funding baseline for 
2013/14 is £249.5m which is £9.1m less than the 2012/13 allocation.   

22. After also taking into account estimated base budget pressures and 
growth in some council priority service areas, the medium term 
financial plan forecast requires the council to deliver £95m savings 
between 2013/14 and 2016/17.  This is in addition to the £93m of 
savings that the council has had to make in 2011/12 and 2012/13 to 
balance its budgets.   

Page 30



 

23. The total savings therefore for the six year period 2011/12 to 2016/17 
are estimated to be £188m with the figure expected to exceed £200m 
by 2017/18. 

24. The 2013/14 budget requires savings of £20.9m to achieve a balanced 
net revenue budget of £457.814m.   

25. The following assumptions have been utilised in developing the MTFP 
model. 
 
(i) Government grant reductions for the MTFP period have been 

developed utilising information from both the 2013/14 Local 
Government Finance Settlement and the December 2012 
Autumn Statement.  The estimated reductions are as follows: 

Forecast Government Grant Reductions 

Year Basis Grant 
Reduction 

  £m 
2014/15 Revenue Support Grant reduction  29.086 
2015/16 Net Reduction in all Government 

Funding 
15.600 

2016/17 Net Reduction in all Government 
Funding 

9.530 

 

(ii) The following estimates have been included for increased 
income in 2014/15 to offset the £29.086m (17.4%) reduction in 
Revenue Support Grant. 

Increased Income Forecast for 2014/15 

Increased Income 

 2014/15 
 £m 
New Homes Bonus 1.250 
New Homes Bonus Top Slice Reimbursement 0.750 
Top Up Grant – RPI Increase (3%) 1.785 
Business Rate Local Share – RPI Increase (3%) 1.600 

 

(iii) Forecast Pay and Price Inflation levels have taken into account 
the 1% pay increase cap for 2013/14 and 2014/15.  They have 
also taken into account the continuing high levels of price 
inflation in the economy with the Consumer Price Index (CPI) 
currently standing at 2.7% and Retail Price Index (RPI) currently 
standing at 3.1%.  These levels are reflected in the 2013/14 
Price Inflation allowance. 

Page 31



 

Pay and Price Inflation Assumptions 

Year Pay Inflation Price Inflation 

2013/14 1% 2.5% 

2014/15 1% 1% 

2015/16 1.5% 1.5% 

2016/17 1.5% 1.5% 

 

(iv) Continuing budget pressures in relation to Carbon Tax, 
Employer Pension Contributions, Concessionary Fares, Energy 
price increases and Adult Services demographic pressures. 

(v) Continuing need to support both the current and additional 
capital programmes. 

(vi) Council Tax increases for 2014/15 – 2016/17 are assumed to be 
2% per annum. 

(vii) There is a need for additional savings to be identified for the 
2014/15 – 2016/17 period of £51.3m to achieve a balanced 
position across the MTFP period. 

26. The council will face two new risks in future years which do not 
presently feature in MTFP modelling as detailed below: 
 
(i) Variation in Business Rate Local Share Income – at this 

stage, the 2013/14 local share income is budgeted for at the 
baseline level set by the Government in the Start Up Funding 
Assessment (SUFA).  It is expected however that actual income 
in the future could be higher or lower dependent upon the health 
of the economy in the county.  This will need to be closely 
monitored for both budgetary control purposes and MTFP 
planning.  Regeneration and Economic Development and 
Resources are working together to develop a framework which 
can model the movement of the business rate tax base within 
the county.  If local share income reduces, the council will need 
to find additional savings to replace the income lost. 

(ii) Localisation of County Tax Support (LCTSS) – from 2013/14 
the council will be responsible for financing the LCTSS.  Any 
variation in benefit claimants will change the levels of council tax 
income received by the council.  This variation will again be 
linked very closely with the health of the local economy in the 
county. 

27. A balanced MTFP model has been developed after taking into account 
the assumptions above.  The MTFP model is summarised in the 
following table. 
 

Page 32



 

 MTFP Summary Position 

 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 TOTAL 

 £m £m £m £m £m 
Reduction in 
Resource 
Base 

9.852 19.411 20.445 6.958 56.666 

Budget 
Pressures 

11.014 8.455 9.937 8.887 38.293 

Savings 
required 

20.866 27.866 30.382 15.845 94.959 

Savings to be 
identified 

0 12.122 23.309 15.845 51.276 

 
28. Although difficult decisions have needed to be taken in order to 

balance budgets in 2011/12 and 2012/13, the council continues to be 
successful in delivering savings against its original budget strategy. 
Although the 2013/14 budget requires the delivery of further savings of 
£20.9m, there are a number of key service areas that have been 
protected and some services where the budget has been increased for 
the benefit of council tax payers including: 
 

• For the fourth consecutive year, council tax bills for council tax 
payers will stay the same, should the council accept the 
Government’s Council Tax Freeze Grant of £2m which is the 
equivalent to the amount of income the council would receive 
from a 1% council tax increase.  Council tax bills will however 
still go up as the Police and Crime Commissioner has increased 
their council tax precept by 2% and for those payers living in 
parished areas should their parish council choose to increase 
their precept.  The Fire authority is proposing a zero increase in 
council tax. 

• Increasing the Adult Social Care budget by £1m in recognition of 
the increasing demands on the council due to demographic 
changes and more people becoming dependent upon these 
services.  This is in line with the priorities identified through 
consultation. 

• Protecting all 65,000 households in receipt of council tax benefit 
under the local council tax support scheme despite a 10% cut in 
government funding. 

• Protecting the highways winter maintenance programme in 
order to keep our main highways infrastructure open for the 
public.  Again this is in line with public consultation findings. 

• A key priority of the capital programme is to stimulate 
regeneration and job creation across the county.  In line with the 

Page 33



 

Council’s key priority to stimulate regeneration and job creation 
across the county, an additional £3.25m of revenue has been 
allocated to fund prudential borrowing to invest in new and 
current capital projects amounting to £159m in 2013/14 with a 
total programme for the period 2013/14 to 2016/17 of £315m.   

29. In December 2012, an extensive consultation process led to over 1,500 
people giving their views on how the council has managed spending 
reductions so far, the impact that the reductions have had to date and 
ideas for making further reductions in the future. 

 
30. The MTFP agreed by Council in February 2012, identified a range of 

forecast base budget pressures in 2013/14.  Throughout the year, 
Cabinet has approved updated MTFP reports which have reviewed and 
updated estimates.  The following table details the final forecasted 
position on the 2013/14 Base Budget pressures: 
 

 2013/14 Base Budget Pressures 

Pressures Amount 

 £m 
Pay Inflation (1%) 1.980 
Price Inflation (2.5%) 3.087 
Corporate Risk Contingency 0.440 
Landfill Tax to 31 May 2013 0.171 
Highways Operations 0.600 
Carbon Reduction Commitment 0.100 
Employee Pension Contributions 1.300 
Community Governance Review (0.050) 
Adult Services Demographic Pressures 1.000 

TOTAL 8.628 

 
31. The savings plans for each service grouping for the 2013/14 – 2016/17 

period are summarised in the following table across the MTFP period.  
The table also shows the forecasted shortfall in savings which will need 
to be identified to achieve financial balance from 2014/15 onwards, due 
to the deterioration in the financial outlook as detailed above. 
 

Page 34



 

 Service Grouping Savings Plan 2013/14 – 2016/17 

Service 
Grouping 

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 TOTAL 

 £m £m £m £m £m 
ACE 0.653 0.261 0.220   0 1.134 
CAS 11.212 9.353 4.454   0 25.019 
NS 4.419 2.845 1.356   0 8.620 
RED 0.970 0.776 0.480   0 2.226 
RES 2.137 2.510 0.564   0 5.211 
Other 1.475    0    0   0 1.475 
Savings to 
be identified 

  0 12.122 23.309 15.845 51.276 

 
TOTAL 

 
20.866 

 
27.867 

 
30.383 

 
15.845 

 
94.961 

 
32. The total saving for the period 2011/12 – 2016/17 is detailed below. 

 
Total Savings 2011/12 – 2016/17  

Period Saving 

 £m 
2011/12 – 2012/13 93.0 
2013/14 – 2016/17 95.0 

TOTAL 188.0 

 
2013/14 Net Budget Requirement 

33. After taking into account base budget pressures, additional investment 
and savings, the council’s recommended Council Net Budget 
Requirement for 2013/14 is £457.814m.  The financing of the net 
budget requirement is detailed below: 
 

 Financing of the 2013/14 Budget 

Financing Method Amount 

 £m 
Revenue Support Grant 167.162 
Top Up Grant 58.223 
Business Rates – Local Share 52.985 
Council Tax 164.469 
Council Tax Freeze Grant 2.033 
New Homes Bonus 4.799 
New Homes Bonus Top Slice 0.943 
Education Services Grant 7.200 

TOTAL 457.814 

Page 35



 

 
Capital Funding  
 
34. The council continues to invest in capital infrastructure.  An additional 

£3.25m of revenue will be provided in the budget to finance Prudential 
Borrowing to continue to support the capital programme.  A key priority 
of the capital programme is to stimulate regeneration and job creation 
within the local economy. 

35. The need to invest in Capital Infrastructure during the economic 
downturn is seen as an essential means of regenerating the local 
economy and for job creation.  Additional investment will maintain and 
improve infrastructure across the County, help retain existing jobs, 
create new jobs and ensure the performance of key council services 
are maintained and improved. 

36. After considering all relevant factors, the Capital Member Officer 
Working Group (MOWG) have recommended that additional schemes 
be approved for inclusion in the Capital Programme.  The additional 
2013/14 schemes can be afforded by utilising unapplied capital grants 
and utilising the 2013/14 prudential borrowing allowance not committed 
in MTFP for 2012/13.  The new 2014/15 schemes can be afforded by 
utilising capital grants, capital receipts and prudential borrowing.  The 
approval of the 2014/15 schemes will leave £10.5m of prudential 
borrowing still to utilise.  This availability of financing in 2014/15 can be 
considered as part of the development the next MTFP. 

37. The new investments will ensure the council continues to invest in 
priority projects and key maintenance programmes. 

 
38. The 2013/14 – 2016/17 Capital Budget will be as follows: 

 

Page 36



 

 Capital Budget  

Service Grouping 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 TOTAL 

 £m £m £m £m £m 
ACE 3.959 1.260 - - 5.219 
CAS 56.046 32.005 - - 88.051 
Neighbourhoods 32.533 21.784 - - 54.317 

RED 49.318 27.379 0.725 0.027 77.449 
Resources 17.605 1.645 - - 19.250 
Other - 10.494 30.000 30.000 70.494 

TOTAL 159.461 94.567 30.725 30.027 314.780 

Financed by      
Grants and 
Contributions 

66.498 33.661 0.271 - 100.430 

Revenue and 
Reserves 

0.987 0.807 - - 1.794 

Capital Receipts 10.000 10.000 10.000 10.000 40.000 
Capital Receipts – 
BSF and Schools 

9.774 3.000 - - 12.774 

Borrowing 72.202 47.099 20.454 20.027 159.782 

TOTAL 159.461 94.567 30.725 30.027 314.780 

 
39. The council has been able to set a balanced budget for 2013/14 and 

has a plan in place to continue to deliver local services up to 2017.  
Based on this, it is clear that the County Council is a going concern. 
 

Financial Reserves 

40. The County Council holds reserves: 
 

• As a working balance to help cushion the impact of uneven cash 
flow and avoid unnecessary temporary borrowing – this forms 
part of the General Reserve. 

• As a contingency to cushion the impact of unexpected events or 
emergencies – this also forms part of General Reserves. 

• As a means of building up funds, earmarked reserves to meet 
known or predicted future liabilities. 

41. Each earmarked reserve, with the exception of the Schools’ reserve, is 
reviewed on an annual basis.  The Schools’ reserve is the 
responsibility of individual schools with balances at the year end which 
make up the total reserve. 
 

42. A Local Authority Accounting Panel Bulletin published in November 
2008 (LAAP77) makes a number of recommendations relating to the 
determination and the adequacy of Local Authority Reserves.  The 
guidance contained in the Bulletin “represents good financial 
management and should be followed as a matter of course”. 

Page 37



 

 
43. This bulletin highlights a range of factors, in addition to cash flow 

requirements that councils should consider.  These include the 
treatment of inflation, the treatment of demand led pressures, efficiency 
savings, partnerships and the general financial climate, including the 
impact on investment income.  The bulletin also refers to reserves 
being deployed to fund recurring expenditure and indicates that this is 
not a long-term option.  If general reserves were to be used as part of 
the budget process, appropriate action would need to be factored into 
the MTFP to ensure that this is addressed over time so that the base 
budget is not reliant on a continued contribution from general reserves. 
 

44. The setting of the level of reserves is an important decision not only for 
the 2013/14 budget but for the MTFP.  The Quarter 3 Forecast of 
Outturn for 2012/13 agreed by Cabinet in March 2013 forecast an 
increase of £4.5m in the General Reserve Balance to £26.4m.  This 
balance will be above the council’s current reserves policy but in times 
of ongoing austerity, the recommended level of General Reserve 
should be reviewed in the light of the two new key risks identified in 
paragraph 26, in addition to the many associated uncertainties for local 
authorities in the coming years.  It is therefore felt prudent for the 
council to consider maintaining a higher level of General Reserve in the 
medium term until such a time when the impact of the Business Rates 
Retention scheme and the Local Council Tax Support Scheme are 
more fully understood and Government funding reductions have ended.   
 

45. The County Council’s Reserve Policy is therefore as follows: 
 
(i) Set aside sufficient sums in Earmarked Reserves as is 

considered prudent.  The Corporate Director Resources should 
be authorised to establish such reserves as required, to review 
them for both adequacy and purpose on a regular basis 
reporting appropriate to the Cabinet Portfolio Member for 
Resources and to Cabinet. 

(ii) Aim to maintain General Reserves in the medium term of up to 
7.5% of the Net Budget Requirement which in cash terms 
equates to up to £35m. 

46. Based on the level of reserves held, the County Council has 
demonstrated robust financial management that underpins its status as 
a going concern. 

 
Risk 

47. The council had previously recognised that a wide range of financial 
risks needed to be managed and mitigated across the medium term.  
The risks faced have now been exacerbated by the localisation of 
business rates and the localisation of council tax support.  All risks will 

Page 38



 

be assessed continually throughout the MTFP period.  Some of the key 
risks identified include: 
 
(i) Ensure the achievement of a balanced budget and financial 

position across the MTFP period. 

(ii) Ensure the savings are risk assessed across a range of factors 
e.g. impact upon customers, stakeholders, partners and staff. 

(iii) The Government funding reductions are based upon 
Government national control total data from the December 2012 
Autumn Statement.  Further analysis of the content of the March 
2013 Budget and the expected 2015/16 Comprehensive 
Spending Review in the spring of 2013 will be required to ensure 
estimates are updated.  Recent experience would indicate that 
each Government financial forecast includes additional savings 
for local government. 

(iv) The localisation of council tax support passes the risk for any 
increase in council tax benefit claimants onto the council.  
Activity in this area will need to be monitored carefully with 
medium term projections developed in relation to estimated 
volume of claimant numbers. 

(v) The MTFP model builds in estimates for pay and price inflation.  
At the present time price inflation levels remain well above 
Government targets which could place significant pressure upon 
budgets. 

48. Based on the above there are no risks which would indicate that the 
County Council is not a going concern. 

 
 
 

Conclusion  
 
49. When approving the accounts, the Audit Committee members being 

those charged with governance for the County Council will need to 
consider which of the following three basic scenarios is the most 
appropriate: 

 

• the body is clearly a going concern and it is appropriate for the 
accounts to be prepared on the going concern basis; 

• the body is a going concern but there are uncertainties 
regarding future issues which should be disclosed in the 
accounts to ensure the true and fair view; 

• the body is not a going concern and the accounts will need to be 
prepared on an appropriate alternative basis. 

 

Page 39



 

50. Based on the assessment undertaken, in my view: 
 

• the County Council has a history of stable finance and ready 
access to financial resources in the future,  

• there are no significant financial, operating or other risks that 
would jeopardise the County Council’s continuing operation. 

 
51. Therefore the County Council is a going concern and it is appropriate 

for the Statement of Accounts to be prepared on that basis.  
 
 
Recommendation 
 
52. It is recommended that the County Council should be considered as a 

going concern and that the Statement of Accounts should be prepared 
on that basis. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background papers 
 
(a) County Council  – 20 February 2013 – General Fund Medium Term 

Financial Plan, 2013/14 – 2016/17 and Revenue and Capital Budget 
2013/14 

(b) Cabinet - 13 March 2013 - Forecast of Revenue and Capital Outturn 
2012/13 for General Fund and Housing Revenue Account – Period to 
31 December 2012 

(c) Annual Governance Report – 2011/12 – Durham County Council 

 

Contact:  Hilary Appleton       Tel: 03000 266239 

 

Page 40



 

 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

 
Finance -  

The report considers the County Council as a ‘going concern’. 

 

Staffing -  

None 

 

Risk -  

None 

 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty -  

None 

 

Accommodation -  

None 

 

Crime and Disorder -  

None 

 

Human Rights -  

None 

 

Consultation -  

None 

 

Procurement -  

None 

 

Disability Issues -  

None 

 

Legal Implications -  

None 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 

Audit Committee 
 
4 April 2013 
 
Agreement of Accounting Policies for 
Application in the 2012/13 Financial 
Statements 

 

 

 
 

Don McLure, Corporate Director Resources 

 
Purpose of the Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to update the Audit Committee on the 
County Council’s accounting policies to be applied in the preparation of 
the 2012/13 Statement of Accounts and to seek confirmation from the 
Audit Committee that appropriate policies are being applied. 

2. Appendix 2 provides a summary of all changes to be applied in 
preparing the 2012/13 Statement of Accounts.  

3. Objective 2 of the Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference requires it to 
provide ‘Independent assurance over the financial reporting of the 
Council’s Statement of Accounts ensuring that any issues arising from 
the process of drawing up, auditing and certifying the Council’s annual 
accounts are dealt with properly to maintain an understanding of 
accounting policies and internal and external reporting requirements’. 

Background  

4. It is a requirement of the Local Government Act 2003 and the Accounts 
and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 for the Statement of Accounts to 
be produced in accordance with proper accounting practices. 

5. Accounting policies are defined in the Code as “the specific principles 
bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by an authority in 
preparing and presenting financial statements”. 

6. Accounting policies need not be applied if the effect of applying them 
would be immaterial.  Materiality is defined in the Code as it applies to 
omissions and misstatements: 

Omissions or misstatements of items are material if they could, 
individually or collectively, influence the decisions or assessments of 
users made on the basis of the financial statements.  Materiality 
depends on the nature or size of the omission or misstatement judged 
in the surrounding circumstances.  The nature or size of the item, or a 
combination of both, could be the determining factor. 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 43



 

  

7. The proposed accounting policies are in line with those used in the 
preparation of the 2011/12 accounts as there have been no changes to 
the Code necessitating a change for 2012/13.   

8. The full list of accounting policies the Council proposes to disclose in its 
Statement of Accounts notes are detailed in Appendix 2. 

Amended Accounting Policies 

9. The wording of existing accounting policies has been improved to more 
accurately reflect the County Council’s approach and improve 
compliance with Code disclosure requirements, and clarify principles 
being applied: 

• Property, Plant and Equipment - Depreciation: The part of this 
policy relating to Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment has 
been amended to more accurately reflect the County Council’s 
approach and remains in line with Code requirements. 

• The Local Government Pension Scheme: The part of this policy 
referring to the valuation of property assets in respect of Durham 
County Council pension fund attributable to the County Council has 
been removed as non are currently held.  

 

Recommendations and reasons 

10.  The Committee is recommended to: 

• review the accounting policies; and 

• approve their use in the preparation of the 2012/13 financial 
statements.  

• the Corporate Director, Resources be authorised to review the 
accounting policies as necessary, and report changes to the Audit 
Committee. 
 

 

 

 

 

Contact:  Hilary Appleton  Tel: 03000 266239  

 

Page 44



 

  

 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

 
Finance -  

The report considers the Accounting Polices for the County Council’s 
Statement of Accounts for 2012/13. 

 

Staffing -  

None 

 

Risk -  

None 

 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty -  

None 

 

Accommodation -  

None 

 

Crime and Disorder -  

None 

 

Human Rights -  

None 

 

Consultation -  

None 

 

Procurement -  

None 

 

Disability Issues -  

None 

 

Legal Implications -  

None 

Page 45



 

  

 

Appendix 2:  Accounting Policies 2012/13 

 

Accounting Policy New 
policy 

Amended 
policy 

No 
change 

In line 
with 
Code 

1. General Principles   � � 

2. Accruals of Income and 
Expenditure 

  � � 

3. Cash and Cash 
Equivalents 

  � � 

4. Exceptional Items   � � 

5. Prior Period 
Adjustments, Changes in 
Accounting Policies and 
Estimates and Errors 

  � � 

6. Charges to Revenue for 
Non-Current Assets 

  � � 

7. Employee Benefits  �  � 

8. Events After the 
Reporting Period 

  � � 

9. Financial Instruments   � � 

10. Foreign Currency 
Translation 

  � � 

11. Government Grants 
and Contributions 

  � � 

12. Heritage Assets    � � 

13. Intangible Assets   �  

14. Interests in Companies 
and Other Entities 

  � � 

15. Inventories & Long 
Term Contracts 

  � � 

16. Investment Property   � � 

17. Jointly Controlled   � � 

Page 46



 

  

Accounting Policy New 
policy 

Amended 
policy 

No 
change 

In line 
with 
Code 

Operations and Jointly 
Controlled Assets 

18. Leases   � � 

19. Overheads & Support 
Services 

  � � 

20. Property, Plant and 
Equipment 

 �  � 

21. Disposals and Non-
current Assets Held for 
Sale 

  � � 

22. Private Finance 
Initiative (PFI) and Similar 
Contracts 

  � � 

23. Provisions   � � 

24. Landfill Allowance 
Schemes 

  � � 

25. Contingent Liabilities   � � 

26. Contingent Assets   � � 

27. Reserves   � � 

28. Revenue Expenditure 
Funded from Capital under 
Statute 

  � � 

29. Value Added Tax 
(VAT) 

  � � 

30. Carbon Reduction 
Commitment Allowances  

  � � 

 

Page 47



 

  

Accounting Policies 

1. General Principles 

The Statement of Accounts summarises the County Council’s transactions for 
the 2012/13 financial year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2013.  
The County Council is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts 
by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011, which those Regulations require 
to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices.  

Those practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2012/13 (the Code) and the Service 
Reporting Code of Practice 2012/13 (SeRCOP), supported by International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally 
historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current 
assets and financial instruments. 

The Code requires that a Local Authority’s Statement of Accounts is prepared 
on a ‘going concern’ basis, that is, the accounts are based on the assumption 
that the County Council will continue in operational existence for the 
foreseeable future. 

2. Accruals of Income and Expenditure 

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash 
payments are made or received.  In particular: 

• Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the County Council 
transfers the significant risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser 
and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential associated 
with the transaction will flow to the County Council. 

• Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the County 
Council can measure reliably the percentage of completion of the 
transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the transaction will flow to the County Council. 

• Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed - where 
there is a gap between the date supplies are received and their 
consumption, they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet. 

• Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by 
employees) are recorded as expenditure when the services are received 
rather than when payments are made. 

• Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is 
accounted for respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the 
effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the 
cash flows fixed or determined by the contract. 

• Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not 
been received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is 
recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the 
balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the 
income that might not be collected.  The County Council has a policy of 

Page 48



 

  

not accruing for manual sundry creditor or sundry debtor provisions for 
less than £1,000 other than in exceptional circumstances. 

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions 
repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours.  Cash 
equivalents are investments that mature in no more than three months or less 
from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts 
of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.  In the Cash Flow Statement, 
cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are 
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the County Council’s cash 
management. 

4. Exceptional Items 

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is 
disclosed separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the accounts, depending on how 
significant the items are to an understanding of the County Council’s financial 
performance. 

5. Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and 
Estimates and Errors 

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting 
policies or to correct a material error.  Changes in accounting estimates are 
accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected by the 
change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper 
accounting practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant 
information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on 
the County Council’s financial position or financial performance.  Where a 
change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by 
adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if 
the new policy had always been applied. 

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively 
by amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 

6. Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets 

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following 
amounts to record the cost of holding fixed assets during the year: 

• Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service.  

• Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where 
there are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which 
the losses can be written off.  

• Amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service. 

The County Council is not required to raise Council Tax to fund depreciation, 
revaluation and impairment losses or amortisations.  However, it is required to 
make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction in its overall 

Page 49



 

  

borrowing requirement equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis 
determined by the council in accordance with statutory guidance.  

Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are 
therefore replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance (Minimum 
Revenue Provision), by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital 
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the 
difference between the two. 

7. Employee Benefits 

Benefits Payable During Employment 

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of 
the year-end. 

They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid 
sick leave, bonuses and nonmonetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current 
employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the year in 
which employees render service to the County Council.  An accrual is made 
for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. time off in lieu) 
earned by employees but not taken before the year end which employees can 
carry forward into the next financial year.  The accrual is made at the wage 
and salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the period 
in which the employee takes the benefit.  The accrual is charged to Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the 
Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to 
revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs. 

Termination Benefits 

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the 
County Council to terminate an officer’s employment before the normal 
retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy and 
are charged on an accruals basis to the Non Distributed Costs line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the County Council 
is demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment of an officer 
or group of officers or making an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy.  
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory 
provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount 
payable by the County Council to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, 
not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.  In 
the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from 
the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension 
enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash 
paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but 
unpaid at the year end. 

Post Employment Benefits 

Employees of the County Council are members of two separate pension 
schemes: 

• The Local Government Pensions Scheme, administered by Durham 
County Council. 

Page 50



 

  

• The Teachers’ Pension Scheme, administered by Capita Teachers’ 
Pensions on behalf of the Department for Education (DfE). 

Both schemes provided defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums 
and pensions), earned as employees worked for the County Council. 

However, the arrangements for the teachers’ scheme mean that liabilities for 
these benefits cannot ordinarily be identified specifically to the County 
Council.  The scheme is therefore accounted for as if it were a defined 
contribution scheme and no liability for future payments of benefits is 
recognised in the Balance Sheet.  The Children’s and Education Services line 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is charged with the 
employer’s contributions payable to Teachers’ Pensions in the year. 

The Local Government Pension Scheme 

The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits 
scheme: 

• The liabilities of the Durham County Council pension fund attributable to 
the County Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial 
basis using the projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of the future 
payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to 
date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, 
employee turnover rates, etc, and projections of projected earnings for 
current employees. 

• Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount 
rate of [5.50% subject to information from the Fund’s Actuary] (based on 
the indicative rate of return on high quality corporate bond Aon Hewitt UK 
Corporate AA Curve – Swaps Extrapolation. 

• The assets of Durham County Council pension fund attributable to the 
County Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value: 

1. quoted securities – current bid price. 

2. unquoted securities – professional estimate. 

3. unitised securities – current bid price. 

4. property – market value. 

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components: 

1. Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of 
service earned this year – allocated in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement to the services for which the employees worked. 

2. Past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year 
decisions whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – 
debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non 
Distributed Costs. 

3. Interest cost – the expected increase in the present value of liabilities 
during the year as they move one year closer to being paid – debited to 

Page 51



 

  

the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

4. Expected return on assets – the expected annual investment return on the 
fund assets attributable to the County Council, based on an average of the 
expected long-term return – credited to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 

5. gains or losses on settlements and curtailments – the result of actions to 
relieve the County Council of liabilities or events that reduce the expected 
future service or accrual of benefits of employees – debited or credited to 
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs. 

6. Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise 
because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last 
actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated their 
assumptions – debited to the Pensions Reserve. 

7. Contributions paid to the Durham County Council pension fund – cash paid 
as employer’s contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; 
not accounted for as an expense. 

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General 
Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the County 
Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the 
amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.  In the 
Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are 
appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional 
debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for 
the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts 
payable but unpaid at the year-end.  The negative balance that arises on 
the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the 
General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the 
basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees. 

Discretionary Benefits 

The County Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards 
of retirement benefits in the event of early retirements.  Any liabilities 
estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff (including 
teachers) are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and 
accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government 
Pension Scheme. 

8. Events After the Reporting Period 

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and 
unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date 
when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue.  Two types of events 
can be identified: 

• Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the 
reporting period - the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such 
events. 

Page 52



 

  

• Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period 
- the Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but 
where a category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is 
made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial 
effect. 

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in 
the Statement of Accounts. 

9. Financial Instruments 

Financial Liabilities 

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the County 
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument 
and are initially measured at fair value and are carried at their amortised cost.  
Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable 
are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective 
rate of interest for the instrument.  The effective interest rate is the rate that 
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of the 
instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised. 

For most of the borrowings that the County Council has, this means that the 
amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable 
(plus accrued interest); and interest charged to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year according to 
the loan agreement. 

Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are 
credited and debited to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 
the year of repurchase/settlement.  However, where repurchase has taken 
place as part of a restructuring of the loan portfolio that involves the 
modification or exchange of existing instruments, the premium or discount is 
respectively deducted from or added to the amortised cost of the new or 
modified loan and the write-down to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is spread over the life of the loan by an adjustment to 
the effective interest rate. 

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement, regulations allow the impact on the 
General Fund Balance to be spread over future years.  The County Council 
has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the term that was remaining on 
the loan against which the premium was payable or discount receivable when 
it was repaid.  The reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement to the net charge required against the 
General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial 
Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

Financial Assets 

Financial assets are classified into two types: 

• Loans and receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable payments 
but are not quoted in an active market. 

Page 53



 

  

• Available-for-sale assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/or 
do not have fixed or determinable payments. 

Loans and Receivables 

Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the County 
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument 
and are initially measured at fair value.  They are subsequently measured at 
their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income 
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the 
asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument.  For most of 
the loans that the County Council has made, this means that the amount 
presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus 
accrued interest) and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan 
agreement. 

However, the County Council has made a number of loans to voluntary 
organisations at less than market rates (soft loans).  When soft loans are 
made, and amounts are material, a loss is recorded in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement (debited to the appropriate service) for the 
present value of the interest that will be foregone over the life of the 
instrument, resulting in a lower amortised cost than the outstanding principal. 
Interest is credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at a marginally 
higher effective rate of interest than the rate receivable from the voluntary 
organisations, with the difference serving to increase the amortised cost of the 
loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions require that the impact of soft 
loans on the General Fund Balance is the interest receivable for the financial 
year – the reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the net gain required 
against the General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the 
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. 

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a 
past event that payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is 
written down and a charge made to the relevant service (for receivables 
specific to that service) or the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
The impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying 
amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at 
the asset’s original effective interest rate. 

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited 
or debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Available-for-Sale Assets 

Available-for-sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the 
County Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial 
instrument and are initially measured and carried at fair value.  Where the 

Page 54



 

  

asset has fixed or determinable payments, annual credits to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the amortised cost 
of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. 
Where there are no fixed or determinable payments, income (e.g. dividends) 
is credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when it 
becomes receivable by the County Council. 

Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value.  Values are based 
on the following principles: 

• Instruments with quoted market prices – the market price. 

• Other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted 
cash flow analysis. 

• Equity shares with no quoted market prices – independent appraisal of 
company valuations. 

Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the Available-for-Sale 
Reserve and the gain/loss is recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on 
Revaluation of Available-for-Sale Financial Assets.  The exception is where 
impairment losses have been incurred – these are debited to the Financing 
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement, along with any net gain or loss for the asset 
accumulated in the Available-for-Sale Reserve. 

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a 
past event that payments due under the contract will not be made (fixed or 
determinable payments) or fair value falls below cost, the asset is written 
down and a charge made to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  If 
the asset has fixed or determinable payments, the impairment loss is 
measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present 
value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original 
effective interest rate.  Otherwise, the impairment loss is measured as any 
shortfall of fair value against the acquisition cost of the instrument (net of any 
principal repayment and amortisation). 

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited 
or debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, along with any 
accumulated gains or losses previously recognised in the Available-for-Sale 
Reserve. 

Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost 
(less any impairment losses). 

10. Foreign Currency Translation 

Where the County Council has entered into a transaction denominated in a 
foreign currency, the transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange 
rate applicable on the date the transaction was effective.  Where amounts in 
foreign currency are outstanding at the year-end, they are reconverted at the 
spot exchange rate at 31 March.  Resulting gains or losses are recognised in 

Page 55



 

  

the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

11. Government Grants and Contributions 

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and 
third party contributions and donations are recognised as due to the County 
Council when there is reasonable assurance that: 

• the County Council will comply with the conditions attached to the 
payments, and 

• the grants or contributions will be received. 

Amounts recognised as due to the County Council are not credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached 
to the grant or contribution have been satisfied.  Conditions are stipulations 
that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in 
the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be 
consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service 
potential must be returned to the transferor.  

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not 
been satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors.  When conditions 
are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line 
(attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific 
Grant Income (non-ringfenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in 
the Movement in Reserves Statement.  Where the grant has yet to be used to 
finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied 
reserve.  Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment 
Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to 
the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital 
expenditure. 

12. Heritage Assets 

Tangible and Intangible Heritage Assets  
A tangible heritage asset is defined as a tangible asset with historical, artistic, 
scientific, technological, geophysical or environmental qualities that is held 
and maintained principally for its contribution to knowledge and culture. 
An intangible heritage asset is defined as an intangible asset with cultural, 
environmental, or historical significance. Examples of intangible heritage 
assets include recordings of significant historical events 
 
Recognition and measurement 
A key feature of heritage assets is that they have cultural, environmental or 
historical associations that make their preservation for future generations 
important.  Heritage assets are maintained principally for their contribution to 
knowledge and culture.  Where an asset meets the definition of a heritage 
asset but is used for operational purposes, it is not classified as a heritage 
asset.  For example, a historic building used as a museum is classified within 

Page 56



 

  

land and buildings, as this is its primary purpose, but the exhibits within it may 
be classified as heritage. 
 
Heritage assets are recognised and measured (including the treatment of 
revaluation gains and losses) in accordance with the County Council’s 
accounting policies on property, plant and equipment.  However, some of the 
measurement rules are relaxed in relation to heritage assets and the County 
Council’s approach is as follows: 

• Heritage assets valuations are based on insurance values, where 
available, as this is the most appropriate and relevant basis.  In some 
cases, these values are supported by professional valuations, for example 
by auction houses. 

• Insurance values are reviewed regularly and assets will be revalued where 
a change is deemed to be significant. 

• In the absence of insurance values, for example where an asset is either 
not insured or is self-insured, the asset’s most recent valuation before 
reclassification is used.  This is usually historic cost but some buildings 
and monuments were measured on an existing use value (EUV) basis 
prior to reclassification. 

• Where no appropriate valuation is available, heritage assets are not 
disclosed on the balance sheet, however they are disclosed in the 
narrative notes to the financial statements. 

Items are recognised on the balance sheet where they are held by the County 
Council on long-term loan or where the County Council has the risks and 
rewards of ownership, as evidenced by the need to insure them.  Similarly, 
items that the County Council has lent out long-term are not recognised.  
Items held on short-term loan, for example for temporary exhibitions, are not 
recognised. 

The County Council is custodian or guardian of a number of monuments or 
sites.  These are recognised as heritage assets; however they do not usually 
have any appropriate valuation so they are not recognised on the balance 
sheet. 
 
The County Council’s collections of heritage assets are accounted for as 
follows: 
 
Museum Collections and Artefacts 
This includes museum exhibits and items such as books of remembrance and 
miners banners.  They are reported in the balance sheet at insurance value. 
 
Artwork, including Public Art and Sculptures 
This includes paintings, sculptures and outdoor public art installations around 
the county.  Some items in this collection are reported at insurance value, 
others at cost and there are a number for which no value is available so they 
are not reported on the balance sheet.   
 

Page 57



 

  

The distinction between sculptures, monuments and statues can be 
subjective, however for the purposes of classification the County Council has 
determined that sculptures are generally modern, commissioned pieces of art, 
monuments can be modern or historic and are usually dedicated to people or 
events and statues are usually historical structures.  Monuments and statues 
are included under the heading “Monuments, Statues and Historic Buildings” 
below. 
 
Monuments, Statues and Historic Buildings 
This includes war and colliery memorials, statues and non-operational historic 
buildings around the county.  Some items in this collection are reported at 
insurance value, some at existing use value and some at cost.  There are a 
number for which no value is available and are not reported on the balance 
sheet. 
 
Civic Regalia and Silverware 
This includes civic chains, badges of office and silverware used for civic 
purposes, and are recorded at insurance value. 
 
Geophysical / Archaeological 
This includes pit wheel sites and roman archaeological sites.  No appropriate 
or relevant valuations are available for these assets so they are not 
recognised on the balance sheet. 
 
Depreciation 
Depreciation is not charged on heritage assets which have indefinite lives 
. 
Impairment 
The carrying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed where there is 
evidence of impairment for heritage assets, e.g. where an item has suffered 
physical deterioration or breakage or where doubts arise as to its authenticity. 
Any impairment is recognised and measured in accordance with the County 
Council’s general policies on impairment. 
 
Disposal 
Heritage assets are rarely disposed of.  However, in such cases, disposal 
proceeds are accounted for in accordance with the County Council’s general 
provisions relating to the disposal of property, plant and equipment.  Proceeds 
are disclosed separately in the notes to the financial statements and are 
accounted for in accordance with statutory accounting requirements relating to 
capital expenditure and capital receipts 

13. Intangible Assets 

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but 
are controlled by the County Council as a result of past events (e.g. software 
licences) is capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits or 
service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the County Council.  

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the 
project is technically feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate 
resources being available) and the County Council will be able to generate 

Page 58



 

  

future economic benefits or deliver service potential by being able to sell or 
use the asset.  Expenditure is capitalised where it can be measured reliably 
as attributable to the asset and is restricted to that incurred during the 
development phase (research expenditure cannot be capitalised). Expenditure 
on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or 
primarily intended to promote or advertise the County Council’s goods or 
services. 

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost.  Amounts are only revalued 
where the fair value of the assets held by the County Council can be 
determined by reference to an active market.  In practice, no intangible asset 
held by the County Council meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried 
at amortised cost.  The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised 
over its useful life to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement.  An asset is tested for impairment whenever 
there is an indication that the asset might be impaired – any losses 
recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement.  Any gain or loss arising on the disposal 
or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for 
statutory purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and 
losses are not permitted to have an impact on the General Fund Balance.  
The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance 
in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment 
Account and the Capital Receipts Reserve. 

14. Interests in Companies and Other Entities 

The Code requires local authorities to produce group accounts to reflect 
significant activities provided to Council taxpayers by other organisations in 
which an authority has an interest.  The County Council has reviewed its 
interests in companies and other entities that have the nature of subsidiaries, 
associates and jointly controlled entities against the criteria for group accounts 
as set out in the Code and has concluded that there are no such material 
interests that require the preparation of group accounts.  In the County 
Council’s own single-entity accounts, the interests in companies and other 
entities are recorded as financial assets at cost, less any provision for losses. 

15. Inventories and Long Term Contracts 

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value.  The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted 
average costing formula. 

Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services with the value of works and services 
received under the contract during the financial year. 

16. Investment Property 

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for 
capital appreciation.  The definition is not met if the property is used in any 

Page 59



 

  

way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods or is held for 
sale.  

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair 
value, based on the amount at which the asset could be exchanged between 
knowledgeable parties at arm’s-length.  Properties are not depreciated but are 
revalued annually according to market conditions at the year-end.  

Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement.  The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.  

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the 
Financing and Investment Income line and result in a gain for the General 
Fund Balance.  However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not 
permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund 
Balance.  The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General 
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the 
Capital Adjustment Account and the Capital Receipts Reserve. 

17. Jointly Controlled Operations and Jointly Controlled Assets 

Jointly controlled operations are activities undertaken by the County Council in 
conjunction with other venturers that involve the use of the assets and 
resources of the venturers rather than the establishment of a separate entity.  
The County Council recognises on its Balance Sheet the assets that it 
controls and the liabilities that it incurs and debits and credits the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement with the expenditure it 
incurs and the share of income it earns from the activity of the operation. 

Jointly controlled assets are items of property, plant or equipment that are 
jointly controlled by the County Council and other venturers, with the assets 
being used to obtain benefits for the venturers.  The joint venture does not 
involve the establishment of a separate entity.  The County Council accounts 
for only its share of the jointly controlled assets, the liabilities and expenses 
that it incurs on its own behalf or jointly with others in respect of its interest in 
the joint venture and income that it earns from the venture. 

18. Leases 

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, 
plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee.  All other leases are 
classified as operating leases. 

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings 
elements are considered separately for classification. 

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to 
use an asset in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where 
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets. 

The County Council as Lessee 

Finance Leases 

Page 60



 

  

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the 
Balance Sheet at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured 
at the lease’s inception (or the present value of the minimum lease payments, 
if lower).  The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to 
pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the County Council are added to the 
carrying amount of the asset.  Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied 
to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses 
in the periods in which they are incurred. 

Lease payments are apportioned between: 

• a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or 
equipment - applied to write down the lease liability, and  

• a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement). 

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted 
for using the policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation 
being charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated 
useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the County 
Council at the end of the lease period). 

The County Council is not required to raise Council Tax to cover depreciation 
or revaluation and impairment losses arising on leased assets.  Instead, a 
prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds towards the deemed 
capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements.  Depreciation 
and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue 
contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction 
with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement 
for the difference between the two. 

Operating Leases 

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefitting 
from use of the leased property, plant or equipment.  Charges are made on a 
straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the 
pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent-free period at the commencement of 
the lease). 

The County Council as Lessor 

Finance Leases 

Where the County Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of 
plant or equipment, the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a 
disposal.  At the commencement of the lease, the carrying amount of the 
asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets 
Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss 
on disposal.  A gain, representing the County Council’s net investment in the 
lease, is credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted 

Page 61



 

  

off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by 
a lease (long-term debtor) asset in the Balance Sheet. 

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between: 

• a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property - applied to write 
down the lease debtor (together with any premiums received), and  

• finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement). 

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
on disposal is not permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance 
and is required to be treated as a capital receipt.  Where a premium has been 
received, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital 
Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  Where the 
amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of 
rentals in future financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund 
Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement.  When the future rentals are received, the element for 
the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used to write down the lease 
debtor.  At this point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the 
Capital Receipts Reserve. 

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against Council Tax, as the 
cost of non-current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements 
for capital financing.  Amounts are therefore appropriated to the Capital 
Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. 

Operating Leases 

Where the County Council grants an operating lease over a property or an 
item of plant or equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet.  Rental 
income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  Credits are made on a 
straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the 
pattern of payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of 
the lease).  Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease 
are added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an 
expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. 

19. Overheads and Support Services 

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit 
from the supply or service in accordance with the costing principles of the 
CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice 2012/13 (SeRCOP).  The total 
absorption costing principle is used - the full cost of overheads and support 
services are shared between users in proportion to the benefits received, with 
the exception of: 

• Corporate and Democratic Core - costs relating to the Council’s status as 
a multifunctional, democratic organisation. 

Page 62



 

  

• Non Distributed Costs - the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to 
employees retiring early and impairment losses chargeable on Assets 
Held for Sale. 

These two cost categories are defined in SeRCOP and accounted for as 
separate headings in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, 
as part of Net Expenditure on Continuing Services. 

20. Property, Plant and Equipment 

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or 
supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes 
and that are expected to be used during more than one financial year are 
classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. 

Recognition 

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant 
and Equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable 
that the future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item 
will flow to the County Council and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to 
deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and 
maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred. 

Measurement 

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 

• the purchase price; 

• any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 
management; 

• the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and 
restoring the site on which it is located. 

The County Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets 
are under construction. 

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair 
value, unless the acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will 
not lead to a variation in the cash flows of the County Council). In the latter 
case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition 
is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the County Council. 

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value.  The difference between 
fair value and any consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-
Specific Grant Income line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, unless the donation has been made conditionally.  Until conditions 
are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account.  Where gains 
are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they 
are reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment 
Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following 
measurement bases: 

Page 63



 

  

• Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction – 
depreciated historical cost. 

• Dwellings – fair value, determined using the basis of existing use value for 
social housing (EUV-SH); and 

• All other assets – fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid 
for the asset in its existing use (existing use value – EUV). 

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the 
specialist nature of an asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as 
an estimate of fair value. 

Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), 
depreciated historical cost basis is used as a proxy for fair value. 

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently 
regularly to ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from 
their fair value at the year-end, but as a minimum every five years.  Increases 
in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise 
unrealised gains.  Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise from the 
reversal of a loss previously charged to a service. 

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: 

• Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the 
Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down 
against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains). 

• Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient 
balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the 
relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 
2007 only, the date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that 
date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account. 

Impairment 

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication 
that an asset may be impaired.  Where indications exist and any possible 
differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset 
is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an 
impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 

• Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the 
Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down 
against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains). 

• Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient 
balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the 
relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 

Page 64



 

  

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited 
to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that 
would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by 
the systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. 
An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. 
freehold land and certain Community Assets) and assets that are not yet 
available for use (i.e. assets under construction). 

Deprecation is calculated on the following bases: 

• Dwellings and other buildings – straight-line allocation over the useful life 
of the property as estimated by the valuer up to a maximum of 50 years. 

• Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment – a percentage of the value of 
each class of assets in the Balance Sheet, as advised by a suitably 
qualified officer.  

• Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment – straight line allocation over the 
useful life of the asset as advised by a suitably qualified officer, mainly up 
to a maximum of 10 years, however, some specialised items are 
depreciated over up to 25 years. 

• Infrastructure – straight-line allocation over 40 years. 

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has a value greater than 
£5m and major components greater than 20% of the value of the asset, the 
components are depreciated separately at rates representative of their useful 
life. 

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the 
difference between current value depreciation charged on assets and the 
depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historical cost 
being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital 
Adjustment Account. 

21. Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale 

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be 
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through its 
continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale.  The asset is 
revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of 
this amount and fair value less costs to sell.  Where there is a subsequent 
decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other 
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any 
losses previously recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of 
Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.  

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, 
they are reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of 
their carrying amount before they were classified as held for sale; adjusted for 
depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised 

Page 65



 

  

had they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at 
the date of the decision not to sell. 

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets 
Held for Sale. 

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the 
asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets 
Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss 
on disposal.  Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the 
gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset 
at the time of disposal).  Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in 
the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. 

Amounts received for a disposal are categorised as capital receipts.  A 
proportion of receipts relating to housing disposals (75% for dwellings, 50% 
for land and other assets, net of statutory deductions and allowances) is 
payable to the Government.  The balance of receipts is required to be credited 
to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital 
investment or set aside to reduce the County Council’s underlying need to 
borrow (the capital financing requirement). Receipts are appropriated to the 
Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. 

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against Council Tax, as the 
cost of non-current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements 
for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment 
Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. 

22. Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and Similar Contracts 

PFI and similar contracts are agreements to receive services, where the 
responsibility for making available the property, plant and equipment needed 
to provide the services passes to the PFI contractor.  As the County Council is 
deemed to control the services that are provided under its PFI schemes, and 
as ownership of the property, plant and equipment will pass to the Council at 
the end of the contracts for no additional charge, the County Council carries 
the assets used under the contracts on its Balance Sheet as part of Property, 
Plant and Equipment. 

The original recognition of these assets at fair value (based on the cost to 
purchase the property, plant and equipment) was balanced by the recognition 
of a liability for amounts due to the scheme operator to pay for the capital 
investment.  

For the BSF Schools PFI Project, the liability was written down by an initial 
capital contribution of £0.270m. 

Non-current assets recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and 
depreciated in the same way as property, plant and equipment owned by the 
County Council.  The amounts payable to the PFI operators each year are 
analysed into five elements: 

Page 66



 

  

• Fair value of the services received during the year – debited to the 
relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 

• Finance cost – an interest charge of 10.15% on the outstanding Balance 
Sheet liability, debited to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 

• Contingent rent – increases in the amount to be paid for the property 
arising during the contract, debited to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 

• Payment towards liability – applied to write down the Balance Sheet 
liability towards the PFI operator (the profile of write-downs is calculated 
using the same principles as for a finance lease). 

• Lifecycle replacement costs – proportion of the amounts payable is posted 
to the Balance Sheet as a prepayment and then recognised as additions 
to Property, Plant and Equipment when the relevant works are eventually 
carried out. 

23. Provisions 

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the County 
Council a legal or constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by 
a transfer of economic benefits or service potential and a reliable estimate can 
be made of the amount of the obligation.  For example, the County Council 
may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the making of a 
settlement or the payment of compensation. 

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the 
County Council becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the 
best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle 
the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties. 

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision 
carried in the Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end 
of each financial year - where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of 
economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated 
is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service. 

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to 
be recovered from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only 
recognised as income for the relevant service if it is virtually certain that 
reimbursement will be received if the County Council settles the obligation. 

24. Landfill Allowance Schemes 

Landfill allowances, whether allocated by DEFRA or purchased from another 
Waste Disposal Authority (WDA) are recognised as current assets and are 
initially measured at fair value. Landfill allowances allocated by DEFRA are 
accounted for as a government grant. 

Page 67



 

  

After initial recognition, allowances are measured at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value.  

As landfill is used, a liability and an expense are recognised. The liability is 
discharged either by surrendering allowances or by payment of a cash penalty 
to DEFRA (or by a combination).  The liability is measured at the best 
estimate of the expenditure required to meet the obligation, normally the 
market price of the number of allowances required to meet the liability at the 
reporting date.  However, where some of the obligation will be met by paying 
a cash penalty to DEFRA, that part of its liability is measured at the cost of the 
penalty. 

25. Contingent Liabilities 

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the 
County Council a possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed 
by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the 
control of the County Council.  Contingent liabilities also arise in 
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the 
obligation cannot be measured reliably. 

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in 
a note to the accounts. 

26. Contingent Assets 

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the 
County Council a possible asset whose existence will only be confirmed by 
the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the 
control of the County Council. 

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a 
note to the accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of 
economic benefits or service potential. 

27. Reserves 

The County Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy 
purposes or to cover contingencies.  Reserves are created by appropriating 
amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement.  When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is 
charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement.  The reserve is then appropriated back into the 
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there 
is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure.  

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-
current assets, financial instruments, retirement and employee benefits and 
do not represent usable resources for the County Council - these reserves are 
explained in the relevant policies. 

28. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory 
provisions but that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has 

Page 68



 

  

been charged as expenditure to the relevant service in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the County Council 
has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital 
resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement 
from the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then 
reverses out the amounts charged so that there is no impact on the level of 
Council Tax. 

29. Value Added Tax (VAT) 

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not 
recoverable from HM Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded 
from income. 

30. Carbon Reduction Commitment Allowances 

The County Council is required to participate in the Carbon Reduction 
Commitment (CRC) Energy Efficiency Scheme.  This scheme is currently in 
its introductory phase which will last until 31 March 2014.  The County Council 
is required to purchase and surrender allowances, currently retrospectively, 
on the basis of emissions i.e. carbon dioxide produced as energy is used. As 
carbon dioxide is emitted (i.e. as energy is used), a liability and an expense 
are recognised.  The liability will be discharged by surrendering allowances.  
The liability is measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to 
meet the obligation, normally at the current market price of the number of 
allowances required to meet the liability at the reporting date.  The cost to the 
County Council is recognised and reported in the costs of the County 
Council’s services and is apportioned to services on the basis of energy 
consumption. 

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Audit Committee 
 

4 April 2013 
 

Final Accounts Timetable for the year 
ended 31 March 2013 

 

 

 
 

Don McLure, Corporate Director Resources 

 
 
Purpose of the Report 

 
1 The purpose of the report is to provide Members with the Final Accounts 

Timetable for 2012/13.  This timetable details the deadlines for key actions to 
complete the Statement of Accounts in line with statutory deadlines. 

2 The report is presented in accordance with paragraph 4.2.3 of the 
Committee’s operational terms of reference which requires it ‘to maintain an 
understanding of internal and external reporting requirements’. 

3 The Final Accounts Timetable is attached at Appendix 2. 

Background  

 
4 The ‘Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011’ introduced a two stage approval 

process for the Statement of Accounts; the first stage is in June each year. 
The Regulations require that the responsible financial officer, by no later than 
30 June, signs and certifies that the Statement of Accounts presents a true 
and fair view of the financial position of the County Council for the year to 31 
March previous, subject to the views of the External Auditor.   

5 The second stage, as set out in the Regulations, requires that on or before the 
30 September, approval needs to be given to the Statement of Accounts by 
resolution of a committee, which for Durham County Council is the Audit 
Committee.  This approval will take into account the views of the External 
Auditor.  This is done so that the Statement of Accounts can then be 
published. 

6 In order to ensure that the County Council can meet these statutory 
deadlines, the process of ‘closing the accounts’ must be closely managed and 
monitored. 

7 The Annual Governance Report (AGR) for 2010/11 produced by External 
Audit recommended that the County Council  

“Ensure closedown arrangements are managed against a close down plan, 
clearly identifying roles, responsibilities and target dates.” 

Agenda Item 8

Page 71



8 The Final Accounts timetable is therefore a combination of the implementation 
of External Audit’s recommendations and a tool for the effective management 
and monitoring of the final accounts process. 

The Timetable 

9 Each year the timetable is compiled in Strategic Finance with input from 
Service Groupings to ensure that deadlines are achievable and will lead to 
completion of a Statement of Accounts for signing by the Section 151 Officer 
by 30 June.  The impact of new and amended processes upon achievement 
of deadlines is considered, as well as reference to the previous year’s 
problems and meeting of deadlines. 

10 Strategic Finance monitors the achievement of the dates in the timetable 
throughout the period February to September.  Although every effort is made 
to meet every deadline set, there will inevitably be some delays that will lead 
to some of the deadlines being missed.  

11 Strategic Finance will follow up all delays and missed deadlines to ensure that 
the overall timetable will be achieved and identify improvements that can be 
made to the following year’s Final Accounts process. 

12 Final Accounts Monitoring Meetings are also held each week during April to 
May to ensure that practitioners apply accounting procedures consistently; 
best practice is shared; there is a shared understanding of any difficulties or 
delays that are happening and to disseminate updated information quickly and 
consistently.  These meetings are not shown in the timetable, but happen 
each Thursday. 

13 This was the process that was in operation for the closedown of 2011/12 
Accounts, which successfully produced the Statement of Accounts in line with 
the statutory deadline.  However, the intention is to improve performance. 

14 The production of the working papers were of particular concern in the AGR 
for 2011/12 and the deadline for the production of these has been included in 
the timetable. 

15 Another area of concern was the lack of time to complete an effective 
analytical review of the Statement of Accounts.  Being able to do this should 
reduce the number of errors.  Time for undertaking an analytical review has 
been built into this timetable, which necessitated changes to the deadlines set 
for 2011/12. 

 
Recommendations and reasons 

16 Members are asked to note the Final Accounts Timetable for 2012/13 detailed 
in Appendix 2. 

 

Contact:  Hilary Appleton  Tel: 03000 266239  

Page 72



 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

 
Finance –   
There are no direct financial implications arising for the Council as a result of this 
report, although by implementing the timetable, we are demonstrating efficient 
arrangements for the proper administration of the County Council’s financial affairs 
and will meet the statutory deadline for the production of the Statement of Accounts. 
 
Staffing -  

None 

 

Risk -  

This report requires no decision and so a risk assessment has not been carried out 

 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty - 

None 

 

Accommodation -  

None 

 

Crime and Disorder -  

None 

 

Human Rights -  

None 

 

Consultation -  

None 

 

Procurement -  

None 

 

Disability Discrimination Act -  

None 

 

Legal Implications -  

None 

Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

K
E

Y
K

E
Y

 t
o

 '
D

e
la

y
 i

n
 d

a
y

s'

F
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

- 
R

e
v
e

n
u

e
s 

a
n

d
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

 w
it

h
in

 :

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n

ce
 -

 C
a

p
it

a
l

5
 d

a
y
s 

o
f 

ta
rg

e
t

F
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

- 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
5

 t
o

 1
0

 d
a

y
s 

o
f 

ta
rg

e
t

P
a

y
ro

ll
o

v
e

r 
1

0
 d

a
y
s 

la
te

C
re

d
it

o
rs

 T
e

a
m

Q
u

e
ri

e
s

T
a
s
k

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

D
e
la
y
 i
n
 d
a
y
s
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
3

1
P
re
p
a
re
 d
ra
ft
 t
im
e
ta
b
le
 -
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
b
y
 F
S
P

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/H
A

T
u
e
 2
2
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
3

M
o
n
 2
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
3

-1

2
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
IC
T
 -
 E
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 s
u
rv
e
y

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/D
H

F
ri
 2
5
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
3

F
ri
 2
5
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
3

0

3
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 -
 E
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 s
u
rv
e
y

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/D
H

F
ri
 2
5
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
3

F
ri
 2
5
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
3

0

4
P
re
p
a
re
 M
a
tr
ix
 a
n
d
 s
u
b
m
it
 t
o
  
E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
G
ro
u
p
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/D
H

T
u
e
 2
9
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
0
3

5
P
re
p
a
re
  
G
u
id
a
n
c
e
 N
o
te
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C

T
h
u
 3
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
3

T
h
u
 3
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
3

0

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
3

6
 F
in
a
l 
ti
m
e
ta
b
le
 i
s
s
u
e
d
  

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/H
A
/I
H
/A
C

F
ri
 0
1
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3

F
ri
 0
1
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3

0

7
Is
s
u
e
 o
f 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 n
o
te
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/A
C

F
ri
 0
1
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3

F
ri
 0
1
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3

0

8
R
e
v
ie
w
 T
h
e
 C
o
d
e
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H

F
ri
 0
8
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3

W
e
d
 0
8
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
2

-3
6
6

9
Is
s
u
e
 o
f 
in
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 v
a
lu
e
r

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H

F
ri
 0
8
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3

S
u
n
 1
0
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3

2

1
0
L
ia
is
e
 w
it
h
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 (
M
a
z
a
rs
) 
to
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
G
ro
u
p
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/D
H

F
ri
 1
5
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
2
0

1
1
Is
s
u
e
 B
a
la
n
c
e
 S
h
e
e
t 
R
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
ri
o
d
 e
n
d
in
g
 3
1
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C

F
ri
 1
5
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3

T
u
e
 1
9
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3

4

1
2
R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 V
e
h
ic
le
s
, 
P
la
n
t 
a
n
d
 E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
s
s
e
ts
 (
n
o
n
-l
a
n
d
 a
n
d
 b
u
ild
in
g
) 

a
n
d
 I
n
ta
n
g
ib
le
 A
s
s
e
ts
 f
ro
m
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
a
d
d
it
io
n
s
, 
d
is
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 c
o
s
t 
c
e
n
tr
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 A
p
r 
- 
D
e
c
)

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H

F
ri
 1
5
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3

F
ri
 1
5
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3

0

1
3
R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
F
lo
o
r 
A
re
a
s
 o
f 
A
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
v
e
 B
u
ild
in
g
s

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
/A
B

F
ri
 1
5
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3

M
o
n
 1
7
 D
e
c
 2
0
1
2

-6
0

1
4
R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
A
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
ta
ff
 T
im
e
 i
n
 C
e
n
tr
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
/A
B

F
ri
 1
5
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3

M
o
n
 1
7
 D
e
c
 2
0
1
2

-6
0

1
5
R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
-A
c
ti
v
it
y
 o
v
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
/A
B

F
ri
 1
5
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3

M
o
n
 1
7
 D
e
c
 2
0
1
2

-6
0

1
6
R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
C
h
a
rg
e
 t
o
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
n
d
 D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 C
o
re

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
/A
B

F
ri
 1
5
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3

M
o
n
 1
7
 D
e
c
 2
0
1
2

-6
0

1
7
T
e
m
p
la
te
 f
ro
m
 A
c
tu
a
ry
 r
e
 I
A
S
 1
9
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 b
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
c
tu
a
ry
/A
M
/P
E
T

F
ri
 2
2
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3

M
o
n
 0
4
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3

-1
8

1
8
R
u
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 a
u
to
m
a
ti
c
 a
c
c
ru
a
ls
 i
n
 O
ra
c
le
 f
o
r 
re
v
ie
w

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C
/D
H

F
ri
 2
2
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
2
7

1
9
R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
'A
s
s
e
ts
 H
e
ld
 f
o
r 
S
a
le
' d
e
ta
ils

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H

F
ri
 2
2
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
2
7

2
0
T
ra
in
in
g
 -
 A
tt
e
n
d
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 (
M
a
z
a
rs
) 
W
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/A
C
/A
Z
H

W
e
d
 2
7
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
3
2

2
1
O
b
ta
in
 A
g
e
d
 D
e
b
t 
R
e
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 M
R
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
 b
a
d
 d
e
b
t 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C
/D
H

T
h
u
 2
8
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
3
3

2
2
L
is
t 
o
f 
'A
s
s
e
ts
 H
e
ld
 f
o
r 
S
a
le
' t
o
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e

A
s
s
e
t 
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m

T
h
u
 2
8
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
3
3

D
u

rh
a

m
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il

T
im

e
ta

b
le

 Y
e

a
r 

E
n

d
 2

0
1

2
/1

3

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 D
a

te
s

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

Page 75



T
a
s
k

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

D
e
la
y
 i
n
 d
a
y
s
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 D
a

te
s

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

2
3

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 A
s
s
e
t 
V
a
lu
e
s
 -
 L
a
n
d
 a
n
d
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
, 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
D
w
e
lli
n
g
s
, 
In
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
P
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
, 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
s
s
e
ts
 -
 

th
is
 m
e
a
n
s
 a
ll 
tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
in
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 (
R
e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
s
 (
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 1
 A
p
ri
l)
, 
Im
p
a
ir
m
e
n
ts
 (
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 3
1
 

M
a
rc
h
),
 p
lu
s
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
s

A
s
s
e
t 
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m

T
h
u
 2
8
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
3
3

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3

2
4
L
a
s
t 
F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 n
o
n
-S
c
h
o
o
ls
 P
e
tt
y
 C
a
s
h
 t
o
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 -
 C
re
d
it
o
rs
 T
e
a
m

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

T
u
e
 0
5
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
3
8

2
5
C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
T
e
m
p
la
te
 f
o
r 
IA
S
 1
9
 t
o
 s
e
n
d
 t
o
 A
c
tu
a
ry
 (
fo
rm

e
rl
y
 F
R
S
 1
7
)

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/P
E
T
/P
e
n
s
io
n
s
/N
O

T
u
e
 0
5
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
3
8

2
6
E
s
ti
m
a
te
s
 o
f 
fu
ll 
y
e
a
r 
e
le
c
tr
ic
it
y
 a
n
d
 g
a
s
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
ri
 0
8
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
4
1

2
7
Is
s
u
e
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
s
 o
f 
o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 d
e
b
to
r 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
e
n
tr
a
lly
 c
a
lc
u
la
te
d
 b
a
d
 d
e
b
t 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 a
s
 a
t 
e
n
d
 

o
f 
F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 f
o
r 
re
v
ie
w
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C
/D
H

F
ri
 0
8
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
4
1

2
8
U
p
d
a
te
 s
p
re
a
d
s
h
e
e
ts
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
2
0
1
1
/1
2
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 l
e
a
s
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
L
a
n
d
 a
n
d
 

b
u
ild
in
g
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C

W
e
d
 1
3
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
4
6

2
9
B
a
la
n
c
e
 s
h
e
e
t 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 f
o
r 
J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
3

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

T
h
u
 1
4
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
4
7

3
0
R
e
tu
rn
 o
f 
F
lo
o
r 
A
re
a
s
 o
f 
A
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
v
e
 B
u
ild
in
g
s
 t
o
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
/A
B

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
ri
 1
5
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

M
o
n
 1
7
 D
e
c
 2
0
1
2

-8
8

3
1
R
e
tu
rn
 o
f 
A
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
ta
ff
 T
im
e
 i
n
 C
e
n
tr
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
/A
B

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
ri
 1
5
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

M
o
n
 1
7
 D
e
c
 2
0
1
2

-8
8

3
2
R
e
tu
rn
 o
f 
O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
-A
c
ti
v
it
y
 o
v
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
/A
B

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
ri
 1
5
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

M
o
n
 1
7
 D
e
c
 2
0
1
2

-8
8

3
3
R
e
tu
rn
 o
f 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 V
e
h
ic
le
s
, 
p
la
n
t 
a
n
d
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t,
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
s
s
e
ts
 (
n
o
n
-l
a
n
d
 a
n
d
 b
u
ild
in
g
) 
to
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 (
a
d
d
it
io
n
s
, 
d
is
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 c
o
s
t 
c
e
n
tr
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 A
p
r 
- 
D
e
c
)

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
ri
 1
5
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
4
8

3
4
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
L
o
o
m
is
 C
a
s
h
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
s

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
/P
A
D

T
u
e
 2
6
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
5
9

3
5
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
L
o
o
m
is
 C
a
s
h
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
s

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
/P
A
D

W
e
d
 2
7
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
0

3
6
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
L
o
o
m
is
 C
a
s
h
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
s

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
/P
A
D

T
h
u
 2
8
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
1

3
7
A
ll 
C
a
s
h
 p
o
s
te
d
 u
p
 t
o
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
 2
7
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
/P
A
D

T
h
u
 2
8
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
1

3
8
F
in
a
l 
p
o
s
ti
n
g
s
 b
y
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 (
5
 p
m
)

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
/P
A
D

T
h
u
 2
8
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
1

3
9
L
a
s
t 
p
a
y
s
h
e
e
t 
fo
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
re
d
it
o
rs
 T
e
a
m

T
h
u
 2
8
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
1

4
0
L
a
s
t 
d
a
y
 f
o
r 
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 n
o
n
-S
c
h
o
o
ls
 P
e
tt
y
 C
a
s
h
 t
o
 L
e
d
g
e
r

C
re
d
it
o
rs
 T
e
a
m
/S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/M
S

T
h
u
 2
8
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
1

4
1
A
ll 
s
to
c
k
 c
h
e
c
k
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
t 
2
8
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

T
h
u
 2
8
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
1

4
2
O
p
e
n
in
g
 o
f 
O
ra
c
le
 m
o
d
u
le
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
3
/1
4

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
y
s
te
m
s
/M
R

T
h
u
 2
8
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
1

4
3
L
a
s
t 
d
a
te
 f
o
r 
ru
n
n
in
g
 I
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
S
e
c
to
r 
P
a
y
s
h
e
e
t 
fo
r 
p
e
ri
o
d
 1
3

C
re
d
it
o
rs
 T
e
a
m

T
h
u
 2
8
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
1

4
4
S
e
n
d
in
g
 o
u
t 
R
e
la
te
d
 P
a
rt
y
 T
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
 D
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
 P
ro
-f
o
rm

a
 t
o
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 S
e
n
io
r 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 (
C
M
T
)

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 -
 D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

T
h
u
 2
8
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
1

4
5
A
ll 
a
m
o
u
n
ts
 b
a
n
k
e
d
 b
y
 2
8
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
c
e
ip
te
d
 i
n
 O
ra
c
le

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

T
h
u
 2
8
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
1

Page 76



T
a
s
k

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

D
e
la
y
 i
n
 d
a
y
s
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 D
a

te
s

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

4
6
L
a
s
t 
d
a
te
 f
o
r 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 t
o
 s
u
b
m
it
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
s
 t
o
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
F
u
n
d
in
g

S
c
h
o
o
ls

T
h
u
 2
8
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
1

4
7
O
p
e
n
in
g
 o
f 
a
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
t 
p
e
ri
o
d
 (
A
D
1
-1
3
) 
fo
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/M
S

T
h
u
 2
8
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
1

4
8
R
u
n
 A
R
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
s
h
 i
s
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
rr
e
c
t 
p
e
ri
o
d
s

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
y
s
te
m
s
/M
R

T
h
u
 2
8
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
1

4
9
C
a
s
h
 p
o
s
te
d
 f
o
r 
2
8
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 (
1
2
 n
o
o
n
)

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
/P
A
D

T
h
u
 2
8
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
1

5
0
P
M
 -
 O
p
e
n
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 c
lo
s
e
d
o
w
n
 (
a
ll 
u
s
e
rs
 d
is
c
o
n
n
e
c
t 
fr
o
m
 s
y
s
te
m
)

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
/P
A
D

T
h
u
 2
8
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
1

G
o
o
d
 F
ri
d
a
y

F
ri
 2
9
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3

E
a
s
te
r 
M
o
n
d
a
y

M
o
n
 0
1
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

5
1
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
y
s
te
m
s
 r
u
n
 D
e
b
to
rs
 r
e
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
B
a
d
 D
e
b
t 
P
ro
v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 c
ir
c
u
la
te
 t
o
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
y
s
te
m
s
 /
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C
/D
H

T
u
e
 0
2
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
6

5
2
R
u
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 a
u
to
m
a
ti
c
 a
c
c
ru
a
ls
 (
e
x
c
e
s
s
 r
e
c
e
ip
ti
n
g
) 
a
n
d
 i
s
s
u
e
 t
o
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
y
s
te
m
s
 /
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C
/D
H

T
u
e
 0
2
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
6

5
3
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
L
o
o
m
is
 C
a
s
h
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
/P
A
D

T
u
e
 0
2
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
6

5
4
Is
s
u
e
 o
f 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 S
ta
ff
 L
e
a
v
e
 S
u
rv
e
y

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/D
H

T
u
e
 0
2
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
6

5
5
M
R
P
 p
o
s
te
d
 (
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 L
e
a
s
e
 M
R
P
)

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H

T
u
e
 0
2
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
6

5
6
B
u
ild
in
g
 t
im
e
s
h
e
e
ts
 t
o
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 -
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt

T
u
e
 0
2
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
6

5
7
R
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 d
e
ta
ili
n
g
 a
ll 
C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 a
t 
3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3

P
a
y
ro
ll

T
u
e
 0
2
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
6

5
8
C
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 F
u
n
d
 (
C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 a
n
d
 N
N
D
R
) 
y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 (
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
c
o
n
tr
o
l,
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
a
g
e
d
 d
e
b
t,
 c
h
a
ri
ta
b
le
 

re
lie
f)
 t
o
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts

T
u
e
 0
2
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
6

5
9
L
a
s
t 
m
o
n
th
ly
 S
a
la
ri
e
s
 a
n
d
 W

a
g
e
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 i
n
 l
e
d
g
e
r

P
a
y
ro
ll/
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e

T
u
e
 0
2
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
6

6
0
L
a
s
t 
d
a
y
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 m
a
n
u
a
l 
re
c
e
ip
ts
 a
d
v
ic
e
 f
o
rm

s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 b
y
 I
n
c
o
m
e
 T
e
a
m

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

T
u
e
 0
2
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
6

6
1
D
a
ta
s
e
ts
 f
o
r 
R
a
il 
W
a
rr
a
n
ts
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 

P
a
y
ro
ll

T
u
e
 0
2
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
6

6
2
O
p
e
n
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 S
y
s
te
m
 c
lo
s
e
d
o
w
n
 (
a
ll 
u
s
e
rs
 r
e
c
o
n
n
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
y
s
te
m
)

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
/P
A
D

W
e
d
 0
3
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
7

6
3
A
ll 
B
u
ild
in
g
s
 t
im
e
s
h
e
e
ts
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
p
ro
je
c
t 
tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 -
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt

W
e
d
 0
3
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
7

6
4
L
a
s
t 
d
a
y
 f
o
r 
re
c
e
ip
ti
n
g
 O
ra
c
le
 I
n
v
e
n
to
ry
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 o
rd
e
rs
 f
o
r 
s
to
c
k
 i
te
m
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 o
n
 o
r 
b
e
fo
re
 3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

W
e
d
 0
3
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
7

6
5
L
a
s
t 
d
a
y
 f
o
r 
u
p
d
a
ti
n
g
 I
n
v
e
n
to
ry
 f
o
r 
s
to
re
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o
n
 o
r 
b
e
fo
re
 3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

W
e
d
 0
3
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
7

Page 77



T
a
s
k

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

D
e
la
y
 i
n
 d
a
y
s
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 D
a

te
s

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

6
6
S
c
h
o
o
l 
M
e
a
ls
 d
a
ta
s
e
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 -
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt

W
e
d
 0
3
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
7

6
7
In
te
rn
a
l 
re
c
h
a
rg
e
s
 v
ia
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 f
o
r 
C
O
R
A
M
 (
7
p
m
)

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 -
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt

W
e
d
 0
3
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
7

6
8
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
c
a
rd
s
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
C
O
R
A
M
 a
n
d
 O
th
e
r 
N
o
n
 P
ri
c
e
d
 W

o
rk

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 -
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt

T
h
u
 0
4
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
8

6
9
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
c
a
rd
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 c
o
m
p
le
te

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 -
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt

T
h
u
 0
4
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
8

7
0
R
e
c
h
a
rg
e
s
 t
o
 M
ic
h
a
e
l 
R
o
s
s
 (
ru
n
 o
v
e
rn
ig
h
t)

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
y
s
te
m
s
/M
R

F
ri
 0
5
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
9

7
1
L
a
s
t 
p
a
y
ro
ll 
s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ry
 r
u
n
s
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
d

P
a
y
ro
ll/
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/M
S

F
ri
 0
5
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
9

7
2
L
a
s
t 
d
a
y
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 n
o
n
-o
rd
e
r 
in
v
o
ic
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 b
y
 C
re
d
it
o
rs
 T
e
a
m
 (
N
.B
. 
n
o
n
-o
rd
e
r 
in
v
o
ic
e
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 

to
 b
e
 b
a
tc
h
e
d
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
ly
)

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
ri
 0
5
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
9

7
3
A
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 C
O
R
A
M
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
s
 t
o
 A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
fr
o
m
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
n
ts

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
ri
 0
5
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
9

7
4
L
a
s
t 
H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
re
c
h
a
rg
e
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
h
a
rg
e
a
b
le
 w
o
rk
s
 e
n
te
re
d
 i
n
to
 P
ro
je
c
ts

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s

F
ri
 0
5
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
9

7
5
L
a
s
t 
S
/C
 &
 S
/D
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
s
 t
o
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
ri
 0
5
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
9

7
6
L
a
s
t 
D
a
te
 f
o
r 
ru
n
n
in
g
 p
a
y
s
h
e
e
ts
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 f
in
a
l 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 n
o
n
-o
rd
e
r 
in
v
o
ic
e
s

S
c
h
o
o
l 
F
u
n
d
in
g
/ 
C
re
d
it
o
rs
 T
e
a
m

F
ri
 0
5
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
9

7
7
U
p
lo
a
d
 t
o
 l
e
d
g
e
r 
o
f 
la
s
t 
fi
le
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 I
n
v
o
ic
e
s

C
re
d
it
o
rs
 T
e
a
m

F
ri
 0
5
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
9

7
8
L
a
s
t 
d
a
y
 f
o
r 
re
c
e
ip
ti
n
g
 o
f 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 O
ra
c
le
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 o
rd
e
rs
 f
o
r 
w
h
ic
h
 g
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 o
n
 o
r 

b
e
fo
re
 3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
ri
 0
5
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
9

7
9
L
a
s
t 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 D
e
b
to
rs
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
s
 r
a
is
e
d
 i
n
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 R
e
c
e
iv
a
b
le
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
ri
 0
5
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
9

8
0
L
a
s
t 
d
a
te
 f
o
r 
jo
u
rn
a
ls
 f
o
r 
w
a
te
r 
to
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e

C
re
d
it
o
rs
 T
e
a
m

F
ri
 0
5
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
6
9

8
1
D
a
ta
s
e
t 
fo
r 
F
le
e
t 
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s

M
o
n
 0
8
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
2

8
2
D
a
ta
s
e
t 
fo
r 
C
a
te
ri
n
g
 R
e
c
h
a
rg
e
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s

M
o
n
 0
8
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
2

8
3
J
o
u
rn
a
l 
fo
r 
B
u
ild
in
g
 C
le
a
n
in
g
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s

M
o
n
 0
8
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
2

8
4
P
e
n
s
io
n
 F
u
n
d
 t
o
 i
s
s
u
e
 f
in
a
l 
in
v
o
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 D
C
C
 p
e
n
s
io
n
 /
 a
d
d
e
d
 y
e
a
rs
 r
e
c
h
a
rg
e
s

P
e
n
s
io
n
s

M
o
n
 0
8
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
2

8
5
D
a
ta
s
e
t 
fo
r 
G
ro
u
n
d
s
 M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s

M
o
n
 0
8
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
2

8
6
L
a
te
 C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
s
 -
 L
a
n
d
 a
n
d
 B
u
ild
in
g
s
, 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
D
w
e
lli
n
g
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
s
s
e
ts
 -
 t
h
is
 f
o
r 
a
n
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 s
in
c
e
 

th
e
 2
8
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
3
 d
e
a
d
lin
e
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m

M
o
n
 0
8
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
2

8
7
V
a
lu
e
r'
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 c
e
rt
if
ic
a
te
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
im
p
a
ir
m
e
n
t 
- 
L
a
n
d
 a
n
d
 B
u
ild
in
g
s
  
  
  

A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m

M
o
n
 0
8
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
2

Page 78



T
a
s
k

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

D
e
la
y
 i
n
 d
a
y
s
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 D
a

te
s

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

8
8
S
u
p
p
ly
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
n
ts
 w
it
h
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 u
n
fu
n
d
e
d
 p
e
n
s
io
n
s
 c
o
s
ts

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

M
o
n
 0
8
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
2

8
9
L
a
s
t 
d
a
te
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
ll 
b
a
n
k
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
lin
e
s
 u
p
 t
o
 3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3

In
c
o
m
e
 T
e
a
m

M
o
n
 0
8
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
2

9
0
O
T
L
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

M
o
n
 0
8
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
2

9
1
W
IP
 r
e
a
d
y
 f
o
r 
s
u
p
e
rv
is
o
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 (
P
ri
c
e
d
 W

o
rk
)

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s

M
o
n
 0
8
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
2

9
2
P
ri
c
e
d
 W

o
rk
 W

IP
 t
o
 A
s
s
e
ts
 (
8
a
m
)

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s

T
u
e
 0
9
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
3

9
3
H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
c
h
a
rg
e
s
 i
n
 l
e
d
g
e
r 
(w
it
h
 P
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 O
rd
e
rs
)

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s

T
u
e
 0
9
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
3

9
4
N
o
n
-C
O
R
A
M
 (
ie
 O
th
e
r 
N
o
n
 P
ri
c
e
d
 W

o
rk
) 
W
IP
 t
o
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
n
ts
 (
1
0
.3
0
a
m
)

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s

W
e
d
 1
0
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
4

9
4
V
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w
it
h
 B
u
ild
in
g
s
 s
u
p
e
rv
is
o
rs
 (
P
ri
c
e
d
 W

o
rk
)

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
/L
S

W
e
d
 1
0
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
4

9
5
L
a
s
t 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 n
o
n
-o
rd
e
r 
in
v
o
ic
e
s
 i
n
 l
e
d
g
e
r 
- 
P
ro
je
c
ts
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
s

C
re
d
it
o
rs
 T
e
a
m

W
e
d
 1
0
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
4

9
6
F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
3
 g
a
s
 j
o
u
rn
a
ls
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 t
o
 l
e
d
g
e
r 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

T
h
u
 1
1
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
5

9
7
F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
3
 e
le
c
tr
ic
it
y
 j
o
u
rn
a
ls
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 t
o
 l
e
d
g
e
r 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

T
h
u
 1
1
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
5

9
8
L
a
s
t 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 n
o
n
-o
rd
e
r 
in
v
o
ic
e
s
 i
n
 l
e
d
g
e
r 
- 
n
o
n
-P
ro
je
c
ts
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
s

C
re
d
it
o
rs
 T
e
a
m

T
h
u
 1
1
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
5

9
9
R
e
tu
rn
 o
f 
C
h
a
rg
e
 t
o
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
n
d
 D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 C
o
re
 t
o
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 -
 F
in
a
n
c
e

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
/A
B

T
h
u
 1
1
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
5

1
0
0
C
O
R
A
M
 W

IP
 r
e
tu
rn
e
d
 b
y
 D
e
s
ig
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
5
p
m
)

D
e
s
ig
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

T
h
u
 1
1
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
5

1
0
1
N
o
n
-C
O
R
A
M
 (
ie
 O
th
e
r 
N
o
n
 P
ri
c
e
d
 W

o
rk
) 
re
tu
rn
e
d
 b
y
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 N
S
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 (
5
p
m
)

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
h
u
 1
1
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
5

1
0
2
P
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 o
f 
S
/C
 a
n
d
 S
/D
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

T
h
u
 1
1
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
5

1
0
3
F
in
a
l 
a
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
In
v
e
n
to
ry
 t
o
 l
e
d
g
e
r

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

T
h
u
 1
1
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
5

1
0
4
R
e
c
h
a
rg
e
s
 f
o
r 
P
ri
c
e
d
 W

o
rk
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 D
e
s
ig
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
to
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 b
y
 1
2
 n
o
o
n
)

D
e
s
ig
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
ri
 1
2
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
6

1
0
5
A
g
re
e
d
 P
ri
c
e
d
 W

o
rk
 r
e
c
h
a
rg
e
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 (
6
p
m
)

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 -
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt

F
ri
 1
2
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
6

1
0
6
C
O
R
A
M
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
s
 i
n
 L
e
d
g
e
r

A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
/S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
/M
S

F
ri
 1
2
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
6

1
0
7
Is
s
u
e
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
s
 o
f 
o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 d
e
b
to
r 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 t
o
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e

In
c
o
m
e
 T
e
a
m
/ 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/D
H
/ 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
y
s
te
m
s
/M
R

F
ri
 1
2
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
6

1
0
8
E
n
s
u
re
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 U
n
ili
n
k
 f
o
r 
P
la
n
t 
a
n
d
 M
a
c
h
in
e
ry
 l
e
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 p
re
p
a
re
 y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 e
n
tr
ie
s
.

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C
/D
C

F
ri
 1
2
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
6

Page 79



T
a
s
k

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

D
e
la
y
 i
n
 d
a
y
s
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 D
a

te
s

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

1
0
9
IA
S
 1
9
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 A
c
tu
a
ry

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/H
A

F
ri
 1
2
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
6

1
1
0
R
e
tu
rn
 o
f 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 c
e
n
tr
a
lly
 c
a
lc
u
la
te
d
 B
a
d
 D
e
b
t 
P
ro
v
is
io
n
 f
ro
m
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
ri
 1
2
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
6

1
1
1
D
e
p
re
c
ia
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
m
o
rt
is
a
ti
o
n
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
 p
o
s
te
d
 f
o
r 
V
e
h
ic
le
s
 P
la
n
t 
a
n
d
 E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t,
 F
u
rn
it
u
re
 a
n
d
 F
it
ti
n
g
s
 a
n
d
 

In
ta
n
g
ib
le
 A
s
s
e
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H

F
ri
 1
2
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
6

1
1
2
C
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 F
u
n
d
 a
g
e
d
 d
e
b
t 
a
n
a
ly
s
e
d
, 
b
a
d
 d
e
b
t 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 c
a
lc
u
la
te
d
 a
n
d
 p
o
s
te
d
 t
o
 l
e
d
g
e
r

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/S
O

F
ri
 1
2
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
6

1
1
3
D
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
re
la
te
d
 p
a
rt
y
 t
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 S
e
n
io
r 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 (
C
M
T
) 
re
c
e
iv
e
d
 b
y
 D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 -
 D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
ri
 1
2
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
6

1
1
4
W
IP
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 r
e
c
h
a
rg
e
 v
ia
 j
o
u
rn
a
l 
e
n
tr
y
 r
e
 C
O
R
A
M
 a
n
d
 N
o
n
 P
ri
c
e
d
 W

o
rk
 (
re
v
e
rs
e
s
 A
p
ri
l 
1
3
)

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
/M
C

F
ri
 1
2
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
6

1
1
5
P
ro
je
c
ts
 u
p
d
a
te
d
, 
re
je
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 c
h
e
c
k
s
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
d

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
y
s
te
m
s
/N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 -
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt

M
o
n
 1
5
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
9

1
1
6
R
e
-r
u
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
a
c
c
ru
a
ls
 (
e
x
c
e
s
s
 r
e
c
e
ip
ti
n
g
) 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
 b
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
.

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
y
s
te
m
s
 /
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C
/D
H

M
o
n
 1
5
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
9

1
1
7
C
e
n
tr
a
lly
 c
a
lc
u
la
te
d
 B
a
d
 D
e
b
t 
P
ro
v
is
io
n
 p
o
s
te
d
 t
o
 l
e
d
g
e
rs
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C
/D
H

M
o
n
 1
5
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
9

1
1
8
R
u
n
 A
g
e
d
 D
e
b
t 
R
e
p
o
rt
 a
t 
c
lo
s
e
 d
o
w
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ile
 t
o
 d
e
b
to
r'
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
B
a
d
 D
e
b
t 
P
ro
v
is
io
n
 r
a
n
 2
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 -
 

re
c
o
n
c
ile
 t
h
e
 m
o
v
e
m
e
n
t 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 B
a
d
 D
e
b
t 
P
ro
v
is
io
n
 a
t 
F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
3
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 a
t 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
.

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
y
s
te
m
s
/M
R
/S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
/D
H

M
o
n
 1
5
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
9

1
1
9
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 S
ta
ff
 L
e
a
v
e
 S
u
rv
e
y
 -
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
a
m
p
le
 s
iz
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/D
H

M
o
n
 1
5
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
7
9

1
2
0
P
ro
je
c
ts
 c
lo
s
e
d
 (
a
t 
s
ta
rt
 o
f 
d
a
y
) 
fo
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
y
s
te
m
s
/M
R

T
u
e
 1
6
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
8
0

1
2
1
A
R
 M
o
d
u
le
 c
lo
s
in
g

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
y
s
te
m
s
/M
R

W
e
d
 1
7
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
8
1

1
2
2
A
P
/P
u
rc
h
a
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 I
n
v
e
n
to
ry
 M
o
d
u
le
s
 c
lo
s
in
g

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/M
S
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

S
y
s
te
m
s
/M
R

W
e
d
 1
7
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
8
1

1
2
3
G
L
 c
lo
s
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 M
a
rc
h
 P
e
ri
o
d
 -
 N
.B
. 
A
D
1
-1
3
 i
s
 n
o
w
 o
p
e
n
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/M
S

W
e
d
 1
7
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
8
1

1
2
4
R
e
-s
e
n
d
 S
ta
ff
 L
e
a
v
e
 S
u
rv
e
y
 -
 i
f 
in
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 b
y
 1
5
 A
p
ri
l

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/D
H

W
e
d
 1
7
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
8
1

1
2
5
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 o
f 
a
n
y
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 c
o
d
in
g
 a
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
ts
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 i
s
s
u
e
 o
f 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
a
p
e
rs

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

T
h
u
 1
8
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
8
2

1
2
6
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 c
la
im
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 m
o
n
th
ly
 p
a
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
 f
o
r 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 i
n
 l
e
d
g
e
r 
(s
/c
)

P
a
y
ro
ll/
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/M
S

T
h
u
 1
8
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
8
2

Page 80



T
a
s
k

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

D
e
la
y
 i
n
 d
a
y
s
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 D
a

te
s

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

1
2
7
S
c
h
e
d
u
le
 t
o
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
c
h
a
rg
e
s

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 

R
E
D

T
h
u
 1
8
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
8
2

1
2
8
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 r
e
m
u
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 o
v
e
r 
£
5
0
k
 t
o
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e

P
a
y
ro
ll

T
h
u
 1
8
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
8
2

1
2
9
R
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 r
e
p
o
rt
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 p
a
y
e
e
s
 f
o
r 
a
m
o
u
n
ts
 o
v
e
r 
£
5
0
k

H
u
m
a
n
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

T
h
u
 1
8
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
8
2

1
3
0
P
re
p
a
re
 j
o
u
rn
a
ls
, 
s
p
re
a
d
s
h
e
e
ts
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
P
la
n
t 
a
n
d
 M
a
c
h
in
e
ry
 l
e
a
s
e
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C

F
ri
 1
9
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
8
3

1
3
1
Is
s
u
e
 o
f 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
a
p
e
rs
 f
o
r 
d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
fi
n
a
n
c
in
g
 (
e
.g
. 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
g
ra
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
) 
a
n
d
 

a
n
a
ly
s
is
 f
o
r 
fi
x
e
d
 a
s
s
e
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H

M
o
n
 2
2
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
8
6

1
3
2
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 S
ta
ff
 L
e
a
v
e
 S
u
rv
e
y

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/D
H

M
o
n
 2
2
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
8
6

1
3
3
E
s
ti
m
a
te
 o
f 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 M
a
rc
h
 c
a
r 
m
ile
a
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
u
b
s
is
te
n
c
e
 t
o
 b
e
 p
a
id
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 p
a
y
ro
lls
 c
a
lc
u
la
te
d
 b
y
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

T
u
e
 2
3
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
8
7

1
3
4
E
s
ti
m
a
te
 o
f 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 M
a
rc
h
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 (
o
v
e
rt
im
e
 e
tc
.)
 t
o
 b
e
 p
a
id
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 p
a
y
ro
lls
 c
a
lc
u
la
te
d
 b
y
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

T
u
e
 2
3
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
8
7

1
3
5
D
e
p
re
c
ia
ti
o
n
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
 f
o
r 
in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 p
o
s
te
d
 t
o
 l
e
d
g
e
r

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H

W
e
d
 2
4
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
8
8

1
3
6
C
a
p
it
a
l 
o
u
tt
u
rn
 a
n
d
 f
in
a
n
c
in
g
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
d
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
n
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
/A
G

W
e
d
 2
4
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
8
8

1
3
7
A
ll 
b
a
n
k
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
S

T
h
u
 2
5
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
8
9

1
3
8
C
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 f
u
n
d
 c
a
s
h
 a
n
d
 r
e
fu
n
d
s
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ile
d
 t
o
 O
ra
c
le

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/S
O
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts

T
h
u
 2
5
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
8
9

1
3
9
D
ra
ft
 N
N
D
R
3
 r
e
p
o
rt
 p
re
p
a
re
d

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/S
O
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts

T
h
u
 2
5
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
8
9

1
4
0
A
s
s
e
s
s
 n
e
w
 L
a
n
d
 a
n
d
 B
u
ild
in
g
s
 l
e
a
s
e
s
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 I
F
R
S
 s
ta
tu
s
 a
n
d
 a
m
e
n
d
 G
L
 c
o
d
in
g
s
 w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te

A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
/ 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C

F
ri
 2
6
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
9
0

Page 81



T
a
s
k

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

D
e
la
y
 i
n
 d
a
y
s
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 D
a

te
s

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

1
4
1
R
e
v
ie
w
 n
e
w
 a
n
d
 a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 a
s
 t
o
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
re
 a
re
 a
n
y
 e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 l
e
a
s
e
s
.

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C

F
ri
 2
6
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
9
0

1
4
2
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 r
e
 e
x
it
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 (
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 r
e
la
te
d
 c
o
s
ts
) 
fo
r 
2
0
1
1
/1
2
 a
n
d
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
/S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H

F
ri
 2
6
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
9
0

1
4
3
D
e
p
re
c
ia
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 I
m
p
a
ir
m
e
n
t 
c
h
a
rg
e
s
 (
V
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
s
) 
p
o
s
te
d
 f
o
r 
L
a
n
d
 a
n
d
 B
u
ild
in
g
s
, 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
d
w
e
lli
n
g
s
 a
n
d
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
s
s
e
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H

F
ri
 2
6
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
9
0

1
4
4
P
o
s
t 
J
o
u
rn
a
l 
fo
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 I
n
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 R
e
c
h
a
rg
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
 t
o
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 G
ro
u
p
in
g
s
 a
n
d
 m
o
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
n
 

R
e
s
e
rv
e
s
 a
n
d
 P
ro
v
is
io
n
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C
/D
H

F
ri
 2
6
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
9
0

1
4
5
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 r
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 b
y
 P
a
y
ro
ll 
a
n
d
 r
e
tu
rn
e
d
 t
o
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 e
x
it
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 n
o
te

 H
u
m
a
n
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

M
o
n
 2
9
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
9
3

1
4
6
R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
N
e
w
c
a
s
tl
e
 A
ir
p
o
rt
 s
h
a
re
 v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 S
o
u
th
 T
y
n
e
s
id
e
 M
B
C
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/D
H

M
o
n
 2
9
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
9
3

1
4
7
R
e
tu
rn
 t
o
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
a
p
e
rs
 w
it
h
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
fi
n
a
n
c
in
g
 (
e
.g
. 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
g
ra
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
) 
a
n
d
 a
s
s
e
ts
 t
o
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
n
d
 r
e
la
te
s

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

T
u
e
 3
0
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
9
4

1
4
8
S
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 o
f 
C
P
R
4
 f
o
rm

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H
/J
S

T
u
e
 3
0
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
9
4

1
4
9
B
e
n
e
fi
t 
S
u
b
s
id
y
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 -
 F
in
a
n
c
e

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
/P
A
D

T
u
e
 3
0
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
9
4

M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

1
5
0
R
e
tu
rn
 t
o
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
d
e
ta
ile
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 (
A
L
M
O
s
)

D
a
le
 a
n
d
 V
a
lle
y
 H
o
m
e
s
/E
a
s
t 
D
u
rh
a
m
 

H
o
m
e
s
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 H
R
A
/J
H

W
e
d
 0
1
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
9
5

1
5
1
R
e
tu
rn
 t
o
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
d
e
ta
ile
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 (
D
u
rh
a
m
 C
it
y
)

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 H
R
A
/J
H

W
e
d
 0
1
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
9
5

1
5
2
P
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 o
f 
E
q
u
a
l 
P
a
y
 J
o
u
rn
a
l 
(N
o
n
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
) 
in
 L
e
d
g
e
r

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H

W
e
d
 0
1
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
9
5

1
5
3
C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
e
s
e
rv
e
s
 P
ro
to
c
o
ls
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 t
o
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 C
a
s
h
 L
im
it
 

re
q
u
e
s
ts
).
  
T
h
e
s
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 c
o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
fi
n
a
l 
fi
g
u
re
s
 w
h
e
re
 e
s
ti
m
a
te
s
 a
re
 u
s
e
d
. 
D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 1
2
 n
o
o
n
.

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

W
e
d
 0
1
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
9
5

1
5
4
S
S
ID
 -
 i
n
p
u
t 
o
f 
S
S
ID
 S
/C
 P
ro
v
is
io
n
s

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 C
A
S
/P
R

T
h
u
 0
2
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
9
6

Page 82



T
a
s
k

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

D
e
la
y
 i
n
 d
a
y
s
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 D
a

te
s

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

1
5
5
L
e
d
g
e
r 
e
n
tr
ie
s
 f
o
r 
IA
S
 1
9
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H

T
h
u
 0
2
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
9
6

1
5
6
E
n
tr
ie
s
 a
ff
e
c
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
c
h
a
rg
e
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 a
n
d
 i
n
 l
e
d
g
e
r

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
ri
 0
3
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
9
7

1
5
7
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 p
re
p
a
re
 r
e
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
C
M
T
 o
n
 R
e
s
e
rv
e
 P
ro
to
c
o
l 
re
q
u
e
s
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 H
e
a
d
s
 o
f 
F
in
a
n
c
e

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/H
e
a
d
s
 o
f 
F
in
a
n
c
e

F
ri
 0
3
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
9
7

1
5
8
In
it
ia
l 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
fi
n
a
n
c
in
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 f
ro
m
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
u
n
d
e
r 
s
ta
tu
te
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H

F
ri
 0
3
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
9
7

1
5
9
C
a
p
it
a
l 
o
u
tt
u
rn
 a
n
d
 f
in
a
n
c
in
g
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 r
e
tu
rn
e
d
 t
o
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
ri
 0
3
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
9
7

M
a
y
 D
a
y

M
o
n
 0
6
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

1
6
0
A
c
tu
a
l 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 (
fr
o
m
 f
in
a
l 
m
a
in
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 p
a
y
ro
ll)
 o
n
 M
a
rc
h
 c
a
r 
m
ile
a
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
u
b
s
is
te
n
c
e
 p
a
id
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s

P
a
y
ro
ll 
S
y
s
te
m
s
 A
d
m
in
 T
e
a
m
/S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

F
in
a
n
c
e

T
u
e
 0
7
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
1

1
6
1
A
c
tu
a
l 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 (
fr
o
m
 f
in
a
l 
m
a
in
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 p
a
y
ro
ll)
 o
n
 M
a
rc
h
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 (
o
v
e
rt
im
e
 e
tc
.)
 p
a
id
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s

P
a
y
ro
ll 
S
y
s
te
m
s
 A
d
m
in
 T
e
a
m
/S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
/M
S

T
u
e
 0
7
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
1

1
6
2
V
A
T
 F
in
a
l 
E
n
tr
y
 -
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
to
 b
a
la
n
c
e
 s
h
e
e
t

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/N
A

T
u
e
 0
7
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
1

1
6
3
R
O
 a
n
d
 C
O
 F
o
rm

s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/J
S

T
u
e
 0
7
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
1

1
6
4

F
in
a
l 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 m
a
in
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 p
a
y
ro
ll 
a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ry
 r
u
n
s
 o
n
 M
a
rc
h
 c
a
r 
m
ile
a
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
u
b
s
is
te
n
c
e
 

p
a
id
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 f
o
r 
c
h
e
c
k
in
g
 f
o
r 
m
a
te
ri
a
l 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 t
o
 e
s
ti
m
a
te
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

2
3
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 (
lin
e
 1
3
4
).

P
a
y
ro
ll 
S
y
s
te
m
s
 A
d
m
in
 T
e
a
m
/S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

F
in
a
n
c
e

W
e
d
 0
8
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
2

1
6
5

F
in
a
l 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 m
a
in
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 p
a
y
ro
ll 
a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ry
 r
u
n
s
 o
n
 M
a
rc
h
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 (
o
v
e
rt
im
e
 e
tc
.)
 

p
a
id
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 f
o
r 
c
h
e
c
k
in
g
 f
o
r 
m
a
te
ri
a
l 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 t
o
 e
s
ti
m
a
te
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

2
3
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 (
lin
e
 1
3
3
).

P
a
y
ro
ll 
S
y
s
te
m
s
 A
d
m
in
 T
e
a
m
/S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
/M
S

W
e
d
 0
8
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
2

1
6
6
C
M
T
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
R
e
s
e
rv
e
 P
ro
to
c
o
l 
R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 -
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 H
e
a
d
s
 o
f 
F
in
a
n
c
e
 c
le
a
ra
n
c
e

H
e
a
d
s
 o
f 
F
in
a
n
c
e
/C
M
T

W
e
d
 0
8
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
2

1
6
7
Im
p
a
ir
m
e
n
t 
c
h
a
rg
e
d
 t
o
 C
IE
S
 (
b
o
th
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 n
o
t 
a
d
d
in
g
 v
a
lu
e
)

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H

F
ri
 1
0
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
4

Page 83



T
a
s
k

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

D
e
la
y
 i
n
 d
a
y
s
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 D
a

te
s

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

1
6
8
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
p
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
G
ro
u
p
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
/R
e
la
te
d
 P
a
rt
y
 d
is
c
lo
s
u
re
 n
o
te
 t
o
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
, 
in
te
r-
c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 t
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ile
d
 a
n
d
 d
e
b
to
r 
a
n
d
 c
re
d
it
o
r 
b
a
la
n
c
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
/r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
 

e
n
ti
ti
e
s

F
ri
 1
0
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
4

1
6
9
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
fi
rm

 R
e
s
e
rv
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 f
ig
u
re
s
 w
h
e
re
 e
s
ti
m
a
te
s
 w
e
re
 u
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
C
M
T
 R
e
p
o
rt

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
ri
 1
0
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
4

1
7
0
M
o
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 R
e
s
e
rv
e
s
 e
n
tr
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 G
e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 C
M
T
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 (
a
c
tu
a
l 
fi
g
u
re
s
)

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H

F
ri
 1
0
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
4

1
7
1
R
e
c
h
a
rg
e
s
 t
o
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
ri
 1
0
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
4

1
7
2
L
e
d
g
e
r 
b
a
la
n
c
e
s
 p
ro
v
e
d
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
ri
 1
0
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
4

1
7
3
M
e
e
ti
n
g
 w
it
h
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 
F
in
a
n
c
e
 (
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
) 
to
 a
g
re
e
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
fi
n
a
n
c
in
g
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/H
A
/A
Z
H
/H
e
a
d
 o
f 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 J
G

M
o
n
 1
3
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
7

1
7
4
M
O
W
G
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
C
a
p
it
a
l 
O
u
tt
u
rn
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

T
u
e
 1
4
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
8

1
7
5
O
v
e
ra
ll 
re
v
e
n
u
e
 a
n
d
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
fi
n
a
n
c
in
g
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 m
a
d
e
 a
n
d
 j
o
u
rn
a
l 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
d

C
D
R
/H
e
a
d
 o
f 
F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 J
G
/S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

F
in
a
n
c
e

T
u
e
 1
4
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
8

1
7
6
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te

 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
/A
B

T
u
e
 1
4
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
8

1
7
7
E
s
ti
m
a
te
 o
f 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 R
e
c
h
a
rg
e
s
 t
o
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 f
o
r 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 A
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
/C
R

W
e
d
 1
5
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
9

1
7
8
S
e
rv
ic
e
 l
e
d
g
e
rs
 f
in
a
lis
e
d
 a
n
d
 f
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
s
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

W
e
d
 1
5
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
9

1
7
9
N
e
t 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 O
u
tt
u
rn
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 n
o
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

W
e
d
 1
5
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
9

F
o
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
ly
 -
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 l
in
e
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

D
is
c
lo
s
u
re
 n
o
te
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
a
p
e
rs

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
L
L

F
o
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
ly
 -
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 l
in
e
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

W
o
rk
in
g
 P
a
p
e
rs
 f
o
r 
th
e
 n
o
te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
L
L

1
8
0

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
A

c
c

o
u

n
ts

 -
 N

o
te

s
 a

n
d

 W
o

rk
in

g
 P

a
p

e
rs

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d

E
x
p
la
n
a
to
ry
 F
o
re
w
o
rd

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/H
A

W
e
d
 1
5
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
9

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
A
u
d
it
o
rs
 R
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 D
u
rh
a
m
 C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il

E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 (
M
a
z
a
rs
)

F
ri
 1
3
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
5
3
0

M
o
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 R
e
s
e
rv
e
s
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H

F
ri
 3
1
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
2
5

C
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 I
&
E
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C
/D
H

F
ri
 3
1
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
2
5

B
a
la
n
c
e
 S
h
e
e
t

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H

F
ri
 3
1
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
2
5

C
a
s
h
 F
lo
w
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
S

M
o
n
 0
3
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
2
8

N
o
te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

N
o
te
 1
: 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
ie
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/H
A
/A
Z
H

W
e
d
 1
5
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
9

Page 84



T
a
s
k

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

D
e
la
y
 i
n
 d
a
y
s
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 D
a

te
s

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

N
o
te
 2
: 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 b
u
t 
h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
b
e
e
n
 a
d
o
p
te
d

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/A
Z
H
/A
C

W
e
d
 1
5
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
9

N
o
te
 3
: 
C
ri
ti
c
a
l 
ju
d
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 a
p
p
ly
in
g
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
ie
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H

W
e
d
 1
5
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
9

N
o
te
 4
: 
A
s
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
s
 m
a
d
e
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
m
a
jo
r 
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
e
s
ti
m
a
ti
o
n
 u
n
c
e
rt
a
in
ty

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H

W
e
d
 1
5
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
9

C
e
n
tr
a
l 
A
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 C
o
s
ts

 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
/A
B

W
e
d
 1
5
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
9

In
s
u
ra
n
c
e

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C
/D
H

W
e
d
 1
5
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
9

N
o
te
 5
: 
M
a
te
ri
a
l 
it
e
m
s
 o
f 
in
c
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
e
n
s
e

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H

W
e
d
 1
5
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
9

N
o
te
 6
: 
E
v
e
n
ts
 a
ft
e
r 
th
e
 b
a
la
n
c
e
 s
h
e
e
t 
d
a
te

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H

W
e
d
 1
5
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
0
9

N
o
te
 7
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
ts
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 b
a
s
is
 a
n
d
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 b
a
s
is
 u
n
d
e
r 
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/A
Z
H
/A
C

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

N
o
te
 8
: 
T
ra
n
s
fe
rs
 t
o
/f
ro
m
 e
a
rm

a
rk
e
d
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H

W
e
d
 0
5
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
0

N
o
te
 9
: 
O
th
e
r 
o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C
/D
H

W
e
d
 0
5
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
0

N
o
te
 1
0
: 
F
in
a
n
c
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C
/D
H

W
e
d
 0
5
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
0

N
o
te
 1
1
: 
T
a
x
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 n
o
n
-s
p
e
c
if
ic
 g
ra
n
t 
in
c
o
m
e

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C
/D
H

W
e
d
 0
5
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
0

N
o
te
 1
2
: 
P
ro
p
e
rt
y
, 
p
la
n
t 
a
n
d
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

N
o
te
 1
3
: 
H
e
ri
ta
g
e
 A
s
s
e
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

N
o
te
 1
4
: 
In
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

N
o
te
 1
5
: 
In
ta
n
g
ib
le
 a
s
s
e
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

N
o
te
 1
6
: 
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
In
s
tr
u
m
e
n
ts
 +
 F
a
ir
 V
a
lu
e
s
 o
f 
A
s
s
e
ts
 a
n
d
 L
ia
b
ili
ti
e
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
S

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

C
a
r 
L
o
a
n
s

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
/P
a
y
ro
ll 

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

L
e
a
s
e
 C
a
rs

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 -
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
/P
a
y
ro
ll 

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

N
o
te
 1
7
: 
In
v
e
n
to
ri
e
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/D
H
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

N
o
te
 1
8
: 
C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H
/J
S

N
o
te
 1
9
: 
D
e
b
to
rs

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/D
H
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

W
e
d
 0
5
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
0

N
o
te
 2
0
: 
C
a
s
h
 a
n
d
 c
a
s
h
 e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
S

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

N
o
te
 2
1
: 
A
s
s
e
ts
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
s
a
le

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

N
o
te
 2
2
: 
C
re
d
it
o
rs

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/D
H
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

W
e
d
 0
5
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
0

N
o
te
 2
3
: 
P
ro
v
is
io
n
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

W
e
d
 0
5
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
0

N
o
te
 2
4
: 
U
s
a
b
le
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H

W
e
d
 0
5
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
0

N
o
te
 2
5
: 
U
n
u
s
a
b
le
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
s

M
o
n
 1
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
5

R
e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
e
rv
e

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H

M
o
n
 1
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
5

A
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
s
a
le
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
in
s
tr
u
m
e
n
ts
 r
e
s
e
rv
e

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
S

M
o
n
 1
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
5

C
a
p
it
a
l 
a
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
t 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H

M
o
n
 1
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
5

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
in
s
tr
u
m
e
n
ts
 a
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
t 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
S

M
o
n
 1
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
5

P
e
n
s
io
n
s
 r
e
s
e
rv
e

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/A
C

M
o
n
 1
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
5

D
e
fe
rr
e
d
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
re
c
e
ip
ts
 r
e
s
e
rv
e

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H

M
o
n
 1
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
5

C
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 f
u
n
d
 a
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
t 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/S
O

M
o
n
 1
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
5

A
c
c
u
m
u
la
te
d
 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
s
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/D
H

M
o
n
 1
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
5

N
o
te
 2
6
: 
C
a
s
h
 f
lo
w
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
- 
o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
S

W
e
d
 1
2
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
7

N
o
te
 2
7
: 
C
a
s
h
 f
lo
w
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
- 
in
v
e
s
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
S

W
e
d
 1
2
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
7

N
o
te
 2
8
: 
C
a
s
h
 f
lo
w
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
- 
fi
n
a
n
c
in
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
S

W
e
d
 1
2
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
7

N
o
te
 2
9
: 
A
m
o
u
n
ts
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 f
o
r 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 (
S
E
G
M
E
N
T
A
L
)

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/D
H

W
e
d
 1
2
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
7

N
o
te
 3
0
: 
A
c
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
n
d
 d
is
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H

N
o
te
 3
1
: 
T
ra
d
in
g
 O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
/J
M

C
M

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

N
o
te
 3
2
: 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/H
A
/I
H
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

N
o
te
 3
3
: 
R
o
a
d
 c
h
a
rg
in
g
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 A
c
t 
2
0
0
0

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
/P
A
C

N
o
te
 3
4
: 
P
o
o
le
d
 b
u
d
g
e
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C

N
o
te
 3
5
: 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
' A

llo
w
a
n
c
e
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C
/R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 -
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

Page 85



T
a
s
k

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

D
e
la
y
 i
n
 d
a
y
s
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 D
a

te
s

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

N
o
te
 3
6
: 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
' R

e
m
u
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 E
x
it
 P
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
)

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/S
O
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
/P
a
y
ro
ll/
H
u
m
a
n
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

N
o
te
 3
7
: 
E
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 c
o
s
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C

F
ri
 3
1
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
2
5

N
o
te
 3
8
: 
D
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 G
ra
n
t

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 C
A
S
/G
S

F
ri
 3
1
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
2
5

N
o
te
 3
9
: 
G
ra
n
t 
In
c
o
m
e

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

W
e
d
 0
5
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
0

N
o
te
 4
0
: 
R
e
la
te
d
 P
a
rt
ie
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/D
H
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
R
E
D
 a
n
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
/D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 

R
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n

F
ri
 3
1
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
2
5

N
o
te
 4
1
: 
C
a
p
it
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 a
n
d
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
fi
n
a
n
c
in
g

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

N
o
te
 4
2
: 
L
e
a
s
e
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C
/D
C

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
s
 l
e
s
s
e
e

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C
/D
C

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

  
F
in
a
n
c
e
 l
e
a
s
e
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C
/D
C

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

  
O
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 L
e
a
s
e
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C
/D
C

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
s
 l
e
s
s
o
r

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C
/D
C

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

  
F
in
a
n
c
e
 l
e
a
s
e
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C
/D
C

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

  
O
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 l
e
a
s
e
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C
/D
C

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

N
o
te
 4
3
: 
P
F
I

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 C
A
S
/D
E
J
S

F
ri
 3
1
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
2
5

N
o
te
 4
4
: 
Im
p
a
ir
m
e
n
t 
lo
s
s
e
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

N
o
te
 4
5
: 
C
a
p
it
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
b
o
rr
o
w
in
g
 c
o
s
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H
/I
S

N
o
te
 4
6
: 
T
e
rm

in
a
ti
o
n
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

N
o
te
 4
7
: 
P
e
n
s
io
n
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 a
c
c
o
u
n
te
d
 f
o
r 
a
s
 d
e
fi
n
e
d
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/A
C

F
ri
 3
1
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
2
5

N
o
te
 4
8
: 
D
e
fi
n
e
d
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
p
e
n
s
io
n
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/A
C

F
ri
 3
1
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
2
5

P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 P
e
n
s
io
n
 S
c
h
e
m
e
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/A
C

F
ri
 3
1
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
2
5

T
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 R
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 P
o
s
t-
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
B
e
n
e
fi
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/A
C

F
ri
 3
1
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
2
5

A
s
s
e
ts
 a
n
d
 L
ia
b
ili
ti
e
s
 i
n
 R
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 P
o
s
t-
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
B
e
n
e
fi
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/A
C

F
ri
 3
1
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
2
5

S
c
h
e
m
e
 H
is
to
ry

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/A
C

F
ri
 3
1
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
2
5

B
a
s
is
 f
o
r 
E
s
ti
m
a
ti
n
g
 A
s
s
e
ts
 a
n
d
 L
ia
b
ili
ti
e
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/A
C

F
ri
 3
1
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
2
5

H
is
to
ry
 o
f 
E
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 G
a
in
s
 a
n
d
 L
o
s
s
e
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/A
C

F
ri
 3
1
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
2
5

N
o
te
 4
9
: 
C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
t 
L
ia
b
ili
ti
e
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
ri
 3
1
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
2
5

N
o
te
 5
0
 :
C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
t 
A
s
s
e
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
ri
 3
1
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
2
5

N
o
te
 5
1
: 
N
a
tu
re
 a
n
d
 e
x
te
n
t 
o
f 
ri
s
k
s
 a
ri
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
in
s
tr
u
m
e
n
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
S

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

C
re
d
it
 R
is
k

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
S

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

M
a
rk
e
t 
R
is
k

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
S

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

In
te
re
s
t 
R
a
te
 R
is
k

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
S

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

P
ri
c
e
 R
is
k

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
S

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

F
o
re
ig
n
 e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 R
is
k

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
S

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

N
o
te
 5
2
: 
H
e
ri
ta
g
e
 a
s
s
e
ts
: 
F
iv
e
 y
e
a
r 
s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H
/J
S

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

N
o
te
 5
3
: 
H
e
ri
ta
g
e
 A
s
s
e
ts
: 
F
u
rt
h
e
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 M
u
s
e
u
m
's
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H
/J
S

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

N
o
te
 5
4
: 
H
e
ri
ta
g
e
 A
s
s
e
ts
:C
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 [
fo
r 
2
0
1
1
/1
2
 o
n
ly
]

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/A
Z
H
/J
S

N
o
te
 5
5
: 
T
ru
s
t 
F
u
n
d
s

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 C
A
S
/C
M

F
ri
 3
1
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
2
5

N
o
te
 5
6
: 
E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
l 
It
e
m
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/H
A
/I
H

F
ri
 3
1
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
2
5

N
o
te
 5
7
: 
P
ri
o
r 
P
e
ri
o
d
 A
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
ll

F
ri
 3
1
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
2
5

H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
t

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 H
R
A
/J
H

W
e
d
 2
9
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
2
3

C
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 F
u
n
d
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/S
O

F
ri
 1
7
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
1
1

Page 86



T
a
s
k

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

D
e
la
y
 i
n
 d
a
y
s
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 D
a

te
s

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

D
C
C
 P
e
n
s
io
n
 F
u
n
d
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/H
A
/B
W
/A
M
/P
E
T

M
o
n
 1
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
5

S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/H
A

F
ri
 3
1
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
2
5

A
n
n
u
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it

F
ri
 1
7
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
1
1

G
lo
s
s
a
ry
 o
f 
T
e
rm

s
 u
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/H
A
/I
H

T
u
e
 3
0
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
3
9
4

1
8
1
D
o
u
b
le
 c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
re
c
h
a
rg
e
s
 a
n
a
ly
s
e
d
 p
a
s
s
e
d
 t
o
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
/S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C

F
ri
 1
7
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
1
1

1
8
2
S
e
rv
ic
e
 O
u
tt
u
rn
 R
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
ri
 1
7
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
1
1

1
8
3
A
d
v
e
rt
is
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 p
la
c
e
d
 w
it
h
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 t
o
 a
p
p
e
a
r 
2
 w
e
e
k
s
 l
a
te
r

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/H
A

F
ri
 2
4
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
1
8

S
p
ri
n
g
 B
a
n
k
 H
o
li
d
a
y

M
o
n
 2
7
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3

J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
3

1
8
4
M
o
u
n
ts
e
tt
 C
re
m
a
to
ri
a
 -
 P
a
p
e
rs
 o
u
t 
fo
r 
A
G
M
 t
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s

S
a
t 
0
1
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
2
6

1
8
5
O
v
e
ra
ll 
O
u
tt
u
rn
 R
e
p
o
rt
 i
n
c
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 -
 p
a
p
e
rs
 o
u
t 
fo
r 
C
M
T
 m
e
e
ti
n
g

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/H
A

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

1
8
6
M
o
u
n
ts
e
tt
 C
re
m
a
to
ri
a
 -
 P
re
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 f
o
r 
A
G
M
 t
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s

F
ri
 0
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
2

1
8
7
C
M
T
 -
 O
v
e
ra
ll 
O
u
tt
u
rn
 R
e
p
o
rt
 i
n
c
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/H
A

W
e
d
 1
2
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
7

1
8
8
G
ro
u
p
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/D
H

W
e
d
 1
2
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
7

1
8
9
D
u
rh
a
m
 C
re
m
a
to
ri
a
 -
 P
a
p
e
rs
 o
u
t 
fo
r 
A
G
M
 t
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s

T
h
u
 1
3
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
8

1
9
0
M
o
u
n
ts
e
tt
 C
re
m
a
to
ri
a
 -
 A
G
M
 t
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s

S
a
t 
1
5
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
4
0

1
9
1
O
v
e
ra
ll 
O
u
tt
u
rn
 R
e
p
o
rt
 i
n
c
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 -
 p
a
p
e
rs
 o
u
t 
fo
r 
C
M
T
 m
e
e
ti
n
g

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H

S
a
t 
1
5
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
4
0

1
9
2
A
n
a
ly
ti
c
a
l 
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
a
la
n
c
e
 s
h
e
e
ts
 a
n
d
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 t
o
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
ri
 1
4
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
3
9

1
9
3
D
ra
ft
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 t
o
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 (
M
a
z
a
rs
) 
fo
r 
T
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
R
e
v
ie
w

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H

M
o
n
 1
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
4
2

1
9
4
D
u
rh
a
m
 C
re
m
a
to
ri
a
 -
 P
re
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 f
o
r 
A
G
M
 t
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s

T
h
u
 2
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
4
5

1
9
5
C
M
T
 -
 O
v
e
ra
ll 
O
u
tt
u
rn
 R
e
p
o
rt
 i
n
c
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H

T
h
u
 2
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
4
5

1
9
6
U
n
a
u
d
it
e
d
 N
N
D
R
3
 r
e
tu
rn
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

F
ri
 2
1
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
4
6

1
9
7
O
v
e
ra
ll 
O
u
tt
u
rn
 R
e
p
o
rt
 i
n
c
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 -
 p
a
p
e
rs
 o
u
t 
fo
r 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
P
re
-A
g
e
n
d
a

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/H
A

F
ri
 2
1
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
4
6

1
9
8
C
h
ie
f 
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
to
 S
ig
n
 t
h
e
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/H
A

T
h
u
 2
7
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
5
2

1
9
9
D
u
rh
a
m
 C
re
m
a
to
ri
a
 -
 A
G
M
 t
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s

F
ri
 2
8
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
5
3

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3

2
0
0
D
ra
ft
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 t
o
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 (
M
a
z
a
rs
)

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H

M
o
n
 0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
5
6

2
0
1
S
ta
rt
 o
f 
S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 a
u
d
it
 -
 C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
  
  

E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 (
M
a
z
a
rs
)

M
o
n
 0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
5
6

2
0
2
S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
a
p
e
rs
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 (
M
a
z
a
rs
)

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/H
A

M
o
n
 0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
5
6

2
0
3
C
a
b
in
e
t 
P
re
-A
g
e
n
d
a
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 -
 O
v
e
ra
ll 
O
u
tt
u
rn
 R
e
p
o
rt
 i
n
c
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/H
A

F
ri
 0
5
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
6
0

2
0
4
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 a
n
d
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
O
u
tt
u
rn
 f
o
rm

s
 r
e
tu
rn
e
d
 t
o
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
ri
 0
5
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
6
0

2
0
5
O
v
e
ra
ll 
O
u
tt
u
rn
 R
e
p
o
rt
 i
n
c
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 -
 (
fi
n
a
l)
 p
a
p
e
rs
 o
u
t 
fo
r 
C
a
b
in
e
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/H
A

M
o
n
 0
8
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
6
3

Page 87



T
a
s
k

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

D
e
la
y
 i
n
 d
a
y
s
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 D
a

te
s

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

2
0
6
S
ta
rt
 o
f 
In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 P
e
ri
o
d
 -
 C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il

D
e
te
rm

in
e
d
 b
y
 s
ta
tu
te

M
o
n
 0
8
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
6
3

2
0
7
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 O
u
tt
u
rn
 f
o
rm

s
 d
e
s
p
a
tc
h
e
d
 t
o
 C
L
G
 (
A
s
s
u
m
e
d
 d
a
te
)

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H

F
ri
 1
2
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
6
7

2
0
8
C
a
p
it
a
l 
O
u
tt
u
rn
 f
o
rm

s
 d
e
s
p
a
tc
h
e
d
 t
o
 C
L
G
 (
A
s
s
u
m
e
d
 d
a
te
)

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
Z
H

F
ri
 1
2
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
6
7

2
0
9
C
a
b
in
e
t 
B
ri
e
fi
n
g
 -
 O
v
e
ra
ll 
O
u
tt
u
rn
 R
e
p
o
rt
 i
n
c
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/H
A

M
o
n
 1
5
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
7
0

2
1
0
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 -
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 r
e
p
o
rt
 -
 p
a
p
e
rs
 o
u
t

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 A
C
E
 a
n
d
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

T
u
e
 1
6
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
7
1

2
1
1
C
a
b
in
e
t 
- 
O
v
e
ra
ll 
O
u
tt
u
rn
 R
e
p
o
rt
 i
n
c
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/H
A

W
e
d
 1
7
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
7
2

2
1
2
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 -
 p
a
p
e
rs
 o
u
t 
- 
T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
re
p
o
rt
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e

F
ri
 1
9
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
7
4

2
1
3
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 -
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 A
C
E
 a
n
d
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

T
h
u
 2
5
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
8
0

2
1
4
E
n
d
 o
f 
In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 P
e
ri
o
d
 -
 C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

D
e
te
rm

in
e
d
 b
y
 s
ta
tu
te

F
ri
 2
6
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
8
1

2
1
5
A
p
p
o
in
te
d
 D
a
y
 f
o
r 
A
u
d
it
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H

M
o
n
 2
9
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
8
4

2
1
6
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 -
 T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
re
p
o
rt
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

W
e
d
 3
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
8
6

2
1
7
U
n
a
u
d
it
e
d
 W

G
A
 r
e
tu
rn
 t
o
 a
u
d
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 C
L
G

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C

W
e
d
 3
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
3

-4
1
4
8
6

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
3

S
u
m
m
e
r 
B
a
n
k
 H
o
li
d
a
y

M
o
n
 2
6
 A
u
g
 2
0
1
3

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3

2
1
8
P
a
p
e
rs
 o
u
t 
- 
C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
- 
T
re
a
s
u
ry
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
O
u
tt
u
rn
 R
e
p
o
rt

T
u
e
 1
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
5
2
7

2
1
9
E
n
d
 o
f 
S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 A
u
d
it
 -
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
a
l 
  

E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 (
M
a
z
a
rs
)

F
ri
 1
3
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
5
3
0

2
2
0
C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 o
f 
P
e
n
s
io
n
 F
u
n
d
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 (
M
a
z
a
rs
)

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/B
W

F
ri
 1
3
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
5
3
0

2
2
1
E
c
o
n
o
m
y
 a
n
d
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 -
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 r
e
p
o
rt
 -
 p
a
p
e
rs
 o
u
t

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
E
D

F
ri
 1
3
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
3

2
2
2
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 -
 p
a
p
e
rs
 o
u
t 
- 
 A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 (
S
T
A
T
U
T
O
R
Y
 D
E
A
D
L
IN
E
 D
A
T
E
)

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H

M
o
n
 1
6
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
5
3
3

2
2
3
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 -
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 r
e
p
o
rt
 -
 p
a
p
e
rs
 o
u
t

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s

T
u
e
 1
7
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
3

2
2
4
C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
- 
T
re
a
s
u
ry
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
O
u
tt
u
rn
 R
e
p
o
rt

W
e
d
 1
8
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
5
3
5

2
2
5
C
Y
P
S
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 -
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 r
e
p
o
rt
 -
 p
a
p
e
rs
 o
u
t

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 C
A
S

M
o
n
 2
3
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
3

2
2
6
A
W
H
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 -
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 r
e
p
o
rt
 -
 p
a
p
e
rs
 o
u
t

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 C
A
S

T
u
e
 2
4
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
3

2
2
7
E
c
o
n
o
m
y
 a
n
d
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 -
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
E
D

T
u
e
 2
4
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
3

2
2
8
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 -
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s

T
h
u
 2
6
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
3

2
2
9
A
u
d
it
e
d
 N
N
D
R
3
 r
e
tu
rn
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

F
ri
 2
7
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
5
4
4

2
3
0
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 -
 A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 (
S
T
A
T
U
T
O
R
Y
 D
E
A
D
L
IN
E
 D
A
T
E
)

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/I
H
/H
A

M
o
n
 3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
5
4
7

2
3
1
P
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 P
e
n
s
io
n
 F
u
n
d

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/B
W

M
o
n
 3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
5
4
7

2
3
2
P
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 (
S
T
A
T
U
T
O
R
Y
 D
E
A
D
L
IN
E
 D
A
T
E
) 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
IH

M
o
n
 3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
5
4
7

2
3
3
L
a
s
t 
d
a
te
 t
o
 s
u
b
m
it
 a
u
d
it
e
d
 W

G
A
 r
e
tu
rn
 t
o
 C
L
G

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/A
C

M
o
n
 3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
3

-4
1
5
4
7

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3

2
3
4
C
Y
P
S
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 -
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 r
e
p
o
rt

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 C
A
S

W
e
d
 0
2
 O
c
t 
2
0
1
3

2
3
5
A
W
H
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 -
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 r
e
p
o
rt

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 C
A
S

T
h
u
 0
3
 O
c
t 
2
0
1
3

K
E

Y

F
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

- 
R

e
v
e

n
u

e
s 

a
n

d
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n

ce
 -

 C
a

p
it

a
l

F
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

- 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s

P
a

y
ro

ll

C
re

d
it

o
rs

 T
e

a
m

Q
u

e
ri

e
s

Page 88



 
Audit Committee 
 
4 April 2013 

 
Action Plan 
2011/12 Audit of Accounts - Update 
 

 

 
 

Report of Don McLure, Corporate Director Resources 

 

Purpose of the Report 

1 The purpose of this report is to update Members on the progress on 
implementation of the Action Plan from the agreed recommendations for 
improving control weaknesses incorporated in the External Auditor’s 2011/12 
Interim and Final Governance Reports. 

2 The Action Plan, which was reported to Members in November, is being used 
by management for monitoring purposes and as agreed at that Committee, 
this report forms part of regular reporting leading to the approval of the 
Statement of Accounts for 2012/13. 

3 The report is presented in accordance with paragraph 4.1.26 of the 
Committee’s Operational Terms of Reference, “to monitor progress made by 
management in response to both internal and external audit findings and 
recommendations”. 

Background 

4 In July, when the Statement of Accounts was reported to the Committee, it 
was agreed that an Action Plan based on the findings of the External Audit’s 
Interim and Annual Governance reports which were presented to the 
Committee in May and September respectively, would be drawn up and 
reported to the Committee. 

5 Responsibility for the actions then agreed have, where appropriate, been 
amended to a more appropriate officer from those recorded in the version 
reported to Committee in September.  

6 The Action Plan has been incorporated into the Resources Performance 
Management Framework.  Progress on the Plan is being monitored by the 
Resources Policy Performance and Planning Manager and this report gives 
an update on progress. 

Agenda Item 9

Page 89



The Action Plan 

7 An updated action plan incorporating progress made to date is included at 
Appendix 2.  

8 All recommendations have a response to the Auditor’s findings and an action 
plan to remedy the weakness identified.  In many cases the weakness has 
now been addressed; these recommendations are marked as complete.   

9 Actions that are complete require evidence to assure the Corporate Director 
Resources and External Audit that the recommendation has been 
implemented.  This has now been identified and made available in most 
cases. 

10 As the remaining recommendations are considered by officers in more detail, 
there will be discussions with External Audit to ensure that the controls and 
procedures, either in place, or to be implemented are in line with the Auditor’s 
expectations.   

11 It is possible however, that not all recommendations will be implemented in 
full.  Any such variations will be agreed with the Corporate Director Resources 
and the reasons discussed with the External Auditor. 

Summary of Progress 

Interim Governance Report (IGR) 

12 The following table shows the progress towards implementing the External 
Audit recommendations from the IGR.  

IGR Total 
number of 
Actions 

Actions 
Outstanding 

Actions 
Completed 

Evidence 
provided 

As at 22 November 2012 

Actions from 2010/11 19 9 10 0 

New Actions for 2011/12 33 10 23 0 

 52 19 33 0 

     

As at 11 February 2013 

Actions from 2010/11 19 6 13 9 

New Actions for 2011/12 33 4 29 24 

 52 10 42 33 

     

As at 18 March 2013 

Actions from 2010/11 19 2* 17 13 

New Actions for 2011/12 33 2 31 28 

 52 4 48 41 

* One outstanding action has a completion date 30 September 2014. 

Page 90



13 The above table shows that a further 6 of the recommended actions have 
been completed since the February report, and evidence has now been 
provided for 41 of the 48 completed actions. 

Annual Governance Report (AGR) 

14 Of the 6 recommendations detailed in the AGR, two were due to be complete 
by 28 February 2013.   

15 Recommendation 1 – Revaluations – Schools, is now complete.  Valuations 
have been received in line with the requirements of the Rolling Programme. 

16 Recommendation 3 – Asset Register – Migration of Housing Dwellings is 
partly complete.  Two of the three former Districts’ Housing Assets have been 
successfully migrated into the Single Asset Register; the third is currently with 
CIPFA to be processed.  It is anticipated that this will be completed, subject to 
any delays at CIPFA, by 31 March 2013.  This delay will not affect the 
completion of the Statement of Accounts. 

17 Work is on-going to put in place procedures to implement the remaining 
recommendations by their due date. 

18 The monitoring of progress will continue through the Resources Performance 
Management Framework. 

Recommendation and reasons 

19 Members are asked to note the updated action plan attached at Appendix 2 
and to gain assurance that control weaknesses identified through the final 
account audit process are being appropriately addressed.    

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Background papers 

(a) Audit Committee – 22 November 2012 – Action Plan - 2011/12 Audit of 
Accounts 

(b) Audit Committee – 22 February 2013 – Action Plan - 2011/12 Audit of 
Accounts - Update 

 

 

Contact:  Hilary Appleton Tel: 03000 266239  

Page 91



 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

 
Finance –   
None 
 
Staffing -  

None 

 

Risk -  

None 

 

Equality and Diversity -  

None 

 

Accommodation -  

None 

 

Crime and Disorder -  

None 

 

Human Rights -  

None 

 

Consultation -  

None 

 

Procurement -  

None 

 

Disability Discrimination Act -  

None 

 

Legal Implications -  

None 

 
 

Page 92



R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
F

in
d

in
g

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
P

ri
o

ri
ty

A
u

d
it

o
r 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

e
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

E
v

id
e

n
c

e
 

P
ro

v
id

e
d

C
o

m
p

le
te

 B
y

:
O

n
 t

a
rg

e
t/

 a
h

e
a

d
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

t/
 b

e
h

in
d

 t
a

rg
e

t 
/ 

c
o

m
p

le
te

 /
 n

o
t 

d
u

e

1
R
e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
s
 -
 S
c
h
o
o
ls

A
s
s
e
ts
 -
 M
ic
h
a
e
l 
G
ilb
e
y

H
ig
h

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
V
a
lu
e
r 
w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
w
h
ic
h
 a
s
s
e
ts
 

a
re
 r
e
v
a
lu
e
d
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 t
o
 a
v
o
id
 a
n
y
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 w
it
h
 

p
a
rt
 v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
a
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
s
 a
t 
A
p
ri
l 
a
n
d
 a
t 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 (
3
1
 M
a
rc
h
) 
a
re
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 f
in
a
n
c
e
 a
s
 w
e
ll 

a
s
 e
s
ta
te
s
 b
e
fo
re
 d
e
c
id
in
g
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
fo
r 

th
e
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
. 
A
 f
u
ll 
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
s
 a
t 
1
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
.

R
o
lli
n
g
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 w
it
h
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 

A
g
re
e
 r
o
lli
n
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 

v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
it
h
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
. 
 

Is
s
u
e
 i
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 A
s
s
e
ts
 -
 

V
a
lu
e
r.
  
C
o
m
p
le
te
 a
g
re
e
d
 

v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 a
g
re
e
d
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
,

T
h
e
 r
o
lli
n
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 

v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
o
r.
  
T
h
e
 

in
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 V
a
lu
e
r 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 i
s
s
u
e
d
, 
re
q
u
e
s
ti
n
g
 

v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
 

2
8
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
3
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 F
in
a
l 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 T
im
e
ta
b
le
.

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

C
o
m
p
le
te

T
h
e
 R
o
lli
n
g
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 

a
s
s
e
ts
: 
C
Y
P
S
 P
h
a
s
e
 B
, 
S
u
rp
lu
s
, 
A
s
s
e
ts
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 

S
a
le
, 
in
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t,
 H
o
u
s
in
g
, 
A
d
-H
o
c
, 
a
n
d
 A
n
n
u
a
l 

Im
p
a
ir
m
e
n
t 
R
e
v
ie
w
. 
  
A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 W

e
a
r 
V
a
lle
y
 w
a
s
 

th
e
 o
n
ly
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
re
a
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 a
 f
u
ll 
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
, 

o
w
in
g
 t
o
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 v
a
lu
e
s
 s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 f
u
ll 
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 a
 s
a
m
p
le
 o
f 
D
u
rh
a
m
 C
it
y
 

a
n
d
 E
a
s
in
g
to
n
 a
re
a
 h
o
u
s
e
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
v
a
lu
e
d
 a
n
d
 

a
s
 t
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 n
o
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 v
a
lu
e
 

s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 L
a
n
d
 

R
e
g
is
tr
y
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 i
m
p
a
ir
m
e
n
t 
w
a
s
 d
e
e
m
e
d
 t
o
 

b
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
rr
e
c
t 
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 w
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 S
u
rp
lu
s
 a
n
d
 I
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 b
u
t 

th
e
s
e
 a
re
 n
o
t 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 u
n
ti
l 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 w
it
h
 a
 

v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 d
a
te
 o
f 
3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
.

2
A
s
s
e
t 
R
e
g
is
te
r 

R
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 L
e
d
g
e
r

Ia
n
 H
e
rb
e
rs
o
n

H
ig
h

R
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 f
ix
e
d
 a
s
s
e
t 
re
g
is
te
r 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
le
d
g
e
r 
s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
lo
s
e
d
o
w
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
 a
n
d
 m
u
s
t 
re
c
o
n
c
ile
 t
o
 a
ll 
fi
g
u
re
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 P
P
E
 n
o
te
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
. 
T
h
is
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
a
p
e
rs
 a
n
d
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 p
ri
o
r 

to
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 d
ra
ft
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
. 
T
h
e
 a
s
s
e
t 

re
g
is
te
r 
s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 

y
e
a
r 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
d
d
it
io
n
s
).

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
, 
th
e
y
 

d
id
 n
o
t 
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
ly
 v
e
ri
fy
 a
ll 
th
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

P
P
E
 n
o
te
. 
 F
ro
m
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 

w
ill
 b
e
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 v
e
ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
ll 

m
o
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 P
P
E
 N
o
te
. 
 I
t 
is
 

a
g
re
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 a
s
s
e
t 
re
g
is
te
r 
s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

u
p
d
a
te
d
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
d
d
it
io
n
s
),
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
is
 i
s
 a
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 a
s
 i
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
l 

re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
d
d
it
io
n
s
 t
o
 c
a
p
it
a
l 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
, 
w
h
ic
h
 i
t 
is
 o
n
ly
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 f
in
a
lis
e
 

a
t 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
. 
 I
t 
is
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
ti
m
e
 c
o
n
s
u
m
in
g
 

e
x
e
rc
is
e
 t
o
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
 t
h
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
s
 f
o
r 
a
d
d
in
g
 

v
a
lu
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
s
s
e
t.

C
o
m
p
le
te
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ila
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
a
ll 

e
n
tr
ie
s
 i
n
 P
P
E
 n
o
te
. 
E
v
a
lu
a
te
 

th
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
o
f 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
s
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r.

3
0
-J
u
n
-1
3

N
o
t 
D
u
e

3
A
s
s
e
t 
R
e
g
is
te
r 
- 

M
ig
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 

D
w
e
lli
n
g
s

Ia
n
 H
e
rb
e
rs
o
n

H
ig
h

E
a
s
in
g
to
n
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
D
w
e
lli
n
g
s
 r
e
c
o
rd
s
 a
re
 h
e
ld
 o
n
 a
 

v
ill
a
g
e
 b
a
s
is
 a
n
d
 n
o
t 
o
n
 a
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
a
s
s
e
t 
b
a
s
is
. 
T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 l
o
o
k
 t
o
 m
ig
ra
te
 a
ll 
th
re
e
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
s
s
e
t 

re
g
is
te
rs
 f
o
r 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
d
w
e
lli
n
g
s
 o
n
to
 t
h
e
 I
P
F
 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
a
s
 s
o
o
n
 a
s
 i
s
 p
ra
c
ti
c
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
is
 

is
s
u
e
. 

S
e
p
a
ra
te
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 -
 2
2
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2

T
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
h
a
s
 s
u
ff
e
re
d
 s
o
m
e
 

d
e
la
y
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 d
e
la
y
s
 a
t 
C
IP
F
A
 

in
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 d
a
ta
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 

c
o
n
fl
ic
ti
n
g
 w
o
rk
lo
a
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
 

It
 i
s
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 A
s
s
e
ts
 

w
ill
 b
e
 w
it
h
 C
IP
F
A
 b
y
 2
8
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
3
. 
 T
h
is
 d
e
la
y
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 c
lo
s
in
g
 o
f 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
.

2
8
-F
e
b
-1
3

W
e
a
r 
V
a
lle
y
 a
n
d
 E
a
s
in
g
to
n
 H
o
s
u
in
g
 A
s
s
e
ts
 h
a
v
e
 

n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 b
y
 C
IP
F
A
 a
n
d
 a
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

in
 t
h
e
 l
iv
e
 A
s
s
e
t 
R
e
g
is
te
r.
  
T
h
e
s
e
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 f
u
lly
 

re
c
o
n
c
ile
d
. 
 C
it
y
 o
f 
D
u
rh
a
m
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 A
s
s
e
ts
 a
re
 

w
it
h
 C
IP
F
A
 f
o
r 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 t
e
s
t 
s
y
s
te
m
, 

a
n
d
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
iv
e
 A
s
s
e
t 
R
e
g
is
te
r 

b
y
 3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
, 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
n
y
 d
e
la
y
s
 a
t 

C
IP
F
A
.

4
W
o
rk
in
g
 P
a
p
e
rs

H
ila
ry
 A
p
p
le
to
n

H
ig
h

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
fi
n
a
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 p
a
p
e
rs
 a
re
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 b
y
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
lo
s
e
d
o
w
n
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 a
 f
u
ll 
s
e
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 

th
e
 b
e
g
in
n
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 a
u
d
it
. 
T
h
e
re
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
 c
le
a
r 

a
u
d
it
 t
ra
il 
to
 t
h
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 n
o
te
s
. 

T
h
is
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
ill
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
 e
ff
o
rt
 b
u
t 
I 
a
m
 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 
th
a
t 
th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
a
u
d
it
 q
u
e
ri
e
s
 w
ill
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 

a
n
d
 m
o
re
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
tl
y
 s
o
 w
ill
 t
h
e
 d
e
m
a
n
d
s
 o
n
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
’ 

ti
m
e
.

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 a
re
 d
is
c
u
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

a
t 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
n
t 
o
f 
w
o
rk
in
g
 p
a
p
e
rs
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
o
r 
w
o
u
ld
 e
x
p
e
c
t 
to
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
. 
 W

h
e
n
 

d
e
v
is
in
g
 t
h
e
 F
in
a
l 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 t
im
e
ta
b
le
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 C
lo
s
u
re
 o
f 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
, 
it
 i
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 

b
u
ild
 i
n
 a
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
im
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
g
o
o
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
a
p
e
rs
. 
 A
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 

re
p
o
s
it
o
ry
 w
ill
 b
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te
ly
 s
ig
n
p
o
s
ts
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
a
p
e
rs
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 N
o
te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
.

A
d
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 '
w
o
rk
in
g
 p
a
p
e
r 

c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
' 
in
to
 F
in
a
l 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 

T
im
e
ta
b
le
. 
C
re
a
te
 a
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 

re
p
o
s
it
o
ry
 f
o
r 
th
e
 d
e
p
o
s
it
 o
f 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
a
p
e
rs
 

re
a
d
y
 f
o
r 
E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 
 E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 

q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
th
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
a
p
e
rs
 i
s
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
.

3
0
-J
u
n
-1
3

N
o
t 
D
u
e

5
H
R
A
 R
e
n
ts

A
z
h
a
r 
R
a
fi
q

H
ig
h

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 w
e
re
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 b
re
a
k
d
o
w
n
 

o
f 
th
e
 w
e
e
k
ly
 r
e
n
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 f
ig
u
re
, 
fo
r 
th
e
 w
e
e
k
 

0
2
/0
1
/2
0
1
2
 –
 0
8
/0
1
/2
0
1
2
, 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 D
u
rh
a
m
 C
it
y
 

H
o
m
e
s
 r
e
n
ts
 s
y
s
te
m
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
n
ly
 o
n
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
w
h
o
 

w
o
rk
s
 o
ff
s
it
e
 h
a
s
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 t
o
 a
llo
w
 

a
n
 i
n
te
rr
o
g
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 s
y
s
te
m
. 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
a
t 
th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
h
is
 t
a
s
k
.

R
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 w
e
re
 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 R
e
n
t 
S
y
s
te
m
  
–
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 w
e
 

a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 s
y
s
te
m
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
h
ic
h
 d
e
ta
ils
 a
ll 
tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
v
e
r 
a
 p
e
ri
o
d
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
 U
n
fo
rt
u
n
a
te
ly
, 
th
is
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
s
 a
 t
e
x
t 

fi
le
 a
n
d
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
ili
ty
 t
o
 s
o
rt
/q
u
e
ry
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
iz
e
 o
f 
s
u
c
h
 f
ile
s
 c
a
n
 a
ls
o
 n
e
g
a
te
 

m
a
n
u
a
l 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
. 
 A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
ty
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
u
s
e
s
 a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r,
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 o
th
e
r 

m
e
a
n
s
 o
f 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
. 
 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
h
o
w
 

th
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
k
ill
s
 a
n
d
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

g
a
in
e
d
 b
y
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 w
ill
 l
ia
is
e
 w
it
h
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
o
rs
 p
ri
o
r 

to
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 w
h
a
t 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
/i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 A
u
d
it
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 c
a
n
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 

A
rr
a
n
g
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

to
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
s
 s
o
o
n
 a
s
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
 a
ft
e
r 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
. 

In
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 t
h
e
 p
o
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
 

p
ro
v
id
in
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 i
n
 a
 f
o
rm

a
t 

th
a
t 
a
llo
w
s
 i
n
te
rr
o
g
a
ti
o
n
 i
.e
. 
n
o
t 

a
 t
e
x
t 
fi
le
. 
 C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
h
o
w
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
s
k
ill
s
 &
 

k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 t
o
 i
n
te
rr
o
g
a
te
 t
h
e
 

s
y
s
te
m
 c
a
n
 b
e
 g
a
in
e
d
. 

3
0
-J
u
n
-1
3

N
o
t 
D
u
e

6
H
R
S
 A
L
M
O
s

A
z
h
a
r 
R
a
fi
q

H
ig
h

B
o
th
 E
a
s
t 
D
u
rh
a
m
 H
o
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 D
a
le
 a
n
d
 V
a
lle
y
 

H
o
m
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 t
o
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 s
h
o
w
 a
 

c
h
a
rg
e
 f
o
r 
‘S
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t’
 a
n
d
 

‘R
e
p
a
ir
s
 a
n
d
 M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
’ 
o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 p
e
ri
o
d
ic
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
fe
e
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 m
o
re
 r
o
b
u
s
t 

m
e
th
o
d
 f
o
r 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 t
o
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 p
re
p
a
re
 t
h
e
 

c
la
s
s
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
.

T
h
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 A
L
M
O
s
 

is
 a
 s
in
g
le
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 r
e
tu
rn
 f
o
r 
a
 s
in
g
le
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
fe
e
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
d
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
 

a
n
d
 w
e
 d
o
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
re
p
a
ir
s
 a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
. 
T
h
e
 t
w
o
 A
L
M
O
s
 p
re
p
a
re
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

a
n
d
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 

c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
s
 a
c
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 

p
u
rp
o
s
e
s
 a
 d
is
ti
n
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n
o
t 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
. 
 T
h
e
 

fi
g
u
re
s
 u
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
re
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 a
n
d
 f
u
ll 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 t
w
o
 

A
L
M
O
s
. 
T
h
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 a
re
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
is
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 
S
h
o
w
in
g
 a
 n
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
b
re
a
k
d
o
w
n
 o
n
 

th
e
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
 i
s
 n
o
t 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
. 
 T
h
e
 y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 

p
o
s
it
io
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
n
tr
ie
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 H
R
A
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 

a
re
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 A
L
M
O
 

c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
.

D
is
c
u
s
s
 t
h
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
. 
 

P
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
o
 f
 t
h
e
 s
p
lit
 o
f 
th
e
 

A
L
M
O
 f
e
e
 a
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
.

3
0
-J
u
n
-1
3

N
o
t 
D
u
e

Page 93



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



2
0
1
0
/1
1

F
in
d
in
g

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y

P
ri
o
ri
ty

A
u
d
it
o
r 
C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e

A
c
ti
o
n
s

C
o
m
p
le
te
 b
y
:

U
p
d
a
te
:

E
v
id
e
n
c
e

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1
: 
G
e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 
–
 J
o
u
rn
a
l 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 (
E
x
.6
) 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
c
c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 a
ll 
jo
u
rn
a
ls
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 a
llo

w
 t
h
e
 '
in
p
u
tt
e
r'
 t
o
 v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 i
ts
 a
c
c
u
ra
c
y
 b
e
fo
re
 p
o
s
ti
n
g
.

N
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 a
c
c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
s
 j
o
u
rn
a
ls
 w
h
e
n
 s
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 L
e
d
g
e
r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
 f
o
r 
in
p
u
t.
 I
n
s
te
a
d
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 k
e
e
p
 a
ll 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
. 
It
 i
s
 

th
e
re
fo
re
 n
o
t 
c
le
a
r 
h
o
w
 t
h
e
 L
e
d
g
e
r 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
 k
n
o
w
 t
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 j
o
u
rn
a
l 

a
re
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
.

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 A
L
L
 /
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 A
L
L

H
ig
h

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 j
o
u
rn
a
ls
 b
e
in
g
 i
n
p
u
t 
w
it
h
 n
o
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
w
h
a
t 

th
e
 j
o
u
rn
a
l 
is
 f
o
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
in
a
c
c
u
ra
te
 j
o
u
rn
a
ls
 a
re
 i
n
p
u
t 
in
to
 t
h
e
 

G
e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r

J
o
u
rn
a
ls
 a
re
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
n
ts
 w
h
o
 r
e
ta
in
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
. 
 T
h
e
 L
e
d
g
e
r 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
te
a
m
’s
 r
o
le
 i
s
 t
o
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

jo
u
rn
a
ls
 a
n
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 j
o
u
rn
a
l 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
rr
e
c
tl
y
 e
n
te
re
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 

s
y
s
te
m
. 
 A
c
c
u
ra
c
y
 c
h
e
c
k
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 j
o
u
rn
a
l 
e
n
tr
ie
s
 a
re
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
in
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.

C
o
m
p
le
te

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
a
l 
to
 a
tt
a
c
h
 a
ll 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 

jo
u
rn
a
ls
. 
 I
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 F
in
a
l 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
 t
h
a
t 
w
h
e
re
 i
t 
is
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 a
tt
a
c
h
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
, 

th
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
o
n
e
.

N
/A

�
 

7
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2
: 
G
e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r:
  
J
o
u
rn
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 (
E
x
.7
) 
 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
jo
u
rn
a
ls
 b
e
fo
re
 p
o
s
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 

L
e
d
g
e
r.

A
 j
o
u
rn
a
l 
c
h
o
s
e
n
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 w
a
lk
th
ro
u
g
h
 h
a
d
 n
o
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 i
n
p
u
t 

in
to
 t
h
e
 G

L
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
jo
u
rn
a
l 
e
n
tr
ie
s
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 

b
y
 a
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
p
ri
o
r 
to
 u
p
lo
a
d
. 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 H

ila
ry
 

A
p
p
le
to
n

H
ig
h

W
it
h
o
u
t 
a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 r
is
k
 t
h
a
t 
e
rr
o
rs
 m

a
y
 n
o
t 
b
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 J
o
u
rn
a
l 
b
e
in
g
 i
n
p
u
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
in
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

jo
u
rn
a
ls
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
o
s
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 G

L

T
h
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
jo
u
rn
a
ls
 w
a
s
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a
t 
th
e
 l
a
s
t 
a
u
d
it
. 
 T
h
e
 

v
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 
jo
u
rn
a
ls
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 b
y
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 w
ill
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
re
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 d
o
n
e
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
tl
y
. 
 A
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
, 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 w
ill
 i
s
s
u
e
 i
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 

te
a
m
s
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 j
o
u
rn
a
ls
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r.
  

T
h
is
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 t
h
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
o
f 
a
n
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 b
e
s
t 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
.

C
o
m
p
le
te

A
n
 o
n
-l
in
e
 m

e
th
o
d
 o
f 
jo
u
rn
a
l 
a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
w
a
s
 

p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a
t 
F
S
P
 -
 t
h
e
 g
ro
u
p
 

o
f 
s
e
n
io
r 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs
. 
T
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

w
a
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
fi
rm

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 F
in
a
l 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

m
e
th
o
d
 o
f 
a
p
p
ro
v
a
l.
  
T
h
is
 G

ro
u
p
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
 p
a
p
e
r-
b
a
s
e
d
 s
y
s
te
m
 f
o
r 

jo
u
rn
a
l 
a
p
p
ro
v
a
ls
. 
 T
h
is
 s
y
s
te
m
 w
ill
 b
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 i
m
m
e
d
ia
te
ly
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
jo
u
rn
a
ls
 o
v
e
r 

£
1
m
, 
a
n
d
 i
s
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
w
it
h
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 

fo
r 
jo
u
rn
a
l 
a
p
p
ro
v
a
ls
. 
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
o
r.

B
ri
e
fi
n
g
 n
o
te
 t
o
 

F
S
P
, 
M
in
u
te
s
 o
f 

F
S
P
 a
n
d
 

m
in
u
te
s
 o
f 
F
in
a
l 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

G
ro
u
p

�
 

1
3

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3
: 
G
e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r:
 D
a
ta
s
e
t 
re
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
s
 (
E
x
.8
) 
 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
d
a
ta
s
e
t 
u
p
lo
a
d
 f
ile

s
.

IC
O
N
 c
a
s
h
 r
e
c
e
ip
ti
n
g
, 
D
u
rh
a
m
 C

it
y
 H

o
m
e
s
 r
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 p
a
y
ro
ll 
d
a
ta
s
e
ts
 a
re
 u
p
lo
a
d
e
d
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
  
- 
L
e
d
g
e
r 

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
d
a
ta
s
e
ts
 r
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 u
p
lo
a
d
 o
f 

P
a
rt
ia
lly
 a
 L
e
d
g
e
r 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
is
s
u
e
. 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 f
ile

s
 t
o
 

C
o
m
p
le
te

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

L
o
g
 o
f 
e
rr
o
rs
 

P
ro

p
o

se
 a

 m
e

th
o

d
 o

f 
jo

u
rn

a
l a

p
p

ro
v
a

l

D
is

cu
ss

 w
it

h
 F

in
a

n
ci

a
l S

tr
a

te
g
y
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g
 G

ro
u

p
 (

F
S
P

)

A
g
re

e
 w

it
h

 E
xt

e
rn

a
l A

u
d

it

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
a

 p
ro

ce
ss

 o
f 

Jo
u

rn
a

l A
p

p
ro

v
a

ls

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g
 d

o
cu

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 is

 a
tt

a
ch

e
d

 t
o

 a
ll

 jo
u

rn
a

l e
n

tr
ie

s 
co

m
p

le
te

d

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g
 d

o
cu

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 is

 a
tt

a
ch

e
d

 t
o

 a
ll

 jo
u

rn
a

l e
n

tr
ie

s 
co

m
p

le
te

d

IC
O
N
 c
a
s
h
 r
e
c
e
ip
ti
n
g
, 
D
u
rh
a
m
 C

it
y
 H

o
m
e
s
 r
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 p
a
y
ro
ll 
d
a
ta
s
e
ts
 a
re
 u
p
lo
a
d
e
d
 

in
to
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r.
 H

o
w
e
v
e
r,
 i
t 
is
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 a
m
e
n
d
 t
h
e
 d
a
ta
s
e
ts
. 
 A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 

th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 r
is
k
 o
f 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 d
a
ta
s
e
ts
 b
e
fo
re
 p
o
s
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r.
  

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 P
a
y
ro
ll 
a
n
d
 c
a
s
h
 r
e
c
e
ip
ti
n
g
 u
p
lo
a
d
 f
ile

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 D

u
rh
a
m
 r
e
n
ts
 u
p
lo
a
d
 f
ile

 t
o
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 

L
e
d
g
e
r.
 T
h
is
 a
ls
o
 a
ff
e
c
ts
 G

L
 A
IM

 u
p
lo
a
d
s
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 .
d
a
t 
fo
rm

a
t,
 r
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

p
o
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
fi
le
s
 b
e
fo
re
 u
p
lo
a
d
 i
n
to
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r.
  
  

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
  
- 
L
e
d
g
e
r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
/S
e
rv
ic
e
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 A
L
L

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
d
a
ta
s
e
ts
 r
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 u
p
lo
a
d
 o
f 

e
rr
o
rs
 t
o
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r

P
a
rt
ia
lly
 a
 L
e
d
g
e
r 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
is
s
u
e
. 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 f
ile

s
 t
o
 

a
llo

w
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
. 
 T
h
is
 i
s
 t
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 h
e
a
d
e
rs
, 
fo
o
te
rs
 o
r 
p
e
ri
o
d
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

fi
le
s
 a
re
 ‘
u
n
iq
u
e
’,
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 u
n
iq
u
e
 ‘
h
e
a
d
e
rs
’ 
s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 u
p
lo
a
d
e
d
 i
n
to
 O

ra
c
le
. 
 T
h
e
 o
ri
g
in
a
ti
n
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
a
n
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
 m

o
re
 

th
a
n
 o
n
e
 f
ile

 o
f 
d
a
ta
 p
e
r 
d
a
y
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 h
e
a
d
e
r 
w
h
ic
h
 i
t 
is
 n
o
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 

u
p
lo
a
d
 i
n
to
 O

ra
c
le
. 
  
It
 i
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
u
p
lo
a
d
 f
ile

s
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 l
o
c
k
e
d
 t
o
 p
re
v
e
n
t 

a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t.
  
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
y
s
te
m
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
o
s
tl
y
 a
n
d
 

u
n
lik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 a
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
. 
 C

o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 I
C
T
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 l
o
c
k
 

th
e
 f
ile

(s
) 
w
o
u
ld
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 s
o
u
g
h
t.
  
A
s
 a
ll 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 

c
o
rr
e
c
ti
o
n
 f
a
c
ili
ty
 i
n
 O

ra
c
le
, 
th
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 r
e
a
s
o
n
, 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 I
T
 b
e
in
g
 a
b
le
 t
o
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
 

th
is
, 
th
a
t 
fi
le
s
 m

a
y
 n
o
t 
b
e
 l
o
c
k
e
d
.

C
o
m
p
le
te

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 o
f 
fi
le
s
 o
f 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
to
 O

ra
c
le
. 
 

A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
, 
it
 i
s
 u
n
d
e
rs
to
o
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 l
o
c
k
in
g
 

d
a
ta
s
e
ts
 w
o
u
ld
 c
a
u
s
e
 d
e
la
y
s
 i
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
, 

d
u
e
 t
o
 h
a
v
in
g
 t
o
 r
e
tu
rn
 f
ile

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o
ri
g
in
a
to
r 

fo
r 
re
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
. 
 I
f 
th
e
 e
rr
o
r 
is
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
a
 

s
y
s
te
m
, 
s
im

p
ly
 r
e
-r
u
n
n
in
g
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
re
m
e
d
y
 

th
e
 p
ro
b
le
m
, 
b
u
t 
w
o
u
ld
 m

e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
v
a
ila

b
le
 i
n
 O

ra
c
le
. 
 I
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 L
e
d
g
e
r 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
te
a
m
 w
ill
 r
e
ta
in
 t
h
e
 

a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 a
m
e
n
d
 d
a
ta
s
e
ts
 t
h
a
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
 e
rr
o
rs
 

p
ri
o
r 
to
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 i
n
to
 O

ra
c
le
, 
b
u
t 
w
ill
 k
e
e
p
 a
 

lo
g
 o
f 
th
e
 e
rr
o
rs
 a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 a
s
k
 

th
e
 o
ri
g
in
a
to
r 
to
 a
m
e
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
rr
o
r 
in
 f
u
tu
re
 

fi
le
s
.

L
o
g
 o
f 
e
rr
o
rs
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le
 f
o
r 

A
u
d
it
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 -
 

th
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le
 f
ro
m
 

2
5
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
.

�
 

1
0

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 4
: 
G
e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r:
 O
p
e
n
in
g
 B
a
la
n
c
e
s
 (
E
x
. 
9
) 
 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 o
p
e
n
in
g
 b
a
la
n
c
e
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 
h
a
s
 

b
ro
u
g
h
t 
th
e
 c
o
rr
e
c
t 
b
a
la
n
c
e
s
 f
o
rw

a
rd
.

T
h
e
 O

ra
c
le
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 
a
u
to
m
a
ti
c
a
lly
 c
a
rr
ie
s
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 O

p
e
n
in
g
 b
a
la
n
c
e
s
. 
 O

ff
ic
e
rs
 

a
re
 u
n
a
w
a
re
 o
f 
a
n
y
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 t
o
 c
h
e
c
k
 o
p
e
n
in
g
 b
a
la
n
c
e
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 a
re
 c
o
rr
e
c
t.

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
/F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

S
y
s
te
m
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 O

ra
c
le
 G

L
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
c
a
rr
y
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 t
h
e
 o
p
e
n
in
g
 

b
a
la
n
c
e
s
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
ly
, 
a
n
d
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 d
o
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
is
 a
s
 n
o
 

re
v
ie
w
 t
a
k
e
s
 p
la
c
e
.

O
ra
c
le
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
b
ri
n
g
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 b
a
la
n
c
e
s
; 
it
 p
e
rp
e
tu
a
lly
 c
a
lc
u
la
te
s
 b
a
la
n
c
e
s
 o
n
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 s
u
m
 o
f 
th
e
 t
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
. 
 T
h
e
 o
p
e
n
in
g
 b
a
la
n
c
e
s
 w
e
re
 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 

b
y
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
ft
e
r 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 w
e
re
 m

a
d
e
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
u
d
it
 o
f 
th
e
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 l
e
d
g
e
r 
m
a
tc
h
e
d
 t
h
e
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
. 
 

C
o
m
p
le
te

T
h
e
 b
a
la
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 O

ra
c
le
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 
h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
. 
 T
h
e
 a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 

m
a
d
e
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 t
h
e
 A
u
d
it
 o
f 
th
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 a
re
 

s
ti
ll 
to
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 
 T
h
is
 i
s
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 t
o
 b
e
 

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 h
e
ld
 

o
n
 f
ile

 i
n
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
.

C
h

e
ck

 t
h

e
 o

p
e

n
in

g
 b

a
la

n
ce

s 
in

 O
ra

cl
e

 a
re

 c
o

n
si

st
e

n
t 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 
S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
A

cc
o

u
n

ts
.

In
v
e

st
ig

a
te

 t
h

e
 p

o
ss

ib
il

it
y
 o

f 
lo

ck
in

g
 f

il
e

s 
th

a
t 

a
re

 t
o

 b
e

 
u

p
lo

a
d

e
d

 in
to

 O
ra

cl
e

.

R
e

q
u

e
st

 IC
T

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

 t
h

e
 l
o

ck
in

g
 o

f 
fi

le
s,

 i
f 

p
o

ss
ib

le
 t

o
 d

o
 t

h
is

.

s
ti
ll 
to
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 
 T
h
is
 i
s
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 t
o
 b
e
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
 b
y
 2
8
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
3
. 
 C

o
m
p
le
te
d
 

b
y
 3
1
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
.

�
1
1

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 5
: 
G
e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r:
 T
ri
a
l 
B
a
la
n
c
e
 (
E
x
.1
0
) 
 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
tr
ia
l 
b
a
la
n
c
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 m

a
jo
r 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
s
.

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
g
u
la
r 
tr
ia
l 
b
a
la
n
c
e
s
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
ta
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
. 
T
ri
a
l 
b
a
la
n
c
e
s
 

a
re
 i
n
s
te
a
d
 o
n
ly
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
t 
th
e
 y
e
a
r-
e
n
d

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 I
a
n
 

H
e
rb
e
rs
o
n

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 i
m
b
a
la
n
c
e
 o
c
c
u
rs
 t
h
a
t 
is
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 y
e
a
r-
e
n
d
. 
T
ri
a
l 
b
a
la
n
c
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
ti
v
e
ly
 t
e
s
te
d
 a
t 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
.

A
g
re
e
d
. 
T
ri
a
l 
b
a
la
n
c
e
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 w
e
e
k
ly
, 
d
a
ily
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
l 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 p
e
ri
o
d
. 
A
 t
ri
a
l 
b
a
la
n
c
e
 w
a
s
 r
u
n
 o
n
 9
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
, 
a
h
e
a
d
 o
f 
th
e
 f
in
a
l 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 p
e
ri
o
d
 a
n
d
 w
a
s
 i
n
 b
a
la
n
c
e
. 
 D

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r,
 t
ri
a
l 
b
a
la
n
c
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

ru
n
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 i
s
 i
n
 b
a
la
n
c
e
. 
 O

n
 a
 m

o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
, 
th
e
re
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 

a
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 D

is
c
o
v
e
re
r 
R
e
p
o
rt
s
. 
D
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r,
 t
ri
a
l 
b
a
la
n
c
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 r
u
n
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 i
s
 i
n
 b
a
la
n
c
e
. 
 O

n
 a
 m

o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
, 
th
e
re
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 

b
e
 a
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 D

is
c
o
v
e
re
r 
R
e
p
o
rt
s
. 

C
o
m
p
le
te

T
ri
a
l 
b
a
la
n
c
e
s
 a
re
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 m

o
n
th
ly
 a
n
d
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 u
p
 t
o
 3
1
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
3
. 
 T
h
is
 s
y
s
te
m
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 

s
in
c
e
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
.

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 h
e
ld
 

o
n
 f
ile

 i
n
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
.

�
3
5

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 6
: 
G
e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r:
 E
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 (
E
x
. 
1
1
) 
 T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 a
 s
y
s
te
m
 o
f 
a
p
p
ro
v
in
g
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 u
s
in
g
 e
m
a
ils
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 

re
q
u
ir
e
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
v
in
g
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
to
 e
m
a
il 
th
e
 p
re
p
a
re
r 
to
 c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

a
c
c
u
ra
te
.

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 m

o
n
th
ly
 D

ri
v
e
 t
o
 O

ra
c
le
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
A
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
th
e
n
 

re
v
ie
w
s
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 a
n
 e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 

m
a
k
e
s
 i
s
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 v
e
ri
fy
 t
h
e
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
. 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 I
a
n
 

H
e
rb
e
rs
o
n

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
ta
k
e
 p
la
c
e
.

T
h
e
 w
e
e
k
ly
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 f
ile

s
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 A
IM

 i
n
te
rf
a
c
e
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 f
o
rm

e
r 
D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 A
g
re
s
s
o
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 t
o
 O

ra
c
le
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
o
c
c
u
rs
. 
 A
s
 t
h
e
 

A
g
re
s
s
o
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
, 
th
is
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

a
p
p
lic
a
b
le
.

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

N
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

a
p
p
li
c
a
b
le

�
1
4

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 7
: 
P
a
y
ro
ll
: 
N
o
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 s
ig
n
a
to
ri
e
s
 l
is
t 
(E
x
.1
4
) 
 E
it
h
e
r 
th
e
 

P
a
y
ro
ll 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
r 
th
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 D

e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 s
h
o
u
ld
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 a
n
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 s
ig
n
a
to
ri
e
s
 

lis
t,
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
 o
f 
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 o
f 
fr
a
u
d
u
le
n
t 
ti
m
e
 s
h
e
e
ts

N
e
it
h
e
r 
th
e
 P
a
y
ro
ll 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 n
o
r 
th
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 k
e
e
p
 a
n
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 

s
ig
n
a
to
ri
e
s
 l
is
t.
 I
t 
is
 n
o
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 c
o
n
fi
rm

 a
n
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
h
a
s
 s
ig
n
e
d
 t
h
e
 m

a
n
u
a
l 

H
R
 -
 P
a
y
ro
ll 
a
n
d
 P
e
n
s
io
n
s
 -
 

N
ic
k
 O

rt
o
n

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 o
f 
in
a
c
c
u
ra
te
 o
r 
fr
a
u
d
u
le
n
t 
c
la
im

s
 

w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 s
u
p
e
rv
is
in
g
 o
ff
ic
e
r

C
re
a
ti
n
g
, 
m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 u
s
in
g
 a
n
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 s
ig
n
a
to
ri
e
s
 l
is
t 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t,
 l
a
b
o
u
r 
in
te
n
s
iv
e
 p
a
p
e
r 
b
a
s
e
d
 t
a
s
k
 w
h
ic
h
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 d
o
u
b
tf
u
l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
. 

In
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
L
in
k
 

is
 n
o
w
 g
o
in
g
 f
o
rw

a
rd
s
 v
ia
 a
 f
o
rm

a
l 
p
ro
je
c
t 

3
0
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
4

R
e

co
rd

 t
h

e
 v

e
ri

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 b

a
la

n
ce

s 
a

n
d

 s
ig

n
 o

ff
.

E
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

T
ri

a
l B

a
la

n
ce

s 
a

re
 p

ro
d

u
ce

d
 o

n
 a

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

b
a

si
s

E
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 T
ri

a
l B

a
la

n
ce

s 
a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

rr
e

ct
iv

e
 

a
ct

io
n

 t
a

k
e

n
 w

h
e

re
 n

e
ce

ss
a

ry
.

E
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 T
ri

a
l B

a
la

n
ce

s 
a

re
 f

il
e

d
 c

e
n

tr
a

ll
y
 f

o
r 

e
v
id

e
n

ce
 

o
f 

co
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

rr
e

ct
n

e
ss

.

D
e

ci
d

e
 o

n
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 f
u

n
ct

io
n

a
li

ty
 in

 
s
ig
n
a
to
ri
e
s
 l
is
t.
 I
t 
is
 n
o
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 c
o
n
fi
rm

 a
n
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
h
a
s
 s
ig
n
e
d
 t
h
e
 m

a
n
u
a
l 

ti
m
e
 s
h
e
e
ts
. 
 

N
ic
k
 O

rt
o
n

w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 s
u
p
e
rv
is
in
g
 o
ff
ic
e
r

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t,
 l
a
b
o
u
r 
in
te
n
s
iv
e
 p
a
p
e
r 
b
a
s
e
d
 t
a
s
k
 w
h
ic
h
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 d
o
u
b
tf
u
l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
. 

A
 m

o
re
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
fi
rm

in
g
 t
h
e
 v
a
lid

it
y
 o
f 
c
la
im

s
 i
s
 t
o
 m

o
v
e
 w
h
e
re
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 o
f 
c
la
im

s
. 
T
h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 

s
u
b
m
it
ti
n
g
/a
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
la
im

s
 i
s
 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir
 l
o
g
g
in
g
 o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

s
y
s
te
m
. 
O
n
lin

e
 m

ile
a
g
e
 c
la
im

s
 a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 b
e
in
g
 r
o
lle

d
 o
u
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 

T
h
e
 p
a
y
ro
ll 
s
y
s
te
m
 a
llo

w
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
a
c
ili
ty
 t
o
 a
llo

w
 e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 o
f 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
h
o
u
rs
 w
o
rk
e
d
. 
S
o
m
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 

o
n
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
to
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
is
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
a
lit
y
 i
s
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 3
0
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
1
2
. 
  
  
  
 

A
t 
p
re
s
e
n
t,
 a
 c
h
e
c
k
 i
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
to
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 t
h
a
t 
ti
m
e
s
h
e
e
ts
 a
n
d
 c
la
im

s
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 s
ig
n
e
d
. 
 T
h
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 m

o
d
u
le
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
rd
in
g
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
h
o
u
rs
 o
n
 a
 

s
e
lf
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
a
s
is
, 
s
im

ila
r 
to
 t
h
e
 M

y
V
ie
w
 s
y
s
te
m
, 
s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
a
b
le
 t
h
o
u
g
h
 i
t 

is
 n
o
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 a
t 
th
is
 t
im

e
 t
o
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
 t
h
e
 t
ru
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
r 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 /
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 s
u
c
h
 a
 s
y
s
te
m
. 
A
 R

e
s
o
u
rc
e
lin

k
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
 i
s
 

in
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
t 
is
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
s
 a
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
s
y
s
te
m
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
 A
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 h
ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 R

e
s
o
u
rc
e
lin

k
 s
y
s
te
m
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

p
ro
je
c
t 
b
o
a
rd
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 8
: 
P
a
y
ro
ll
: 
B
A
C
S
 p
a
y
 r
u
n
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 (
E
x
.1
5
) 
 T
h
e
 P
a
y
ro
ll 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
 T
e
a
m
 S
u
p
e
rv
is
o
r 
a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
s
 a
ll 
B
A
C
S
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 f
ile

s

A
ft
e
r 
c
re
a
ti
n
g
 a
 B
A
C
S
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 f
ile

 t
h
e
 T
e
a
m
 S
u
p
e
rv
is
o
r 
a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
s
 a
 h
a
rd
 c
o
p
y
 o
f 

th
e
 f
ile

. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 n
o
 T
e
a
m
 S
u
p
e
rv
is
o
r 
h
a
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 B
A
C
S
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 f
ile

 t
e
s
te
d
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 a
u
d
it
.

H
R
 -
 P
a
y
ro
ll 
a
n
d
 P
e
n
s
io
n
s
 -
 

N
ic
k
 O

rt
o
n

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
n
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 B
A
C
S
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 f
ile

 t
o
o
k
 

p
la
c
e
. 
In
c
re
a
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
 o
f 
in
a
c
c
u
ra
te
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
.

A
ll 
B
A
C
S
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 f
ile

s
 a
re
 n
o
w
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 b
y
 a
 T
e
a
m
 S
u
p
e
rv
is
o
r.

C
o
m
p
le
te

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

R
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 -
 F
ile

 

in
 R

e
le
v
a
n
t 

O
ff
ic
e
 i
f 

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

is
 n
o
w
 g
o
in
g
 f
o
rw

a
rd
s
 v
ia
 a
 f
o
rm

a
l 
p
ro
je
c
t 

p
la
n
 (
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 P
ro
je
c
t 
In
it
ia
ti
o
n
 D

o
c
u
m
e
n
t)
 –
 

a
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 o
n
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
o
r 
n
o
t 
to
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 o
n
lin

e
 t
im

e
s
h
e
e
t 
a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 R

e
s
o
u
rc
e
L
in
k
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
je
c
t 
a
n
d
 (
if
 a
g
re
e
d
) 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
d
 a
t 
th
e
 e
a
rl
ie
s
t 
a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
‘p
h
a
s
e
 2
’ 

 (
O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 t
o
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
4
) 
u
n
d
e
r 

‘E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 
&
 E
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 S
e
lf
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
’.

D
e

ci
d

e
 o

n
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 f
u

n
ct

io
n

a
li

ty
 in

 
R

e
so

u
rc

e
Li

n
k
 t

o
 a

ll
o

w
 e

le
ct

ro
n

ic
 s

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 o

f 
cl

a
im

s

M
o

v
e

 t
o

 e
le

ct
ro

n
ic

 s
u

b
m

is
si

o
n

 o
f 

cl
a

im
s 

-
su

b
je

ct
 t

o
 a

b
o

v
e

 
a

ct
io

n

F
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
Li

n
k
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
, i

m
p

le
m

e
n

t 
a

 m
o

d
u

le
 f

o
r 

re
co

rd
in

g
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l h
o

u
rs

.

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

2
5

/0
3

/1
3

 0
9

:5
8

C
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v\

D
a

ta
\A

g
e

n
d

a
It

e
m

D
o

cs
\7

\0
\8

\A
I0

0
0

0
9

8
0

7
\$

5
zs

yj
h

g
i.

xl
s/

IG
R

1
 o

f 
7

Page 95



2
0
1
0
/1
1

F
in
d
in
g

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y

P
ri
o
ri
ty

A
u
d
it
o
r 
C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e

A
c
ti
o
n
s

C
o
m
p
le
te
 b
y
:

U
p
d
a
te
:

E
v
id
e
n
c
e

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 9
: 
P
a
y
ro
ll
: 
V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 R
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
n
o
t 
s
ig
n
e
d
 a
n
d
 

re
tu
rn
e
d
 b
y
 l
e
a
v
e
r 
(E
x
. 
1
8
) 
  
T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
ll 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 l
e
a
v
in
g
 h
a
v
e
 

re
tu
rn
e
d
 s
ig
n
e
d
 c
o
p
ie
s
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
.

T
h
e
 l
e
a
v
e
r 
te
s
te
d
 h
a
d
 n
o
t 
s
ig
n
e
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
tu
rn
e
d
 t
h
e
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 r
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t,
 

s
e
n
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.
 O

ff
ic
e
rs
 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t
h
e
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
tu
rn
e
d
 a
 s
ig
n
e
d
 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t.
 H

o
w
e
v
e
r,
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 v
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 
re
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
ie
s
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

y
e
a
r 
th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 c
h
e
c
k
 t
h
e
 r
e
tu
rn
 o
f 
a
ll 
re
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

H
R
 -
 L
o
rr
a
in
e
 A
n
d
e
rs
o
n

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
in
c
o
rr
e
c
tl
y
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 

re
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
ie
s
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 a
g
re
e
in
g
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 

re
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
.

F
ro
m
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
2
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 f
ro
m
 o
n
e
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
p
o
in
t 
(T
h
e
 n
e
w
 

H
R
 S
e
rv
ic
e
) 
a
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 r
e
g
a
rd
 a
u
d
it
 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 c
h
e
c
k
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

to
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
ll 
c
a
s
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
ig
n
a
tu
re
s
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 c
a
s
e
s
.

C
o
m
p
le
te

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

R
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 -
 F
ile

 

in
 R

e
le
v
a
n
t 

O
ff
ic
e
 i
f 

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

�
1
2

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1
0
: 
P
a
y
ro
ll
: 
R
e
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
a
y
ro
ll
 u
p
lo
a
d
 f
il
e
s
 t
o
 G
L
 (
E
x
.1
9
) 
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
s
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
s
 a
ll 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

re
tr
o
s
p
e
c
t.

T
h
e
 L
e
d
g
e
r 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
 c
o
m
p
le
te
s
 a
 m

o
n
th
ly
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 P
a
y
ro
ll 

u
p
lo
a
d
 f
ile

s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r.
 H

o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
re
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 

a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 B
e
v
e
rl
e
y
 

W
h
it
e

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
c
c
u
ra
te
 a
n
d
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 n
o
 

re
v
ie
w
 t
a
k
e
s
 p
la
c
e
 t
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

L
e
d
g
e
r 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
te
a
m
 w
ill
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 B
e
v
e
rl
e
y
 W

h
it
e
 g
o
in
g
 f
o
rw

a
rd
. 
 T
h
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
o
n
e
 b
y
 J
o
a
n
n
e
 W

a
ts
o
n
 a
s
 t
h
e
 L
e
d
g
e
r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r’
s
 l
in
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r.

C
o
m
p
le
te

R
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 w
.e
.f
. 

0
1
.0
4
.1
2
. 
 A
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 b
y
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

o
ff
ic
e
r 
to
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 &
 w
ill
 b
e
 

c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
m
o
n
th
ly
 t
h
e
re
a
ft
e
r.
 

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 h
e
ld
 

o
n
 f
ile

 i
n
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
.

�
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1
1
: 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 P
a
y
a
b
le
: 
P
a
y
ru
n
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 (
E
x
.3
) 
 T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 a
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
p
a
y
 s
h
e
e
ts
 a
n
d
 B
A
C
S
 f
ile
s
. 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 P
a
y
a
b
le
 T
e
a
m
 L
e
a
d
e
rs
 p
re
p
a
re
 d
a
ily
 p
a
y
 r
u
n
 s
h
e
e
ts
 i
n
 O

ra
c
le
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 

th
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 p
a
y
 r
u
n
 b
y
 a
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
e
 p
a
y
 s
h
e
e
t 
is
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
. 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 K
 C

o
a
d
 /
 

C
h
ri
s
 J
o
n
e
s

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
p
a
y
s
 i
n
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
n
o
 f
o
rm

a
l 
re
v
ie
w
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 t
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

A
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
h
a
s
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 n
o
m
in
a
te
d
.

C
o
m
p
le
te

P
a
y
 S
h
e
e
ts
 a
n
d
 B
A
C
S
 f
ile

s
 a
re
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 

a
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
w
it
h
in
 A
P
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
e
 p
a
y
 s
h
e
e
t 
is
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
 a
n
d
 r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 t
re
n
d
s
.

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1
2
: 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 P
a
y
a
b
le
: 
A
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 S
ig
n
a
to
ri
e
s
 L
is
t 
(E
x
.5
0
) 
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

e
 r

e
co

n
ci

li
a

ti
o

n
s

R
e

v
ie

w
  a

n
d

 a
u

th
o

ri
se

 t
h

e
 r

e
co

n
ci

li
a

ti
o

n
s

F
il

e
 t

h
e

 r
e

co
n

ci
li

a
ti

o
n

s 
to

 e
v
id

e
n

ce
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n

E
n

su
re

 t
h

e
 B

A
C

S
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
u

th
o

ri
se

d
 b

y
 

th
e

 n
o

m
in

a
te

d
 p

e
rs

o
n

.

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1
2
: 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 P
a
y
a
b
le
: 
A
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 S
ig
n
a
to
ri
e
s
 L
is
t 
(E
x
.5
0
) 
 

T
h
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 P
a
y
a
b
le
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 a
n
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 s
ig
n
a
to
ri
e
s
 l
is
t.
 O

ff
ic
e
rs
 

c
o
u
ld
 l
im

it
 t
h
e
 l
is
ts
 s
iz
e
 b
y
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 c
e
rt
if
y
 

n
o
n
-p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 o
rd
e
r 
in
v
o
ic
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 e
a
c
h
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t.

T
h
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 P
a
y
a
b
le
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 d
o
 n
o
t 
k
e
e
p
 a
n
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 s
ig
n
a
to
ri
e
s
 l
is
t.
 A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 

th
e
y
 a
re
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 g
a
in
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
o
n
ly
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 c
e
rt
if
y
 n
o
n
-p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 

o
rd
e
r 
in
v
o
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t.
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 K
 C

o
a
d
 /
 

C
h
ri
s
 J
o
n
e
s

M
e
d
iu
m
 

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 c
e
rt
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
in
v
o
ic
e
s
 b
y
 u
n
a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 

re
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
in
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
s

T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
ig
n
a
to
ry
 l
is
t 
is
 a
v
a
ila

b
le
. 
T
h
is
 l
is
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 

u
p
d
a
te
d
 i
f 
a
p
p
lic
a
b
le
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
.

3
0
 N

o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

a
n
d
 o
n
-g
o
in
g

T
h
is
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a
t 
P
2
P
 B
o
a
rd
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 u
ti
lis
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
n
 

e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 O

ra
c
le
 A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
H
ie
ra
rc
h
y
 L
is
t.
 

T
h
e
re
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 a
 P
2
P
 B
o
a
rd
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 

s
in
c
e
 t
h
is
 i
s
s
u
e
 w
a
s
 r
a
is
e
d
, 
A
P
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 
to
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
is
 i
s
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
d
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

n
e
x
t 
m
e
e
ts
 -
 i
t 
is
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 f
o
r 
a
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t
o
 

b
e
 h
e
ld
 i
n
 M

a
rc
h
.

�
1
5

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1
3
: 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 P
a
y
a
b
le
: 
N
o
n
-P
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 O
rd
e
r 
in
v
o
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

(E
x
.5
1
) 
 A
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
s
h
o
u
ld
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
ll 
n
o
n
-p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 o
rd
e
r 
in
v
o
ic
e
s
 a
ft
e
r 

e
n
tr
y
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 P
a
y
a
b
le
 s
y
s
te
m
. 
T
h
is
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
s
h
o
u
ld
 t
h
e
n
 v
a
lid

a
te
 t
h
e
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
 

fo
r 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 h
e
lp
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 e
rr
o
rs
 o
r 
in
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
s
.

A
ft
e
r 
th
e
 m

a
n
u
a
l 
e
n
tr
y
 o
f 
n
o
n
-p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 o
rd
e
r 
in
v
o
ic
e
s
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 P
a
y
a
b
le
 

s
y
s
te
m
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 b
y
 a
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 d
e
ta
ils
 e
n
te
re
d
 a
re
 

c
o
rr
e
c
t.
  
 I
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
w
h
o
 e
n
te
re
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
 d
e
ta
ils
 a
ls
o
 m

a
n
u
a
lly
 

v
a
lid

a
te
s
 t
h
e
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 P
a
y
a
b
le
 s
y
s
te
m
, 
w
h
ic
h
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
s
 t
h
e
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
 f
o
r 

p
a
y
m
e
n
t.

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 K
 C

o
a
d
 /
 

C
h
ri
s
 J
o
n
e
s

H
ig
h

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
d
in
g
 o
r 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
e
rr
o
rs
 o
c
c
u
r 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
re
 

is
 n
o
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 e
n
te
re
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 P
a
y
a
b
le
 S
y
s
te
m
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
th
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 o
f 

in
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
is
 a
ls
o
 a
 r
is
k
, 
a
s
 t
h
e
 o
ff
ic
e
r 

e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
 d
e
ta
ils
 h
a
s
 t
h
e
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 v
a
lid

a
te
 t
h
e
 

in
v
o
ic
e
 f
o
r 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t,
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
re
v
ie
w
 f
ro
m
 a
n
o
th
e
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r.

T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
2
P
 r
e
v
ie
w
 p
ro
je
c
t 
h
a
s
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 t
h
is
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 

p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
in
v
o
ic
e
s
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 t
h
is
 w
a
y
, 
fr
o
m
 5
0
%
 t
o
 1
0
%
. 
O
n
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 

th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 (
J
a
n
 2
0
1
3
) 
a
 f
u
ll 
q
u
a
lit
y
 c
h
e
c
k
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
.

3
1
/0
1
/2
0
1
3
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
1
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3

A
P
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 
re
q
u
e
s
te
d
 a
 s
a
m
p
le
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
f 
2
%
 

o
f 
c
o
d
e
d
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
s
 e
a
c
h
 d
a
y
 f
o
r 
A
P
 

S
u
p
e
rv
is
o
rs
 t
o
 v
a
lid

a
te
, 
th
is
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
s
 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le
 t
o
 p
re
s
e
n
t.
 A
P
 S
u
p
e
rv
is
o
rs
 w
ill
 

th
e
re
fo
re
 s
e
le
c
t 
2
0
 r
a
n
d
o
m
 h
a
rd
 c
o
p
y
 c
o
d
e
d
 

in
v
o
ic
e
s
 p
e
r 
d
a
y
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
. 
T
h
is
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
ill
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 1
1
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3

�
4
0

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1
4
: 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 P
a
y
a
b
le
 a
n
d
 R
e
c
e
iv
a
b
le
: 
C
o
n
tr
o
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

R
e
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
s
 (
E
x
.5
) 
 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
ly
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
se

d
 s

ig
n

a
to

ry
 li

st
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
is

e
 i

f 
a

p
p

li
ca

b
le

.

C
o

m
p

le
te

 P
2

P
 r

e
v
ie

w
.

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
a

 f
u

ll
 q

u
a

li
ty

 c
h

e
ck

R
e
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
s
 (
E
x
.5
) 
 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
ly
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
a
ll 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 b
y
 a
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r.

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 P
a
y
a
b
le
 a
n
d
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 R

e
c
e
iv
a
b
le
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
 t
h
e
 o
n
ly
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 b
y
 a
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
w
e
re
 t
h
e
 A
u
g
u
s
t,
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 O

c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 I
a
n
 

H
e
rb
e
rs
o
n

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 e
rr
o
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 n
o
 

re
v
ie
w
 t
a
k
e
s
 p
la
c
e
.

T
h
is
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
a
s
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 t
h
e
 A
G
R
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
0
/1
1
. 
 T
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 

is
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
y
s
te
m
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
. 
 T
h
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n
o
w
 d
o
n
e
 o
n
 a
 r
e
g
u
la
r/
m
o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
. 
 

C
o
m
p
le
te

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 h
e
ld
 

o
n
 f
ile

 i
n
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
.

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1
5
: 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
R
e
c
e
iv
a
b
le
: 
P
e
ri
o
d
ic
 I
n
v
o
ic
e
s
 (
E
x
.1
2
) 
 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
ly
 r
a
is
in
g
 o
f 
a
ll 
p
e
ri
o
d
ic
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
s
.

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
p
e
ri
o
d
ic
 i
n
v
o
ic
in
g
 p
a
s
s
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 R

e
c
e
iv
a
b
le
 t
e
a
m
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
 i
n
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
. 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 e
x
p
la
in
e
d
 t
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 l
it
tl
e
 h
a
n
d
o
v
e
r 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 t
w
o
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 r
a
is
in
g
 p
e
ri
o
d
ic
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
s
. 
A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
 a
re
 o
n
ly
 r
a
is
in
g
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
in
v
o
ic
e
s
 o
n
 a
 p
ie
c
e
m
e
a
l 
b
a
s
is
 a
s
 t
h
e
y
 o
n
ly
 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
A
g
re
s
s
o
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
th
e
 A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
te
a
m
 h
a
s
 e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
 t
h
a
t 
is
s
u
in
g
 o
f 
b
ill
s
 t
o
 

s
o
m
e
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
ta
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
s
e
v
e
ra
l 
y
e
a
rs
. 
 

A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
 -
 

G
e
ra
rd
 D

a
rb
y

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 n
o
t 
c
o
lle

c
te
d
 a
ll 
p
e
ri
o
d
ic
a
l 
in
c
o
m
e
.

A
n
 a
s
s
e
ts
 B
ill
in
g
 w
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
e
t 
u
p
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o
n
 a
 m

o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

P
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
  
a
n
d
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 u
n
d
e
r 
s
e
p
a
ra
te
 c
la
s
s
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 

b
e
in
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
im

e
 p
e
ri
o
d
s
/ 
b
iil
iin

g
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t 
a
s
c
e
rt
a
in
e
d
/.
 G

a
ra
g
e
 r
e
n
t 

a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 o
n
 s
y
s
te
m
 w
it
h
 I
n
d
u
s
tr
ia
l 
u
n
it
s
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
n
g
o
in
g
.

C
o
m
p
le
te

G
a
ra
g
e
 r
e
n
ts
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
d
 b
y
 

s
ta
n
d
in
g
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
. 
 I
n
d
u
s
tr
ia
l 
R
e
n
ts
 a
re
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 b
y
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 D

u
rh
a
m
. 
A
ll 
o
th
e
r 

re
n
ta
l 
in
v
o
ic
e
s
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 r
a
is
e
d
 

m
a
n
u
a
lly
 b
y
 A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
 W

e
 n
o
w
 

h
a
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a
ll 
fo
rm

e
r 
D
is
tr
ic
t 
B
ill
in
g
 

s
y
s
te
m
s
 a
n
d
 a
re
 i
n
v
o
ic
in
g
 a
ll 
re
n
ts
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 

b
ill
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 s
y
s
te
m
s
.

 

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1
6
: 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 R
e
c
e
iv
a
b
le
: 
N
o
 r
e
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

(S
IM
S
) 
R
e
c
e
ip
ts
 a
n
d
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 R
e
c
e
iv
a
b
le
 S
y
s
te
m
 (
E
x
.1
3
).
  
T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 a
 f
o
rm

a
l 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 t
w
o
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 u
p
lo
a
d
 o
f 

a
ll 
re
c
e
ip
ts
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 S
IM

S
 s
y
s
te
m
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 R

e
c
e
iv
a
b
le
 s
y
s
te
m
.

N
o
 f
o
rm

a
l 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 R

e
c
e
iv
a
b
le
 s
y
s
te
m
 a
n
d
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 (
S
IM

S
) 

s
y
s
te
m
 i
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 
In
s
te
a
d
, 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 r
e
ly
 o
n
 a
n
 e
rr
o
r 
m
e
s
s
a
g
e
 f
ro
m
 O

ra
c
le
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 

a
n
y
 r
e
c
e
ip
ts
 n
o
t 
c
o
rr
e
c
tl
y
 u
p
lo
a
d
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 u
p
lo
a
d
. 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 I
a
n
 

M
o
rd
u
e
 

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 R

e
c
e
iv
a
b
le
 s
y
s
te
m
 m

a
y
 n
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
 a
ll 

tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 (
S
IM

S
) 
s
y
s
te
m
.

T
h
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 i
s
 i
n
p
u
t 
in
to
 S
IM

S
 m

a
n
u
a
lly
 v
ia
 R

e
c
e
ip
ts
 A
d
v
ic
e
 f
o
rm

s
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
h
e
 I
n
c
o
m
e
 t
e
a
m
 m

a
tc
h
/r
e
c
o
n
c
ile

 a
ll 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
b
a
n
k
in
g
s
, 
i.
e
. 
b
a
n
k
 r
e
c
e
ip
ts
 t
o
 S
IM

S
. 
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle

d
 b
y
 a
n
 O

ra
c
le
 w
e
e
k
ly
 r
e
p
o
rt
 s
h
o
w
in
g
 o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 i
te
m
s
. 
Q
u
a
lit
y
 

c
h
e
c
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
th
e
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
in
a
n
c
e
 t
e
a
m
 r
u
n
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
O
ra
c
le
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
  
a
n
d
 

C
o
m
p
le
te

S
c
h
o
o
ls
 d
o
 n
o
t 
ra
is
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 r
e
c
e
iv
a
b
le
 v
ia
 S
IM
S
 

th
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 n
o
 u
p
lo
a
d
 f
ro
m
 S
IM
S
 b
a
tc
h
e
s
 i
n
 

to
 O
ra
c
le
. 
T
h
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 s
e
e
m
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
ly
 

th
a
t 
th
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 f
o
r 
in
v
o
ic
e
s
 p
a
y
a
b
le
 e
x
is
ts
 f
o
r 

in
v
o
ic
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
a
b
le
 –
 t
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
th
e
 c
a
s
e
. 
2
. 
A
ll
 

in
c
o
m
e
 b
a
n
k
e
d
 b
y
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 i
s
 e
n
te
re
d
 o
n
 a
n
 

N
/A

In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
th
e
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
in
a
n
c
e
 t
e
a
m
 r
u
n
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
O
ra
c
le
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
  
a
n
d
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 f
o
r 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
. 
A
 r
e
v
ie
w
  
w
ill
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 

th
e
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 F
u
n
d
in
g
 t
e
a
m
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 c
la
ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 w
it
h
 r
e
g
a
rd
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e
rr
o
r 
m
e
s
s
a
g
e
 w
it
h
in
 O

ra
c
le
 A
R
. 

D
e
b
to
rs
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
s
 n
o
t 
ra
is
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 O

ra
c
le

in
c
o
m
e
 b
a
n
k
e
d
 b
y
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 i
s
 e
n
te
re
d
 o
n
 a
n
 

e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 E
6
 (
R
e
c
e
ip
ts
 A
d
v
ic
e
 F
o
rm
) 
s
y
s
te
m
. 
T
h
is
 

s
y
s
te
m
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 u
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
m
a
n
y
 y
e
a
rs
 

e
n
a
b
le
s
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 b
a
n
k
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
to
 b
e
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 O
ra
c
le
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
 p
a
p
e
r 

c
o
p
y
 R
e
c
e
ip
ts
 A
d
v
ic
e
 f
o
rm
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 

s
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 I
n
c
o
m
e
 T
e
a
m
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 i
s
 t
h
e
n
 

m
a
tc
h
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 

to
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
ty
 F
u
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 w
a
y
 a
s
 a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
 

C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
m
e
n
t.
 I
f 
th
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
fa
il
e
d
 

to
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 a
 R
e
c
e
ip
ts
 A
d
v
ic
e
 F
o
rm
 f
o
r 
in
c
o
m
e
 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
 i
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b
a
n
k
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
r 
th
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 

d
if
fe
re
d
 t
h
e
n
 t
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 f
o
ll
o
w
e
d
 u
p
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

In
c
o
m
e
 T
e
a
m
. 
3
. 
N
o
t 
a
ll
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 b
a
n
k
e
d
 b
y
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t,
 m
o
s
t 
o
f 
it
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
m
e
a
ls
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 (
u
n
le
s
s
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
m
e
a
ls
) 
th
e
re
fo
re
 o
n
ly
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
is
 e
n
te
re
d
 o
n
 S
IM
S
. 
O
ra
c
le
 i
s
 t
h
e
 

p
ri
m
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 s
y
s
te
m
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 a
 

s
y
s
te
m
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
 a
 m
o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 w
it
h
 a
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
in
c
o
m
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 

O
ra
c
le
 a
n
d
 c
o
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t.
 T
h
is
 

s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
is
 t
h
e
n
 u
ti
li
s
e
d
 b
y
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 t
o
 p
o
s
t 
a
n
d
 

re
c
o
n
c
il
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 S
IM
S
 s
y
s
te
m
.

D
e

te
rm

in
e

 a
 q

u
a

li
ty

 c
h

e
ck

in
g
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

S
ch

o
o

l f
u

n
d

in
g
 t

e
a

m
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 p
ro

ce
ss

E
st

a
b

li
sh

 t
h

e
 m

e
a

n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 e

rr
o

r 
m

e
ss

a
g
e

 f
ro

m
 O

ra
cl

e
 

sy
st

e
m

.

2
5

/0
3

/1
3

 0
9

:5
8

C
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v\

D
a

ta
\A

g
e

n
d

a
It

e
m

D
o

cs
\7

\0
\8

\A
I0

0
0

0
9

8
0

7
\$

5
zs

yj
h

g
i.

xl
s/

IG
R

2
 o

f 
7

Page 96



2
0
1
0
/1
1

F
in
d
in
g

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y

P
ri
o
ri
ty

A
u
d
it
o
r 
C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e

A
c
ti
o
n
s

C
o
m
p
le
te
 b
y
:

U
p
d
a
te
:

E
v
id
e
n
c
e

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1
7
: 
L
o
a
n
s
 a
n
d
 I
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
ts
: 
M
o
n
th
ly
 r
e
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
 n
o
t 

a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 (
E
x
.1
7
).
  
T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
s
 a
n
d
 

a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 m

o
n
th
ly
 a
n
d
 y
e
a
r-
e
n
d
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 L
o
a
n
s
 -
 O

ff
ic
e
rs
 p
e
rf
o
rm

 a
 m

o
n
th
ly
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 S
c
h
e
d
u
le
, 
w
h
ic
h
 c
o
n
ta
in
s
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
a
ll 
in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts
 m

a
d
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 

L
e
d
g
e
r 
a
n
d
 o
f 
a
ll 
P
W
L
B
 i
n
te
re
s
t 
a
n
d
 p
ri
n
c
ip
a
l 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 
to
 t
h
e
 

P
W
L
B
 L
o
a
n
 S
c
h
e
d
u
le
. 

In
 b
o
th
 c
a
s
e
s
, 
a
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
is
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
. 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 I
a
n
 

H
e
rb
e
rs
o
n

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
c
c
u
ra
te
 a
n
d
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 n
o
 

re
v
ie
w
 t
a
k
e
s
 p
la
c
e
 t
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

F
o
llo

w
in
g
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 U

n
it
is
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
h
a
s
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 a
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
th
is
 r
e
v
ie
w
.

C
o
m
p
le
te

M
o
n
th
ly
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 f
o
r 
b
o
th
 

p
ri
n
c
ip
a
l 
a
n
d
 i
n
te
re
s
t 
w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

b
a
la
n
c
e
d
 t
o
 b
o
th
 c
o
re
 r
e
c
o
rd
s
 a
n
d
 O

ra
c
le
 G

L
 

in
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
lo
a
n
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts
. 
 A
ll 

re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 t
o
 

3
1
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
3
.

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 i
s
 h
e
ld
 

in
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
.

�
1
8

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1
8
: 
O
ra
c
le
 P
ro
je
c
ts
: 
N
o
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 s
ig
n
a
to
ri
e
s
 l
is
t 
(E
x
.5
4
).
  

S
e
rv
ic
e
 D

ir
e
c
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 c
o
m
p
ile

 a
n
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 s
ig
n
a
to
ri
e
s
 l
is
t 
to
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 

a
ll 
e
x
tr
a
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
rm

s
 a
n
d
 t
im

e
 s
h
e
e
ts
 h
a
v
e
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l.

N
o
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 s
ig
n
a
to
ri
e
s
 l
is
t 
is
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 a
t 
th
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 D

ir
e
c
t 
s
it
e
. 
T
h
is
 a
ff
e
c
ts
 b
o
th
 

e
x
tr
a
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
rm

s
, 
u
s
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
e
 r
e
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
g
o
o
d
s
, 
a
n
d
 m

a
n
u
a
l 
ti
m
e
 s
h
e
e
ts
. 
S
it
e
 

F
o
re
m
e
n
 s
ig
n
 b
o
th
 t
o
 c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
e
ir
 a
c
c
u
ra
c
y
. 
 I
t 
w
a
s
 n
o
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 

a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
s
ig
n
e
d
 t
h
e
 e
x
tr
a
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
rm

 a
n
d
 t
im

e
 s
h
e
e
t 
te
s
te
d
 a
s
 n
o
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 

s
ig
n
a
to
ri
e
s
 l
is
t 
is
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
.

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 i
n
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
a
p
p
ro
v
e
s
 b
o
th
 t
h
e
 

e
x
tr
a
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
rm

s
 a
n
d
 t
im

e
 s
h
e
e
ts
, 
re
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 o
f 

in
a
c
c
u
ra
te
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
.

A
ll 
g
o
o
d
s
 a
re
 o
rd
e
re
d
 e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
a
lly
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 O

ra
c
le
 s
y
s
te
m
 b
y
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
ly
 

c
re
a
te
d
 M

a
te
ri
a
ls
 C

o
n
tr
o
lle

rs
 p
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
q
u
is
ti
o
n
e
r 
is
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
t 
th
a
t 

s
ta
g
e
. 
 G

o
o
d
s
 a
re
 '
re
c
e
ip
te
d
' 
b
y
 t
h
e
 M

a
te
ri
a
ls
 C

o
n
tr
o
lle

r 
o
n
c
e
 t
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
. 
  
T
h
e
y
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 n
o
te
 a
s
 p
ro
o
f 
o
r 
c
o
n
fi
rm

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
q
u
is
ti
o
n
e
r 
/ 

S
it
e
 F
o
re
m
a
n
 /
 S
u
p
e
rv
is
o
r 
th
a
t 
th
e
 g
o
o
d
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

�
1
9

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1
9
: 
O
ra
c
le
 P
ro
je
c
ts
: 
L
a
c
k
 o
f 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
s
u
rv
e
y
o
r 
v
is
it
 o
r 

a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 (
E
x
.5
5
) 
  
S
e
rv
ic
e
 D

ir
e
c
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
O
ra
c
le
 P
ro
je
c
ts
 o
r 
a
 h
a
rd
 

c
o
p
y
 f
ile

 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 a
ll 
w
o
rk
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 S
u
rv
e
y
o
r.

C
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

e
 m

o
n

th
ly

 r
e

co
n

ci
li

a
ti

o
n

R
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 r
e

co
n

ci
li

a
ti

o
n

 -
e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
it

 i
s 

co
rr

e
ct

, 
o

r 
ta

k
e

 
co

rr
e

ct
iv

e
 a

ct
io

n
.

R
e

ta
in

 e
v
id

e
n

ce
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
co

n
ci

li
a

ti
o

n

A
ct

io
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 c
la
im

e
d
 S
u
rv
e
y
o
rs
 r
e
-m

e
a
s
u
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 D

ir
e
c
t 
jo
b
s
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
c
tu
a
l 
c
h
a
rg
e
s
. 

H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
is
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
. 
A
s
 t
h
e
 j
o
b
 f
ile

 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 

c
o
n
ta
in
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
e
 S
u
rv
e
y
o
rs
 v
is
it
. 
E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
o
rs
 a
p
p
ro
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 j
o
b
 i
s
 

a
ls
o
 l
im

it
e
d
.

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

M
e
d
iu
m

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 c
la
im

e
d
 S
u
rv
e
y
o
rs
 r
e
-m

e
a
s
u
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 D

ir
e
c
t 
jo
b
s
 t
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
 a
c
tu
a
l 
c
h
a
rg
e
s
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
is
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
. 
A
s
 t
h
e
 j
o
b
 f
ile

 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
c
o
n
ta
in
 d
e
ta
ils
 

o
f 
th
e
 S
u
rv
e
y
o
rs
 v
is
it
. 
E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
o
rs
 a
p
p
ro
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 

jo
b
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 l
im

it
e
d
.

O
n
c
e
 a
 j
o
b
 i
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
t 
is
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
lie

n
ts
 a
g
e
n
t 
(B

u
ild

in
g
s
 S
u
rv
e
y
o
r 
/ 

A
rc
h
it
e
c
t)
 w
h
o
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
 P
ra
c
ti
c
a
l 
C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 c
e
rt
if
ic
a
te
 w
it
h
 o
r 
w
it
h
o
u
t 
a
 

s
n
a
g
g
in
g
 l
is
t 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 m

in
o
r 
it
e
m
s
 o
f 
w
o
rk
 s
ti
ll 
to
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

A
ft
e
r 
th
e
 1
2
 m

o
n
th
s
 d
e
fe
c
ts
 l
ia
b
ili
ty
 p
e
ri
o
d
 c
o
m
e
s
 t
o
 a
n
 e
n
d
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 c
lie

n
t’
s
 a
g
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 D

ir
e
c
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
n
y
 r
e
m
e
d
ia
l 
w
o
rk
s
 a
re
 

th
e
n
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 
 O

n
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 d
e
fe
c
ts
 a
 '
M
a
k
in
g
 G

o
o
d
 /
 F
in
a
l 

C
e
rt
if
ic
a
te
' 
is
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
lie

n
ts
 a
g
e
n
t.
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

T
h
is
 s
y
s
te
m
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 r
e
in
fo
rc
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
s
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 u
p
o
n
 b
y
 

B
 &
 F
M
's
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 P
la
n
n
e
r 
a
n
d
 w
e
 a
re
 n
o
w
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 
th
a
t 
a
ll 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 f
o
llo

w
 

th
is
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
h
ic
h
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 a
ll 
jo
b
s
 a
re
 '
s
ig
n
e
d
 o
ff
' 
a
n
d
 w
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 o
u
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
ls
.

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2
0
: 
R
e
p
a
ir
s
 a
n
d
 M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
: 
D
e
li
v
e
ry
 n
o
te
 f
il
in
g
 (
E
x
.2
0
) 
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 D

ir
e
c
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 f
ili
n
g
 o
f 
a
ll 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 n
o
te
s
 i
n
 d
a
te
 o
r 
s
u
p
p
lie

r 
o
rd
e
r.
 

 N
o
 f
o
rm

a
l 
fi
lin

g
 s
y
s
te
m
 i
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 n
o
te
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 M

a
te
ri
a
ls
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle

r.
 A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
t 
w
a
s
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 f
in
d
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 n
o
te
s

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

L
o
w

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
S
it
e
 F
o
re
m
e
n
 d
o
 n
o
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 M

a
te
ri
a
ls
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle

rs
 w
it
h
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 n
o
te
s
. 
In
s
te
a
d
, 
th
e
 M

a
te
ri
a
l 
C
o
n
tr
o
lle

r 

s
im

p
ly
 r
e
c
e
ip
ts
 t
h
e
 g
o
o
d
s
 i
n
 O

ra
c
le
 w
h
e
n
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
, 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
e
 p
ro
m
p
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
in
v
o
ic
e
s
. 
T
h
is
 m

a
y
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 

in
a
c
c
u
ra
te
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 a
n
d
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
g
o
o
d
s
.

A
g
re
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 a
s
 s
o
o
n
 a
s
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le

3
0
 N

o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2

�
1
8

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2
1
: 
R
e
p
a
ir
s
 a
n
d
 M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
: 
N
o
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 s
ig
n
a
to
ri
e
s
 l
is
t 

(E
x
.2
1
) 
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 D

ir
e
c
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 c
o
m
p
ile

 a
n
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 s
ig
n
a
to
ri
e
s
 l
is
t 
to
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
ti
m
e
 s
h
e
e
ts
 h
a
v
e
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l.
 

 N
o
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 s
ig
n
a
to
ri
e
s
 l
is
t 
is
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 a
t 
th
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 D

ir
e
c
t 
s
it
e
. 
A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 

s
ig
n
 m

a
n
u
a
l 
ti
m
e
 s
h
e
e
ts
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
e
ir
 a
c
c
u
ra
c
y
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 

a
s
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 s
ig
n
a
to
ri
e
s
 l
is
t 
it
 w
a
s
 n
o
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 o
ff
ic
e
r 

s
ig
n
in
g
 t
h
e
 e
x
tr
a
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
rm

 a
n
d
 t
im

e
 s
h
e
e
t 
w
a
s
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 t
o
 d
o
 s
o
.

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 i
n
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
a
p
p
ro
v
e
s
 t
im

e
 

s
h
e
e
ts
, 
re
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 o
f 
in
a
c
c
u
ra
te
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
.

A
g
re
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 a
s
 s
o
o
n
 a
s
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

 

E
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 r
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
.

E
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 r
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
.

A
ct

io
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d

s
ig
n
in
g
 t
h
e
 e
x
tr
a
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
rm

 a
n
d
 t
im

e
 s
h
e
e
t 
w
a
s
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 t
o
 d
o
 s
o
.

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2
2
: 
R
e
p
a
ir
s
 a
n
d
 M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
: 
R
e
c
e
ip
ti
n
g
 o
f 
m
a
te
ri
a
ls
 i
n
 

O
ra
c
le
 (
E
x
.2
2
) 
 A
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
s
h
o
u
ld
 r
e
v
ie
w
 r
e
c
e
ip
ts
 e
n
te
re
d
 i
n
to
 O

ra
c
le
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 e
n
te
re
d
 i
s
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
, 
b
e
fo
re
 O

ra
c
le
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
e
ip
ts
. 
 

T
h
e
 r
e
c
e
ip
ti
n
g
 o
f 
g
o
o
d
s
 i
n
 O

ra
c
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
 t
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
 t
e
s
te
d
 w
a
s
 n
o
t 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

c
o
rr
e
c
tl
y
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
re
c
e
ip
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 g
o
o
d
s
 w
ro
n
g
ly
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 p
ri
c
e
 

(£
1
2
.9
8
) 
in
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
n
ti
ty
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 c
o
lu
m
n
; 
w
h
ile

 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
n
ti
ty
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 (
1
) 
in
 t
h
e
 

p
ri
c
e
 c
o
lu
m
n
. 

O
ra
c
le
 u
p
d
a
te
s
 a
n
y
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
y
s
te
m
, 
th
ro
u
g
h
 m

u
lt
ip
ly
in
g
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
n
ti
ty
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 u
n
it
 p
ri
c
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
a
c
c
u
ra
te
 t
re
a
tm

e
n
t 
h
a
d
 n
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t;
 

h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 s
ta
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
la
rg
e
 e
rr
o
rs
 h
a
v
e
 o
c
c
u
rr
e
d
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
a
c
c
u
ra
te
 

re
c
e
ip
ti
n
g
 o
f 
g
o
o
d
s
 i
n
 O

ra
c
le
. 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
y
s
te
m
s
 -
 K
e
it
h
 

M
u
n
ro
e

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
re
c
e
ip
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 g
o
o
d
s
 e
n
te
rs
 w
ro
n
g
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 i
n
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 b
a
la
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 

L
e
d
g
e
r.
 A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
, 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 w
o
u
ld
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
is
, 
it
 c
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 t
im

e
-c
o
n
s
u
m
in
g
 t
o
 c
o
rr
e
c
t 
a
n
y
 e
rr
o
rs
 u
p
lo
a
d
e
d
 i
n
 s
u
c
h
 a
 

w
a
y
.

In
tr
o
d
u
c
in
g
 a
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
c
h
e
c
k
 o
n
 e
v
e
ry
 r
e
c
e
ip
t 
e
n
te
re
d
 i
s
 n
o
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
a
l 
a
s
 a
 

c
o
n
tr
o
l 
to
 e
ra
d
ic
a
te
 o
c
c
a
s
io
n
a
l 
e
rr
o
rs
; 
p
lu
s
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
a
lit
y
 t
o
 

fa
c
ili
ta
te
 a
n
d
 i
t 
w
o
u
ld
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 a
 c
u
s
to
m
is
a
ti
o
n
. 
 T
h
e
 c
o
m
p
e
n
s
a
ti
n
g
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
is
 t
h
a
t 

a
ll 
o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 a
c
c
ru
a
ls
 f
o
r 
m
a
te
ri
a
l 
a
m
o
u
n
ts
 (
a
b
o
v
e
 £
2
5
0
) 
a
re
 c
ir
c
u
la
te
d
 (
o
n
 a
 

m
o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
) 
fo
r 
re
v
ie
w
.

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

N
/A

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2
3
: 
S
S
ID
: 
R
e
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 S
S
ID
 u
p
lo
a
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 

P
a
y
a
b
le
 s
y
s
te
m
 (
E
x
.1
6
) 
 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r-
e
n
d
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 u
s
e
s
 

th
e
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
to
ta
l 
s
h
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
s
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r-
e
n
d
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
.

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 a
n
 i
n
fo
rm

a
l 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 S
S
ID
 u
p
lo
a
d
 f
ile

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 P
a
y
a
b
le
 s
y
s
te
m
 a
ft
e
r 
e
v
e
ry
 S
S
ID
 u
p
lo
a
d
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
s
h
e
e
t 

in
 p
la
c
e
 a
n
d
 n
o
 f
o
rm

a
l 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 e
x
is
ts
. 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
a
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
s
h
e
e
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
. 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 P
a
y
a
b
le
 -
 C

h
ri
s
 

J
o
n
e
s

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n
o
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 a
n
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 n
o
t 

a
ll 
in
v
o
ic
e
s
 a
re
 u
p
lo
a
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 P
a
y
a
b
le
 s
y
s
te
m
 f
o
r 

p
a
y
m
e
n
t.

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 g
o
v
e
rn
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
ts
 o
f 
O
ra
c
le
, 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
/c
o
n
tr
o
l 
s
h
e
e
ts
 a
re
 

n
o
w
 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
, 
m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 a
n
d
 f
ile

d
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 e
a
c
h
 u
p
lo
a
d
. 
 I
t 
is
 a
s
s
u
m
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
b
y
 a
n
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
fr
o
m
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
.

C
o
m
p
le
te

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 g
o
v
e
rn
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
ts
 o
f 

O
ra
c
le
, 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
/c
o
n
tr
o
l 
s
h
e
e
ts
 a
re
 n
o
w
 

c
h
e
c
k
e
d
, 
m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 a
n
d
 f
ile

d
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 e
a
c
h
 

u
p
lo
a
d
. 
 I
t 
is
 a
s
s
u
m
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
b
y
 a
n
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
fr
o
m
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
. 

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2
4
: 
S
IM
S
: 
In
v
o
ic
e
 n
o
t 
a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
(E
x
.2
3
) 
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 s
ta
ff
 s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
in
v
o
ic
e
s
 a
re
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

s
h
o
u
ld
 k
e
e
p
 a
ll 
G
R
N
's
 o
n
 f
ile

 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 g
o
o
d
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
.

N
o

 a
ct

io
n

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d

E
n

su
re

 c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

co
n

ci
li

a
ti

o
n

R
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 r
e

co
n

ci
li

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 e

n
su

re
 c

o
rr

e
ct

, 
o

r 
ta

k
e

 
co

rr
e

ct
iv

e
 a

ct
io

n

R
e

ta
in

 e
v
id

e
n

ce
 o

f 
re

v
ie

w

s
h
o
u
ld
 k
e
e
p
 a
ll 
G
R
N
's
 o
n
 f
ile

 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 g
o
o
d
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
.

T
h
e
 D

u
rh
a
m
 F
e
d
e
ra
ti
o
n
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 T
e
a
m
 s
ta
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
s
ig
n
s
 a
ll 

in
v
o
ic
e
s
 b
e
fo
re
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t.
 H

o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
 t
e
s
te
d
 w
a
s
 n
o
t 
a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t.
  

In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
th
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ry
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
c
o
n
fi
rm

in
g
 t
h
e
 

g
o
o
d
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
. 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 D

a
v
id
 

S
h
ir
e
r

L
o
w

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
in
a
c
c
u
ra
te
 o
r 
fr
a
u
d
u
le
n
t 
in
v
o
ic
e
s
. 
In
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
g
o
o
d
s
 m

a
y
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
s
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 

fo
rm

a
l 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
re
c
e
iv
in
g
 t
h
e
 

g
o
o
d
s
.

A
 r
e
m
in
d
e
r 
w
ill
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 E
x
tr
a
n
e
t,
 a
b
o
u
t 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
.

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

N
o
te
 p
la
c
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 E
x
tr
a
n
e
t 
5
 J
u
ly
 

2
0
1
2
 r
e
m
in
d
in
g
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 o
f 
p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2
5
: 
S
IM
S
: 
A
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 S
ig
n
a
to
ri
e
s
 L
is
t 
(E
x
.2
4
) 
 T
h
e
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

F
u
n
d
in
g
 T
e
a
m
 s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
u
p
d
a
ti
n
g
 o
f 
a
ll 
a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 s
ig
n
a
to
ry
 l
is
ts
.

T
h
e
 P
a
y
m
e
n
t 
A
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
tr
o
l 
L
is
ti
n
g
 (
P
A
C
L
) 
te
s
te
d
 w
a
s
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 b
y
 a
 m

e
m
b
e
r 

o
f 
s
ta
ff
 n
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 s
ig
n
a
to
ri
e
s
 l
is
t 
h
e
ld
 b
y
 t
h
e
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 

T
e
a
m
. 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 s
ta
te
d
 t
h
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 s
ig
n
a
to
ri
e
s
 l
is
t 
w
a
s
 o
u
t-
o
f-
d
a
te
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

th
e
y
 w
e
re
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
e
tt
y
 c
a
s
h
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 s
ig
n
a
to
ri
e
s
 l
is
t,
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 a
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 

c
o
m
p
e
n
s
a
ti
n
g
 c
o
n
tr
o
l.
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 D

a
v
id
 

S
h
ir
e
r

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 a
n
 u
n
a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
s
ig
n
s
 t
h
e
 P
A
C
L
 a
n
d
 a
s
 

th
e
 s
ig
n
a
to
ri
e
s
 l
is
ts
 a
re
 n
o
t 
u
p
 t
o
 d
a
te
 t
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 

c
o
u
ld
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
in
a
c
c
u
ra
te
 o
r 
fr
a
u
d
u
le
n
t 
in
v
o
ic
e
s
.

A
g
re
e
d
. 
 T
h
e
 C

re
d
it
o
r 
T
e
a
m
 w
it
h
in
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 w
ill
 p
u
rs
u
e
 t
h
is
 a
ft
e
r 
h
a
lf
-t
e
rm

 

w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
ti
m
e
 t
o
 d
o
 t
h
is
.

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

N
o
te
 p
la
c
e
d
 o
n
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 E
x
tr
a
n
e
t 
1
5
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

2
0
1
3
 –
 c
o
p
y
 o
f 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
. 
F
ile

 h
e
ld
 i
n
 

o
ff
ic
e
 c
o
n
ta
in
in
g
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 f
o
rm

s
 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
. 
O
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 f
o
rm

s
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
h
a
s
e
d

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2
6
: 
S
IM
S
: 
R
e
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 S
IM
S
 u
p
lo
a
d
 t
o
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 

P
a
y
a
b
le
 s
y
s
te
m
 (
E
x
.2
5
) 
 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r-
e
n
d
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 u
s
e
s
 

th
e
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
to
ta
l 
s
h
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 a
ls
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
s
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 a
n
 i
n
fo
rm

a
l 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 S
IM

S
 u
p
lo
a
d
 f
ile

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 P
a
y
a
b
le
 s
y
s
te
m
 a
ft
e
r 
e
v
e
ry
 S
IM

S
 u
p
lo
a
d
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
s
h
e
e
t 

in
 p
la
c
e
. 
T
h
e
re
fo
re
 n
o
 f
o
rm

a
l 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 e
x
is
ts
. 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
a
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
s
h
e
e
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
.

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 D

a
v
id
 

S
h
ir
e
r

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n
o
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 a
n
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 n
o
t 

a
ll 
in
v
o
ic
e
s
 a
re
 u
p
lo
a
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 P
a
y
a
b
le
 s
y
s
te
m
 f
o
r 

p
a
y
m
e
n
t.

T
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
w
 d
o
n
e
. 
 R

e
p
o
rt
s
 f
ro
m
 S
IM

S
 a
re
 s
e
n
t 
to
 C

re
d
it
o
rs
 w
h
o
 t
h
e
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 

d
is
c
re
p
a
n
c
ie
s
 t
o
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
F
u
n
d
in
g

C
o
m
p
le
te

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

R
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 -
 F
ile

 

in
 R

e
le
v
a
n
t 

O
ff
ic
e
 i
f 

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2
7
: 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
: 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 T
a
x
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
d
u
p
li
c
a
te
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t 

(E
x
. 
4
0
) 
 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
ll 
c
a
s
e
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
p
o
o
l 
re
p
o
rt
 

a
n
d
 m

a
k
e
 m

a
n
u
a
l 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 c
la
im

s
.

Is
su

e
 r

e
m

in
d

e
r 

to
 s

ch
o

o
ls

U
p

d
a

te
 t

h
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
se

d
 s

ig
n

a
to

ry
 li

st
s

A
ct

io
n

 C
o

m
p

le
te

N
o

 a
ct

io
n

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d

N
o

 a
ct

io
n

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d

2
5

/0
3

/1
3

 0
9

:5
8

C
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v\

D
a

ta
\A

g
e

n
d

a
It

e
m

D
o

cs
\7

\0
\8

\A
I0

0
0

0
9

8
0

7
\$

5
zs

yj
h

g
i.

xl
s/

IG
R

3
 o

f 
7

Page 97



2
0
1
0
/1
1

F
in
d
in
g

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y

P
ri
o
ri
ty

A
u
d
it
o
r 
C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e

A
c
ti
o
n
s

C
o
m
p
le
te
 b
y
:

U
p
d
a
te
:

E
v
id
e
n
c
e

C
it
y
 o
f 
D
u
rh
a
m
 -
 F
o
llo

w
in
g
 c
o
n
v
e
rs
io
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 N

o
rt
h
g
a
te
 s
y
s
te
m
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

iv
ic
a
 

s
y
s
te
m
, 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 4
8
 c
la
im

s
 w
it
h
 a
 t
o
ta
l 
v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
£
1
7
,4
0
3
.3
3
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 a
 

d
u
p
lic
a
te
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
(C

T
B
) 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
in
 e
rr
o
r.
 T
h
e
s
e
 c
la
im

s
 w
e
re
 l
o
g
g
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 

c
o
rr
e
c
te
d
.

T
e
s
ti
n
g
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
m
a
d
e
 a
 d
u
p
lic
a
te
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
to
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
3
6
1
2
3
6
3
3
9
0
 f
o
r 
c
la
im

 n
u
m
b
e
r 
1
0
0
9
3
2
8
.

A
s
 a
t 
4
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 h
a
d
 n
o
t 
a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 c
la
im

s
.

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 M

 

W
a
te
rs
/J
 S
c
o
tn
e
y

L
o
w

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
p
o
s
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
la
im

a
n
ts
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
is
 w
ro
n
g
. 

C
o
n
v
e
rs
io
n
 t
e
s
ti
n
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
 i
s
s
u
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 d
u
p
lic
a
te
d
 C

T
B
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
, 

C
IV
IC
A
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 r
a
n
 a
 u
ti
lit
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 a
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
4
8
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 c
la
im

s
. 
 A
ll 

c
la
im

s
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
rr
e
c
te
d
 a
n
d
 u
p
d
a
te
d
. 
T
h
e
 C

T
B
 p
o
s
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 h
a
s
 a
ls
o
 b
e
e
n
 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
s
 c
o
rr
e
c
t.

C
o
m
p
le
te

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

�
2
6

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2
8
: 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
: 
B
e
n
e
fi
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 (
E
x
.4
1
) 
 T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
 S
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
s
 a
ll 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 b
e
fo
re
 

s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
.

A
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 b
y
 a
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
b
e
fo
re
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 i
s
 n
o
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 M

 

W
a
te
rs
/J
 S
c
o
tn
e
y

H
ig
h

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
in
a
c
c
u
ra
te
 o
r 
fr
a
u
d
u
le
n
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
, 
a
s
 

th
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
fi
le
 t
o
 b
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
.

A
ll 
H
B
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
ru
n
s
 (
B
A
C
S
 &
 C

h
e
q
u
e
) 
a
re
 n
o
w
 c
o
u
n
te
rs
ig
n
e
d
 b
y
 a
 s
e
n
io
r 

o
ff
ic
e
r 
in
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
z
e
d
 s
ig
n
a
to
ry
 l
is
t 
b
e
fo
re
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
. 
 S
p
re
a
d
s
h
e
e
ts
 

n
o
w
 r
e
c
o
rd
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
e
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
c
re
a
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
fi
le
, 
c
o
u
n
te
r 
s
ig
n
in
g
 o
ff
ic
e
r 

a
n
d
 o
ff
e
r 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
ile

 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
.

C
o
m
p
le
te

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2
9
: 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
: 
R
e
n
t 
R
e
b
a
te
 R
e
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
s
 (
E
x
.4
2
) 
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 a
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
is
e
d
 f
o
rm

a
t 
fo
r 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
n
g
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

T
im

e
ly
 t
h
re
e
-w

a
y
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r,
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
n
d
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 R

e
n
ts
 s
y
s
te
m
, 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 b
y
 a
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r.
 A
ll 

e
n
tr
ie
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
n
g
 i
te
m
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
.

E
a
s
in
g
to
n
 a
n
d
 W
e
a
r 
V
a
ll
e
y

P
ri
o
r 
to
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
, 
R
e
n
t 
R
e
b
a
te
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 

s
y
s
te
m
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 E
a
s
t 
D
u
rh
a
m
 H

o
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 D

a
le
 a
n
d
 V
a
lle

y
 H

o
m
e
s
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 h
a
v
e
 o
n
ly
 

b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

e
r 
d
is
tr
ic
t 
s
y
s
te
m
s
. 

C
it
y
 o
f 
D
u
rh
a
m
  
 T
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
re
c
o
n
c
ile

 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
s
y
s
te
m
 t
o
 

th
e
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 r
e
n
ts
 s
y
s
te
m
. 
In
s
te
a
d
 i
t 
is
 o
n
ly
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ile

s
 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 s
y
s
te
m
 t
o
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
  
- 
C
 

B
la
c
k
b
u
rn
/ 
T
 R

o
b
in
s
o
n

H
ig
h

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 v
a
lu
e
s
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 R

e
n
ts
 

s
y
s
te
m
s
 d
o
 n
o
t 
a
g
re
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 s
y
s
te
m
. 

A
t 
th
e
 t
im

e
 o
f 
th
e
 w
a
lk
th
ro
u
g
h
, 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
d
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

n
e
w
 m

e
rg
e
d
 s
y
s
te
m
. 
S
in
c
e
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
, 
a
 f
u
ll 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
1
/1
2
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
th
re
e
 o
f 
th
e
 H

R
A
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
, 
w
it
h
 a
n
y
 d
is
c
re
p
a
n
c
ie
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 

n
o
te
d
. 
R
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

in
te
rn
a
lly
. 
 R

e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
ls
o
 b
e
e
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
, 
E
D
H
, 
D
&
V
H
 a
n
d
 D

C
H
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

th
e
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 r
e
n
ts
 s
y
s
te
m
. 
In
s
te
a
d
 i
t 
is
 o
n
ly
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ile

s
 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 s
y
s
te
m
 t
o
 

th
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r.
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 D
u
rh
a
m
 

C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 (
U
n
it
a
ry
) 
 O

ff
ic
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm

e
d
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 d
u
ri
n
g
 

2
0
1
1
/1
2
.

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
, 
E
D
H
, 
D
&
V
H
 a
n
d
 D

C
H
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
R
e
n
ts
 R

e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
th
re
e
 a
re
a
s
.

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3
0
: 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
: 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 T
a
x
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
R
e
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
s
 

(E
x
. 
4
2
) 
 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 a
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
is
e
d
 f
o
rm

a
t 
fo
r 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
n
g
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
A
 s
e
n
io
r 
s
h
o
u
ld
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
ls
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
A
ll 

e
n
tr
ie
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
n
g
 i
te
m
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
. 

 N
o
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
. 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 I
a
n
 

H
e
rb
e
rs
o
n
 /
 S
u
s
a
n
 O

liv
e
r

H
ig
h

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 v
a
lu
e
s
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 

fo
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
m
a
y
 n
o
t 
a
g
re
e
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 h
e
ld
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 s
y
s
te
m
s
.

F
o
llo

w
in
g
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 m

e
rg
e
d
 n
e
w
 s
y
s
te
m
 f
u
ll 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 

p
la
c
e
. 
 S
in
c
e
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
 t
h
e
 m

o
n
th
ly
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
-c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
.

C
o
m
p
le
te

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3
1
: 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
: 
R
e
n
t 
A
ll
o
w
a
n
c
e
 R
e
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
s
 (
E
x
.4
2
) 
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 a
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
is
e
d
 f
o
rm

a
t 
fo
r 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
n
g
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
A
 

s
e
n
io
r 
s
h
o
u
ld
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
ls
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
A
ll 
e
n
tr
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili
n
g
 i
te
m
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
. 
 

C
h
e
s
te
r-
le
-S
tr
e
e
t

T
h
e
 f
o
rm

a
t 
o
f 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
u
n
re
c
o
n
c
ile

d
 i
te
m
s
 

w
it
h
 a
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
£
1
1
0
,0
0
0
 a
re
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
. 

C
it
y
 o
f 
D
u
rh
a
m

T
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
 B
A
C
S
 r
e
tu
rn
e
d
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 1
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
–
 2
3
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
 o
f 
£
2
,3
6
6
.1
6
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
is
 b
a
la
n
c
e
 a
p
p
e
a
rs
 t
o
 e
x
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 B
A
C
S
 

p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
£
6
7
 r
e
tu
rn
e
d
 o
n
 1
3
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
.

P
re
 m
e
rg
e
d
 C
h
e
s
te
r 
le
 S
tr
e
e
t 
 -
 O

ff
ic
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
e
 d
is
c
re
p
a
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

a
re
 w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

C
it
y
 o
f 
D
u
rh
a
m
 -
 T
h
e
 b
a
la
n
c
e
 a
p
p
e
a
re
d
 t
o
 e
x
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 £
6
7
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
is
 w
a
s
 a
 

re
s
u
lt
 o
f 
a
n
 u
n
c
le
a
r 
e
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
. 
It
 h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 a
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

th
e
 n
e
w
 s
y
s
te
m
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 d
e
ta
ils
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 e
x
p
la
in
 t
h
e
 

d
is
c
re
p
a
n
c
y
.

S
e
d
g
e
fi
e
ld
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 m

e
rg
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
£
1
,9
7
7
,0
9
7
.3
3
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
s
y
s
te
m
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
re
 n
o
t 
in
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r.
 I
n
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
th
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
fo
llo

w
-u
p
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
w
a
s
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
  
- 
C
 

B
la
c
k
b
u
rn
/ 
T
 R

o
b
in
s
o
n

H
ig
h

S
e
d
g
e
fi
e
ld
 -
 T
h
is
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
w
a
s
 t
h
e
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
m
a
d
e
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 

s
h
u
td
o
w
n
 o
f 
th
e
 N

o
rt
h
g
a
te
 s
y
s
te
m
. 
T
h
is
 w
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

e
r 
S
e
d
g
e
fi
e
ld
 s
y
s
te
m
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ile

d
 a
n
d
 b
a
la
n
c
e
d
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

D
u
rh
a
m
 C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 -
 M
e
rg
e
d
 -
 F
o
llo

w
in
g
 ‘
g
o
 l
iv
e
’ 
o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 s
y
s
te
m
, 

C
o
m
p
le
te

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
th
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
fo
llo

w
-u
p
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
w
a
s
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r.
  
T
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 m

e
rg
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 

p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
£
1
,9
7
7
,0
9
7
.3
3
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
s
y
s
te
m
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
re
 n
o
t 
in
 t
h
e
 

G
e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r.
 I
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
th
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
fo
llo

w
-u
p
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t 

w
a
s
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r.
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

D
u
rh
a
m
 C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 -
 M
e
rg
e
d
 -
 T
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
n
 a
 

ti
m
e
ly
 m

a
n
n
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 b
y
 a
 s
e
n
io
r 

o
ff
ic
e
r.

D
u
rh
a
m
 C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 -
 M
e
rg
e
d
 -
 F
o
llo

w
in
g
 ‘
g
o
 l
iv
e
’ 
o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 s
y
s
te
m
, 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ile

 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 o
n
 a
 m

o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
 g
o
in
g
 f
o
rw

a
rd
. 

A
 f
u
ll 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 m

e
rg
e
d
 s
y
s
te
m
, 
w
it
h
 a
n
y
 

d
is
c
re
p
a
n
c
ie
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 n
o
te
d
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 M

a
y
 2
0
1
2
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3
2
: 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
: 
F
ir
s
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
m
a
d
e
 t
o
 l
a
n
d
lo
rd
s
 (
E
x
.4
3
) 
  
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 o
n
ly
 m

a
k
e
 f
ir
s
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
la
im

a
n
t'
s
 l
a
n
d
lo
rd
 i
f 
th
e
 c
la
im

a
n
t 

h
a
s
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 t
h
e
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t.
  

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 f
o
llo

w
e
d
 t
h
e
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 A
4
/2
0
1
1
 o
f 
m
a
k
in
g
 f
ir
s
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

la
n
d
lo
rd
s
, 
a
s
 d
e
ta
ile

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 o
ff
ic
ia
l 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
o
rs
. 
In
 t
h
e
 o
n
e
 

c
a
s
e
 t
e
s
te
d
, 
th
e
 c
la
im

a
n
t 
m
a
d
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t 

d
ir
e
c
t

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
  
- 
C
 

B
la
c
k
b
u
rn
/ 
T
 R

o
b
in
s
o
n

H
ig
h

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
a
re
 p
a
y
in
g
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 

B
e
n
e
fi
t 
to
 t
h
e
 w
ro
n
g
 r
e
c
ip
ie
n
t 
a
n
d
 w
o
u
ld
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 b
e
 l
ia
b
le
 t
o
 

re
p
a
y
 t
h
e
 c
la
im

a
n
t 
th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t.
 I
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 b
re
a
c
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 D

a
ta
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 A
c
t 
2
0
0
0
 

b
y
 p
a
y
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
la
im

a
n
ts
 l
a
n
d
lo
rd
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 c
la
im

a
n
ts
 c
o
n
s
e
n
t.

H
o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
(L
H
A
 &
 A
4
/2
0
1
1
) 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 s
ta
te
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 m

a
y
 m

a
k
e
 

th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
to
 t
h
e
 l
a
n
d
lo
rd
, 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
y
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
a
t 
it
 

w
ill
 a
s
s
is
t 
th
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
in
 s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 o
r 
re
ta
in
in
g
 a
 t
e
n
a
n
c
y
.

C
o
m
p
le
te

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

�
2
7

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3
3
: 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
: 
P
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
 (
E
x
.4
4
) 
  
  
 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
s
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
 e
n
te
re
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 

m
e
rg
e
d
 s
y
s
te
m
. 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 c
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 a
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
h
a
s
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 t
h
e
 p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

n
e
w
 m

e
rg
e
d
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
s
y
s
te
m
.

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 M

 

W
a
te
rs
/J
 S
c
o
tn
e
y

H
ig
h

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

e
rg
e
d
 s
y
s
te
m
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

w
ro
n
g
ly
 e
n
te
re
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 b
y
 

th
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
a
c
c
u
ra
te
.

S
p
re
a
d
s
h
e
e
ts
 w
e
re
 a
v
a
ila

b
le
 d
e
ta
ili
n
g
 a
ll 
p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
 s
e
t 
a
n
d
 w
h
ils
t 
a
ll 

p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
 w
e
re
 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 b
y
 a
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
th
e
 s
p
re
a
d
s
h
e
e
ts
 w
e
re
 n
o
t 

c
o
u
n
te
rs
ig
n
e
d
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

M
o
v
in
g
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
b
ill
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
ll 
p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 s
e
t 
in
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
. 
A
ll 
p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
u
n
te
rs
ig
n
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
c
o
u
n
te
r 
s
ig
n
in
g
 h
a
s
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 

a
d
o
p
te
d
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
p
a
ra
m
e
te
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
.

C
o
m
p
le
te

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3
4
: 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 T
a
x
: 
R
e
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
 o
f 
V
O
A
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 t
o
 R
V
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3
4
: 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 T
a
x
: 
R
e
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
 o
f 
V
O
A
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 t
o
 R
V
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 (
E
x
.3
2
) 
  
 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 b
y
 a
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r.
 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
V
O
A
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 t
o
 b
a
n
d
in
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
. 
 

H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
re
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 b
y
 a
 

s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r.

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 K
 C

o
a
d

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
c
c
u
ra
te
 a
n
d
 a
s
 n
o
 

re
v
ie
w
 t
a
k
e
s
 p
la
c
e
 t
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 f
o
rm

a
lly
 r
e
c
o
rd
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 a
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r.

C
o
m
p
le
te

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3
5
: 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 T
a
x
 a
n
d
 N
N
D
R
: 
U
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
n
e
w
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 (
E
x
.3
4
 a
n
d
 4
0
) 
  
T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

fo
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 s
u
it
a
b
ly
 f
ile

d
.

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 s
ta
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
re
p
o
rt
 a
ll 
n
e
w
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 o
r 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 t
h
a
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 a
n
d
 N

N
D
R
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
s
. 

H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
o
n
e
 n
e
w
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 w
a
s
 n
o
t 
re
a
d
ily
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

a
s
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
te
s
ti
n
g
 a
t 
th
e
 t
im

e
 o
u
r 
w
o
rk
 w
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
fo
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
ta
x
 a
t 

S
e
d
g
e
fi
e
ld
 a
n
d
 N

N
D
R
 a
t 
D
e
rw

e
n
ts
id
e
, 
d
u
e
 t
o
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 b
e
in
g
 l
o
c
a
te
d
 

o
n
 s
e
v
e
ra
l 
s
it
e
s
. 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 K
 C

o
a
d
/A
 

S
e
a
rl
e

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
s
o
m
e
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 a
re
 n
o
t 
c
h
a
rg
e
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 

a
n
d
 N

N
D
R
 a
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 n
o
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
.

F
o
llo

w
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 u
n
it
a
ry
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 a
n
d
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
, 
p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 p
u
t 
in
to
 p
la
c
e
 a
n
d
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 c
e
n
tr
a
lis
e
d
 a
n
d
 f
ile

d
.

C
o
m
p
le
te

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

�
2
2
, 
2
4

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3
6
: 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 T
a
x
 a
n
d
 N
N
D
R
 :
 A
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
P
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
 

(E
x
.4
6
 a
n
d
 E
x
.3
7
) 
  
T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
s
h
o
u
ld
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
, 
a
n
d
 f
o
rm

a
l 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 k
e
p
t.
  
  
 

S
e
d
g
e
fi
e
ld

T
h
e
 p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
1
/1
2
 w
e
re
 i
n
p
u
t 
in
to
 t
h
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 a
n
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
ff
ic
e
r.
 H

o
w
e
v
e
r,
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
o
o
k
 p
la
c
e
 s
e
v
e
ra
l 
m
o
n
th
s
 

a
ft
e
r 
e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
. 
T
h
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 o
n
ly
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
is
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
ta
k
in
g
 

p
la
c
e
 i
n
 r
e
tr
o
s
p
e
c
t.
 

A
ll 
fo
rm

e
r 
d
is
tr
ic
t 
s
it
e
s
 a
re
 n
o
w
 o
b
s
o
le
te
 i
.e
. 
S
e
d
g
e
fi
e
ld
, 
W
e
a
r 
V
a
lle

y
, 
T
e
e
s
d
a
le
, 

D
e
rw

e
n
ts
id
e
, 
C
h
e
s
te
r-
le
-S

tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 E
a
s
in
g
to
n
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

D
u
rh
a
m
 C
o
u
n
ty
 U
n
it
a
ry
 -
 S
p
re
a
d
s
h
e
e
ts
 w
e
re
 a
v
a
ila

b
le
 d
e
ta
ili
n
g
 a
ll 
p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
 

s
e
t 
a
n
d
 w
h
ils
t 
a
ll 
p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
 w
h
e
re
 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 b
y
 a
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
th
e
 s
p
re
a
d
s
h
e
e
ts
 

w
e
re
 n
o
t 
c
o
u
n
te
rs
ig
n
e
d
. 
A
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
b
ill
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
ll 

C
o
m
p
le
te

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
 w
e
re
 i
n
a
c
c
u
ra
te
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
n
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

w
a
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 e
rr
o
rs
.

2
5

/0
3

/1
3

 0
9

:5
8

C
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v\

D
a

ta
\A

g
e

n
d

a
It

e
m

D
o

cs
\7

\0
\8

\A
I0

0
0

0
9

8
0

7
\$

5
zs

yj
h

g
i.

xl
s/

IG
R

4
 o

f 
7

Page 98



2
0
1
0
/1
1

F
in
d
in
g

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y

P
ri
o
ri
ty

A
u
d
it
o
r 
C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e

A
c
ti
o
n
s

C
o
m
p
le
te
 b
y
:

U
p
d
a
te
:

E
v
id
e
n
c
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
 t
a
x
 -
 W
e
a
r 
V
a
ll
e
y
, 
T
e
e
s
d
a
le
 a
n
d
 D
e
rw
e
n
ts
id
e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
S
e
n
io
r 

o
ff
ic
e
rs
 e
n
te
re
d
 t
h
e
 p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
 a
n
d
 m

o
re
 j
u
n
io
r 
s
ta
ff
 t
h
e
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 t
h
e
m
 (
N
B
 

T
e
e
s
d
a
le
 -
 a
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
d
id
 n
o
t 
re
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
 t
h
e
 N

N
D
R
 p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
).
  
T
h
is
 

is
 a
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 a
s
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 r
is
k
 t
h
a
t 
ju
n
io
r 
s
ta
ff
 d
o
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

e
x
p
e
rt
is
e
 a
n
d
 m

a
y
 f
e
e
l 
p
re
s
s
u
re
d
 i
n
to
 a
g
re
e
in
g
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
m
o
re
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 w
h
e
n
 

e
rr
o
rs
 h
a
v
e
 o
c
c
u
rr
e
d
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 C
h
e
s
te
r-
le
-S
tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 E
a
s
in
g
to
n

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 c
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
fi
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
u
p
d
a
ti
n
g
 o
f 

p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
. 

C
it
y
 o
f 
D
u
rh
a
m
 –
 N
N
D
R
 o
n
ly
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 c
la
im

e
d
 t
h
e
 p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
 w
e
re
 i
n
p
u
t 
b
y
 t
w
o
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 

b
y
 a
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r.
 H

o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
w
h
o
 c
la
im

e
d
 t
h
e
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 t
h
e
 p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
 h
a
s
 

s
ig
n
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 a
s
 t
h
e
 i
n
p
u
tt
in
g
 o
ff
ic
e
r.
 T
h
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 d
o
e
s
 

n
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
 a
n
y
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
a
n
o
th
e
r 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
re
v
ie
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
. 
T
h
e
re
fo
re
 

th
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 d
e
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 b
y
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

D
u
rh
a
m
 C
o
u
n
ty
 U
n
it
a
ry
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 c
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ry
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 

p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
 a
ft
e
r 
m
ig
ra
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

e
r 
d
is
tr
ic
t 
s
y
s
te
m
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 u
n
it
a
ry
 s
y
s
te
m
. 
  
  

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3
7
: 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 T
a
x
 a
n
d
 N
N
D
R
: 
F
u
n
d
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
re
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
s
 

(E
x
.6
2
) 
  
 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 t
ry
 t
o
 d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 a
ll 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
n
g
 i
te
m
s
 r
e
a
d
y
 f
o
r 
th
e
 y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
. 
A
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
s
h
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r-
e
n
d
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
. 
G
o
in
g
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 a
ll 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 o
n
 a
 t
im

e
ly
 b
a
s
is
. 

T
h
e
 U

n
it
a
ry
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 a
n
d
 N

N
D
R
 s
y
s
te
m
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 n
o
t 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
n
 a
 

 S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 K
 C

o
a
d
/ 
J
 

H
ig
h

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 
d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
 a
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 
E
x
te
n
s
iv
e
 w
o
rk
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
in
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
. 
A
 d
e
ta
ile

d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 w
a
s
 

R
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 P
ro
 F
o
rm

a
 L
o
g
 i
s
 m

a
in
ta
in
e
d
, 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 &
 

C
o
m
p
le
te

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 M

 

W
a
te
rs
/J
 S
c
o
tn
e
y

H
ig
h

p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
 w
e
re
 s
e
t 
in
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

A
ll 
p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
 w
e
re
 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
u
n
te
rs
ig
n
e
d
. 
 T
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
c
o
u
n
te
r 
s
ig
n
in
g
 

h
a
s
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 a
d
o
p
te
d
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
p
a
ra
m
e
te
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
.

T
h
e
 U

n
it
a
ry
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 a
n
d
 N

N
D
R
 s
y
s
te
m
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 n
o
t 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
n
 a
 

ti
m
e
ly
 m

a
n
n
e
r 
a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
n
g
 i
te
m
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 

w
e
re
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 e
x
p
la
in
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
. 

H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 i
n
te
n
d
 t
o
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
 m

o
s
t 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
n
g
 i
te
m
s
 r
e
a
d
y
 f
o
r 
th
e
 y
e
a
r-
e
n
d
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
n
o
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 

ta
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
. 
 

 S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 K
 C

o
a
d
/ 
J
 

D
o
w
s
o
n

H
ig
h

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 
d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
 a
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 

a
n
d
 N

N
D
R
 t
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
.

E
x
te
n
s
iv
e
 w
o
rk
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
in
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
. 
A
 d
e
ta
ile

d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 w
a
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
, 
w
h
ic
h
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 c
lo
s
e
d
o
w
n
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 

R
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 P
ro
fo
rm

a
 L
o
g
. 
W
e
e
k
ly
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
/u
p
d
a
te
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 

to
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
.

A
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
h
a
s
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
re
v
ie
w
in
g
 a
ll 
in
c
o
m
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 a
 p
re
-a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 c
h
e
c
k
lis
t,
 o
n
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 
a
 m

o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
.

R
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 P
ro
 F
o
rm

a
 L
o
g
 i
s
 m

a
in
ta
in
e
d
, 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 &
 

re
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 s
e
n
io
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
m
o
n
th
ly
. 
R
e
c
s
 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 &
 r
e
v
ie
w
.A
ll 
R
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

2
0
1
1
 a
re
 s
a
v
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 A
u
d
it
 C

o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 F
o
ld
e
r 
e
a
c
h
 

m
o
n
th
.R

e
c
o
n
c
ili
n
g
 i
te
m
s
 a
re
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
 a
n
d
 d
e
a
lt
 w
it
h
 o
n
 

a
n
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 b
a
s
is

C
o
m
p
le
te

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3
8
: 
N
N
D
R
: 
R
e
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
 o
f 
V
O
 S
c
h
e
d
u
le
s
 t
o
 R
V
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

(E
x
.3
6
) 
 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 

b
y
 a
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r.

D
u
rh
a
m
 C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 –
 A
ll
 S
it
e
s

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
V
O
A
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 t
o
 b
a
n
d
in
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
. 
 

H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
re
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 b
y
 a
 

s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r.

E
a
s
in
g
to
n

F
o
r 
th
e
 2
0
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1
 t
h
e
 V
O
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 s
ta
te
s
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 o
f 
2
,3
6
5
 w
it
h
 a
 

ra
te
a
b
le
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
4
9
,2
3
1
,6
5
1
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
re
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 N

N
D
R
 

s
y
s
te
m
 s
h
o
w
s
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 o
f 
2
,3
6
4
 w
it
h
 a
 r
a
te
a
b
le
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
4
9
,2
5
4
,9
0
1
. 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 c
o
u
ld
 

n
o
t 
e
x
p
la
in
 t
h
is
 d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
. 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 K
 C

o
a
d
/A
 

S
e
a
rl
e

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
c
c
u
ra
te
 a
n
d
 a
s
 n
o
 

re
v
ie
w
 t
a
k
e
s
 p
la
c
e
 t
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
A
ls
o
 r
is
k
 t
h
a
t 
N
N
D
R
 

re
c
o
rd
s
 a
re
 i
n
c
o
m
p
le
te
 a
n
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 n
o
t 
a
ll 
N
N
D
R
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

th
a
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 i
s

P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 f
o
rm

a
lly
 r
e
c
o
rd
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r

C
o
m
p
le
te

C
o
m
p
le
te

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

�
3
4

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3
9
: 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
n
ts
: 
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
fe
e
d
e
r 
s
y
s
te
m
 u
p
lo
a
d
 f
il
e
s
 n
o
t 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
te
d
 (
E
x
.2
6
) 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 s
h
o
u
ld
 s
ig
n
 b
o
th
 t
h
e
 h
a
rd
c
o
p
y
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 f
ile

 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 f
e
e
d
e
r 
s
y
s
te
m
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 b
a
tc
h
 u
p
lo
a
d
 f
ile

 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 R

e
n
ts
 s
y
s
te
m
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
t 
E
a
s
t 
D
u
rh
a
m
 H

o
m
e
s
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ile

 t
h
e
 f
e
e
d
e
r 
s
y
s
te
m
 u
p
lo
a
d
 f
ile

s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 b
a
tc
h
 

u
p
lo
a
d
e
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 R

e
n
ts
 s
y
s
te
m
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 n
o
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ry
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
is
 r
e
v
ie
w
 i
s
 k
e
p
t.
 T
h
is
 i
s
 t
h
e
 c
a
s
e
 f
o
r 
b
o
th
 C

a
s
h
 R

e
c
e
ip
ti
n
g
 

a
n
d
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
fi
le
s
  
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 K
 C

o
a
d
/J
 

H
u
g
h
e
s

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
ta
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 a
s
 i
t 
is
 n
o
t 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
d
. 
A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 e
rr
o
rs
 m

a
y
 o
c
c
u
r 
th
a
t 
a
re
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

T
h
is
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
 D

C
C
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
R
e
n
ts
. 
T
h
e
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
s
 a
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 s
h
o
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
a
s
h
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 I
C
O
N
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 r
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
s
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 t
h
e
n
 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
n
ts
 t
e
a
m
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 

u
p
lo
a
d
e
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 r
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
s
.

C
o
m
p
le
te

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 4
0
: 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
n
ts
: 
W
e
e
k
ly
 c
a
s
h
 r
e
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
 n
o
t 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 4
0
: 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
n
ts
: 
W
e
e
k
ly
 c
a
s
h
 r
e
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
 n
o
t 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
te
d
 (
E
x
.2
7
) 
 A
ll 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
, 
c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 

b
y
 a
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r.
 P
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
la
c
e
d
 o
n
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 Y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 r
e
n
ts
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
. 
 A
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
s
h
e
e
t 
c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
. 
 

T
h
e
 w
e
e
k
ly
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
s
p
re
a
d
s
h
e
e
t 
fo
r 
E
D
H
, 
fo
r 
b
o
th
 C

a
s
h
 

R
e
c
e
ip
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
o
ta
l 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 a
s
 

re
c
o
rd
e
d
 i
n
 O

rc
h
a
rd
 i
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 (
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 n
o
t 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
d
 f
o
rm

a
lly
).
 H

o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 

n
o
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
re
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 b
y
 a
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r.

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 K
 C

o
a
d
 /
 J
 

H
u
g
h
e
s

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
ta
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 a
s
 i
t 
is
 n
o
t 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
d
. 
A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 e
rr
o
rs
 m

a
y
 o
c
c
u
r 
th
a
t 
a
re
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

T
h
is
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
 D

C
C
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
R
e
n
ts
. 
T
h
e
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
s
 a
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 s
h
o
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
a
s
h
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 I
C
O
N
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 r
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
s
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 t
h
e
n
 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
n
ts
 t
e
a
m
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 

u
p
lo
a
d
e
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 r
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
s
.

C
o
m
p
le
te

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 4
1
: 
R
e
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
n
ts
 s
y
s
te
m
 a
n
d
 G
e
n
e
ra
l 

L
e
d
g
e
r 
n
o
t 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 (
E
x
. 
2
8
) 
 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
y
e
a
r-
e
n
d
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
th
re
e
 s
it
e
s
. 
A
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
s
h
o
u
ld
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
 a
ll 

re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

E
a
s
in
g
to
n

A
s
 a
t 
1
0
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 h
a
d
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
 i
n
fo
rm

a
l 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 

A
p
ri
l 
to
 N

o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
. 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
re
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
s
h
e
e
t 
th
a
t 
w
ill
 f
o
rm

a
lly
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 a
n
d
 a
re
 h
o
p
in
g
 t
o
 u
s
e
 t
h
is
 t
o
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
ll 

2
0
1
1
/1
2
 m

o
n
th
ly
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
tr
o
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
. 
 

W
e
a
r 
V
a
ll
e
y
 a
n
d
 C
it
y
 o
f 
D
u
rh
a
m

N
o
 m

o
n
th
ly
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 R

e
n
ts
 s
y
s
te
m
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
. 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 J
 H

u
g
h
e
s

H
ig
h

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 
d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
 a
ll 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 

R
e
n
t 
tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
.

T
h
e
 `
in
fo
rm

a
l`
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
fo
r 
s
e
v
e
ra
l 
y
e
a
rs
 b
y
 t
h
e
 R

e
n
t 

te
a
m
 a
t 
E
D
H
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 d
id
 n
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
 a
 s
ig
n
e
d
 

c
o
n
tr
o
l 
s
h
e
e
t.
 I
t 
is
 a
c
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 f
o
llo

w
 t
h
e
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 f
o
rm

a
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 h
a
s
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d

C
o
m
p
le
te

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

�
3
4

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 4
2
: 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
n
ts
: 
A
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
n
ts
 u
p
ra
ti
n
g
 

c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
 (
E
x
.2
9
) 
T
h
e
 r
e
n
ts
 u
p
ra
ti
n
g
 c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 o
n
 a
 t
im

e
ly
 

b
a
s
is
.

A
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
h
a
s
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
n
t 
re
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
u
s
e
d
 t
o
 

u
p
ra
te
 t
h
e
 r
e
n
ts
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
th
re
e
 s
it
e
s
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
is
 w
a
s
 i
n
 r
e
tr
o
s
p
e
c
t 
s
e
v
e
ra
l 
m
o
n
th
s
 

a
ft
e
r 
th
e
 u
p
ra
ti
n
g
 t
o
o
k
 p
la
c
e
. 
 T
h
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 J
 H

u
g
h
e
s

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
n
t 
c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
1
/1
2
 c
o
n
ta
in
s
 e
rr
o
rs
 t
h
a
t 

w
e
re
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

T
h
e
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
n
t 
re
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 r
e
n
ts
 

e
in
g
 u
p
lo
a
d
e
d
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 e
v
id
e
n
c
in
g
 t
h
is
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 w
a
s
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 r
e
tr
o
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
. 
 T
h
e
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 r
e
v
ie
w
 w
a
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 

C
o
m
p
le
te

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

a
ft
e
r 
th
e
 u
p
ra
ti
n
g
 t
o
o
k
 p
la
c
e
. 
 T
h
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
n
tr
o
l.

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 r
e
tr
o
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
. 
 T
h
e
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 r
e
v
ie
w
 w
a
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 

s
ig
n
e
d
 o
ff
 a
t 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 t
im

e
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 u
p
lo
a
d
.

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 4
3
: 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
n
ts
: 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
n
t 

re
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 r
e
n
ts
 s
y
s
te
m
 (
E
x
.3
0
) 
T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 a
g
re
e
 

p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
n
t 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
n
ts
 s
y
s
te
m
 o
n
 a
 t
im

e
ly
 b
a
s
is
. 
  
 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
 r
a
n
d
o
m
 c
h
e
c
k
 o
f 
1
5
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
th
re
e
 s
it
e
s
 i
n
 r
e
tr
o
s
p
e
c
t 

s
e
v
e
ra
l 
m
o
n
th
s
 a
ft
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
w
 r
e
n
ts
 w
e
re
 u
p
lo
a
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
n
ts
 s
y
s
te
m
s
. 
T
h
e
re
fo
re
 

th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o
f 
th
is
 c
o
n
tr
o
l.
  

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 J
 H

u
g
h
e
s

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 c
o
rr
e
c
tl
y
 u
p
lo
a
d
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 

th
is
 w
a
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

A
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
a
ll 
th
re
e
 r
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
s
 h
a
d
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 r
e
n
ts
 w
e
re
 

u
p
lo
a
d
e
d
 c
o
rr
e
c
tl
y
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
a
s
 n
o
te
d
 a
b
o
v
e
, 
th
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 e
v
id
e
n
c
in
g
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 w
a
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 r
e
tr
o
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
. 
D
u
ri
n
g
 a
u
d
it
 s
a
m
p
le
 c
h
e
c
k
in
g
, 
n
o
 

e
rr
o
rs
 w
e
re
 f
o
u
n
d
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 u
p
lo
a
d
. 
T
h
e
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 r
e
v
ie
w
 w
a
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

a
n
d
 c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 s
ig
n
e
d
 o
ff
 a
t 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 t
im

e
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 u
p
lo
a
d
.

C
o
m
p
le
te

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 4
4
: 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
n
ts
: 
R
e
n
t 
d
o
w
n
lo
a
d
 a
n
d
 u
p
lo
a
d
 (
E
x
.3
9
) 
 T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 g
a
in
 a
n
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
b
y
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
rs
 s
o
 t
h
e
y
 c
a
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
rs
 w
o
rk
, 
o
r 
if
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
is
 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le
 

c
a
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
h
e
 d
o
w
n
lo
a
d
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
.

T
h
e
 r
e
n
t 
d
o
w
n
lo
a
d
 a
n
d
 u
p
lo
a
d
 f
o
r 
C
it
y
 o
f 
D
u
rh
a
m
 i
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
 a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
b
a
s
e
d
 

in
 S
p
a
in
. 
It
 w
a
s
 n
o
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
u
s
 t
o
 w
a
lk
th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
t 
th
e
 t
im

e
 o
f 
th
e
 a
u
d
it
.

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 J
 H

u
g
h
e
s

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
is
 n
o
t 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
n
t 
d
o
w
n
lo
a
d
 

a
n
d
 u
p
lo
a
d
s
 c
o
rr
e
c
tl
y
 a
n
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
n
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

In
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
te
x
t 
o
f 
th
e
 d
a
ta
 l
o
a
d
 o
f 
n
e
w
 r
e
n
ts
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 s
y
s
te
m
, 
th
e
 r
e
n
ts
 a
re
 

c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 a
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
rs
 w
o
rk
. 
S
h
o
u
ld
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 

n
o
t 
b
e
 a
v
a
ila

b
le
, 
th
e
n
 t
h
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 s
u
p
p
lie

r,
 N

o
rt
h
g
a
te
, 
(o
r 
o
th
e
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts
) 

w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
n
y
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
.

C
o
m
p
le
te

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 4
5
: 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
n
ts
: 
N
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 r
e
m
o
v
a
l 
(E
x
.4
5
) 
T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 a
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
a
ll 
p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 r
e
m
o
v
a
l 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 c
o
rr
e
c
tl
y
. 
  
  
 

2
5

/0
3

/1
3

 0
9

:5
8

C
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v\

D
a

ta
\A

g
e

n
d

a
It

e
m

D
o

cs
\7

\0
\8

\A
I0

0
0

0
9

8
0

7
\$

5
zs

yj
h

g
i.

xl
s/

IG
R

5
 o

f 
7

Page 99



2
0
1
0
/1
1

F
in
d
in
g

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y

P
ri
o
ri
ty

A
u
d
it
o
r 
C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e

A
c
ti
o
n
s

C
o
m
p
le
te
 b
y
:

U
p
d
a
te
:

E
v
id
e
n
c
e

A
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 r
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 R

e
n
ts
 s
y
s
te
m
. 

H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
is
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
in
v
o
lv
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 a
n
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 r
e
m
o
v
a
l 
is
 c
o
rr
e
c
t.

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 J
 H

u
g
h
e
s

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 e
it
h
e
r 
b
e
in
g
 p
ri
v
a
te
ly
 

b
o
u
g
h
t 
o
r 
d
e
m
o
lis
h
e
d
 a
re
 s
ti
ll 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
to
c
k
 

a
n
d
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
 a
n
d
 v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 w
ro
n
g
ly
 r
a
is
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
s
e
 

p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
.

T
h
e
re
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm

 t
h
e
 R

e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
s
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 

p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 R

e
n
t 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t.
 A
n
y
 e
rr
o
rs
 a
re
 s
p
o
tt
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 n
a
tu
re
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
s
h
o
u
ld
 a
 R

T
B
 n
o
t 
b
e
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 

to
 c
h
a
rg
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
n
t,
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

e
r 
te
n
a
n
t 
a
d
v
is
e
s
 i
m
m
e
d
ia
te
ly
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
b
le
m
. 

S
im

ila
rl
y
, 
s
h
o
u
ld
 a
 d
e
m
o
lis
h
e
d
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 n
o
t 
b
e
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
, 
th
e
 r
e
n
t 
a
rr
e
a
rs
 w
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 h
ig
h
lig

h
te
d
 i
m
m
e
d
ia
te
ly
 a
n
d
 u
p
o
n
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
b
le
m
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 f
o
u
n
d
.

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
n
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
c
h
e
c
k
 a
t 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 F
in
a
l 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
, 

w
h
e
re
 a
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
to
c
k
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 i
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 H

R
A
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t.
 

A
 s
im

ila
r 
m
id
-y
e
a
r 
c
h
e
c
k
 t
o
o
k
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 y
e
a
rs
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 

S
u
b
s
id
y
 B
a
s
e
 d
a
ta
 r
e
tu
rn
 a
n
d
 w
h
ils
t 
th
is
 r
e
tu
rn
 i
s
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
v
a
lid

, 
it
 i
s
 t
h
e
 H

e
a
d
 o
f 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 (
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
in
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
is
 m

id
-y
e
a
r 

re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
.

C
o
m
p
le
te

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 4
6
: 
C
a
s
h
 R
e
c
e
ip
ti
n
g
: 
S
u
s
p
e
n
s
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
(E
x
.5
8
) 
T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld
 c
le
a
r 
th
e
 s
u
s
p
e
n
s
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
a
ll 
la
rg
e
 i
te
m
s
 b
y
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r-
e
n
d
. 
  
  
  
  

A
s
 a
t 
1
5
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 t
h
e
 t
o
ta
l 
v
a
lu
e
 i
n
 s
u
s
p
e
n
s
e
 w
a
s
 £
1
,6
1
3
,3
6
1
.5
2
. 
O
f 
th
is
 b
a
la
n
c
e
, 

£
1
,5
6
8
,8
7
1
.3
4
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
o
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
. 
T
h
is
 d
o
e
s
 s
h
o
w
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 

m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 s
u
s
p
e
n
s
e
 i
te
m
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 v
e
ry
 h
ig
h
 b
a
la
n
c
e
 s
e
e
n
 e
a
rl
y
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
 w
h
ic
h
 

o
c
c
u
rr
e
d
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
s
s
ig
n
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
in
c
o
rr
e
c
t 
re
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 m

e
a
n
in
g
 t
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 n
o
t 

a
u
to
m
a
ti
c
a
lly
 a
llo

c
a
te
d
. 
T
h
is
 h
a
s
 n
o
w
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
d
.

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 K
 C

o
a
d
/J
 

D
o
w
s
o
n

H
ig
h

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
 h
ig
h
 v
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 
in
c
o
m
e
 i
s
 n
o
t 
c
o
rr
e
c
tl
y
 p
o
s
te
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r-
e
n
d
.

T
h
e
 r
e
 -
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
in
g
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
d
. 
 S
u
s
p
e
n
s
e
 a
m
o
u
n
ts
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 c
le
a
re
d
 

o
n
 a
 d
a
ily
 b
a
s
is
 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 w
e
e
k
ly
 b
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.

T
h
e
 y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 e
n
s
u
re
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 w
e
re
 p
o
s
te
d
 o
n
 3
1
 M

a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
2
.

C
o
m
p
le
te

V
o
lu
m
e
 a
n
d
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
s
u
s
p
e
n
s
e
 i
s
 n
o
w
 a
 l
o
c
a
l 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r,
re
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
o
th
 w
e
e
k
ly
 

a
n
d
 m

o
n
th
ly
. 
S
u
b
s
ta
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 4
7
: 
C
a
s
h
 R
e
c
e
ip
ti
n
g
: 
C
a
s
h
 s
h
e
e
t 
to
ta
ls
 r
e
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
 n
o
t 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
d
 (
E
x
.5
9
) 
T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 i
s
 m

a
in
ta
in
e
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
. 
  
 

N
o
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 p
e
rf
o
rm

e
d
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 c
a
s
h
 t
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 S
p
e
n
n
y
m
o
o
r 
C
a
s
h
 

O
ff
ic
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
re
c
o
rd
e
d
 i
n
 I
C
O
N
 f
o
r 
th
e
 d
a
te
 t
e
s
te
d
, 
a
s
 t
h
e
 c
a
s
h
 o
ff
ic
e
 p
ri
n
te
rs
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 K
 C

o
a
d
 /
 J
 

D
o
w
s
o
n

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n
o
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm

e
d
 a
n
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 

e
rr
o
rs
 a
re
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

U
p
o
n
 f
a
ilu

re
 o
f 
a
 p
ri
n
te
r,
 e
n
d
 o
f 
d
a
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
a
c
k
 o
ff
ic
e
. 

A
ll 
c
a
s
h
ie
rs
 b
a
n
k
in
g
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ile

d
 f
ro
m
 1
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 b
a
n
k
 

C
o
m
p
le
te

A
n
y
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 c
a
s
h
-u
p
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 c
a
n
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 

v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
-p
ri
n
te
d
. 
(S

e
e
 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
).
 D

a
ily
 

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

C
o
m
p
le
te

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

h
e

 m
id

-y
e

a
r 

re
co

n
ci

li
a

ti
o

n

O
ff
ic
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
re
c
o
rd
e
d
 i
n
 I
C
O
N
 f
o
r 
th
e
 d
a
te
 t
e
s
te
d
, 
a
s
 t
h
e
 c
a
s
h
 o
ff
ic
e
 p
ri
n
te
rs
 

w
e
re
 n
o
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
. 
T
h
is
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 n
o
 h
a
rd
 c
o
p
y
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 b
e
in
g
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
. 
 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 d
id
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
s
ta
te
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 I
C
O
N
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 v
a
lu
e
s
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ile

d
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
is
 r
e
v
ie
w
 i
s
 n
o
t 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
d
. 

D
o
w
s
o
n

e
rr
o
rs
 a
re
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

A
ll 
c
a
s
h
ie
rs
 b
a
n
k
in
g
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ile

d
 f
ro
m
 1
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 b
a
n
k
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 f
o
rm

 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
.

v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
-p
ri
n
te
d
. 
(S

e
e
 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
).
 D

a
ily
 

c
h
e
c
k
s
 a
re
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 A
L
L
 

b
a
n
k
in
g
s
 a
re
 c
o
rr
e
c
c
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 

g
o
n
e
 i
n
 t
o
 B
a
n
k
 R

e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 S
y
s
te
m
. 
A
g
a
in
 

th
e
s
e
 a
re
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ile

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b
a
n
k
 

s
ta
te
m
e
n
t.
F
u
rt
h
e
r 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 i
s
 a
v
a
ila

b
le
 o
n
 

s
it
e
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 s
y
s
te
m
s
.A
d
d
it
io
n
a
lly
,a
ll 
s
ta
ff
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
 C

a
s
h
 H

a
n
d
lin

g
 P
o
lic
y
,r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 &
 u
p
d
a
te
d

P
ro
v
id
e
d

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 4
8
: 
C
a
s
h
 R
e
c
e
ip
ti
n
g
: 
C
a
s
h
 u
p
lo
a
d
 f
il
e
s
 r
e
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
 (
E
x
.6
0
) 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ile

 a
ll 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 
th
a
t 
a
re
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 

th
e
 u
p
lo
a
d
 f
ile

. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r.
 

A
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 p
e
rf
o
rm

e
d
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 C

a
s
h
 u
p
lo
a
d
 f
ile

 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 I
C
O
N
 

s
y
s
te
m
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
a
s
h
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r,
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
is
 w
a
s
 o
n
ly
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 1
 D

e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
. 

T
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
ly
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ile

s
 t
h
e
 e
le
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 u
p
lo
a
d
 f
ile

 c
o
d
e
d
 t
o
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

9
3
6
9
0
0
 -
 S
y
s
te
m
 C

a
s
h
 A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r.
 A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

9
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
 o
n
ly
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ile

d
 £
1
,0
2
5
,4
2
7
.9
9
 o
f 
£
2
,7
8
1
,7
3
1
.2
6
 t
h
a
t 
w
a
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 c
a
s
h
 u
p
lo
a
d
 f
ile

. 

In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
th
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 b
y
 a
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r.

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 K
 C

o
a
d
 /
 J
 

D
o
w
s
o
n

H
ig
h

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
h
ig
h
lig

h
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 u
p
lo
a
d
 f
ile

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r,
 a
s
 i
t 
o
n
ly
 

fo
c
u
s
e
s
 o
n
 o
n
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
s
 n
o
t 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 

a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
.

O
ri
g
in
a
lly
 t
h
is
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
ly
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
m
o
u
n
ts
 g
o
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 I
C
O
N
, 
w
h
ic
h
 

e
x
p
la
in
s
 t
h
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
. 
S
in
c
e
 t
h
e
n
, 
th
e
 d
a
ily
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 a
ll 
in
c
o
m
e
. 
A
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
n
o
w
 h
a
s
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
re
v
ie
w
in
g
 a
ll 
in
c
o
m
e
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 a
 p
re
-a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 c
h
e
c
k
lis
t,
 o
n
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 
a
 m

o
n
th
ly
 

b
a
s
is
.

C
o
m
p
le
te

T
h
e
 I
C
O
N
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 G

L
 w
a
s
 o
n
ly
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 o
n
 a
 d
a
ily
 b
a
s
is
 o
n
 t
h
e
 1

s
t 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
it
 w
a
s
 t
h
e
n
 a
ls
o
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 r
e
tr
o
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 w
h
e
n
 I
C
O
N
 

w
a
s
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 -
 1
6

th
 M

a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
1
.R

e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 

a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 o
n
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 
a
 m

o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
 a
n
d
 

fo
rm

s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 m

o
n
th
ly
 R

e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 P
ro
 

F
o
rm

a
 L
o
g
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 e
a
rl
ie
r.
IC
O
N
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 

ro
lle

d
 o
u
t 
to
 e
v
e
ry
 r
e
m
a
in
in
g
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
t 
b
y
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
3

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 4
9
: 
C
a
s
h
 R
e
c
e
ip
ti
n
g
: 
D
u
p
li
c
a
te
 R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 (
E
x
.6
1
) 
 T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
in
c
o
m
e
 p
o
s
te
d
 t
o
 d
u
p
lic
a
te
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
 a
n
d
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 g
a
in
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
it
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
o
s
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
rr
e
c
t 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t.
  

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
 a
n
d
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 g
a
in
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
it
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
o
s
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
rr
e
c
t 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t.
  

W
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 I
C
O
N
 s
y
s
te
m
 w
a
s
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 t
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 m

a
n
y
 d
u
p
lic
a
te
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

re
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

e
r 
d
is
tr
ic
t 
s
y
s
te
m
s
. 
A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
o
r 
o
n
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

m
a
y
 b
e
 w
ro
n
g
ly
 p
o
s
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o
th
e
r 
b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
u
p
lic
a
te
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
e
. 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 

s
ta
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 i
s
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
a
n
 i
s
s
u
e
 a
s
 t
h
is
 w
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
. 
T
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 

a
ls
o
 s
ta
te
d
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 a
n
y
 e
rr
o
rs
. 
 

K
 C

o
a
d
/J
 D

o
w
s
o
n

L
o
w

T
h
e
 r
e
s
id
u
a
l 
ri
s
k
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 p
o
s
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
ro
n
g
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
is
 

n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b
u
t 
th
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
 m

a
te
ri
a
l 
ri
s
k
.

A
n
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 w
a
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
ll 
d
u
p
lic
a
te
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 w
h
e
re
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 f
o
r 
w
ro
n
g
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
. 
T
h
e
 I
C
O
N
 a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 r
u
le
s
 w
e
re
 a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

fr
o
m
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 c
o
u
ld
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
h
a
p
p
e
n
.

C
o
m
p
le
te

A
c
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 o
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 C

iv
ic
a
's
 

S
o
lu
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
is
s
u
e
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
d
 b
y
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
, 
i.
e
.a
ll 
d
u
p
lic
a
te
d
 w
e
re
 r
e
-

re
fe
re
n
c
e
d
,c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 c
o
n
ta
c
te
d
,b
a
n
k
 r
u
le
s
 

a
n
d
 v
a
lid

a
ti
o
n
 w
e
re
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 &
 

ti
g
h
te
n
e
d
,a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
h
o
ld
e
r 
ta
b
le
s
 a
m
e
n
d
e
d
, 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
lin

e
s
 f
o
r 
in
te
rf
a
c
e
s
 &
 

im
p
e
x
e
s
.F
u
rt
h
e
r 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 a
v
a
ila

b
le
 o
n
 s
it
e

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

�
2
9

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 5
0
: 
B
a
n
k
 R
e
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
s
: 
B
a
n
k
 R
e
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
s
 n
o
t 
p
re
p
a
re
d
 

o
r 
a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 o
n
 a
 t
im
e
ly
 b
a
s
is
 (
E
x
.5
6
) 
T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 B
a
n
k
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 o
n
 a
 t
im

e
ly
 b
a
s
is
. 
 

A
s
 a
t 
2
6
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
re
c
e
n
tl
y
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 C

o
u
n
ty
 F
u
n
d
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 3
1
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
. 
J
a
n
u
a
ry
 a
n
d
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 s
ig
n
e
d
 a
s
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 

a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 o
n
 2
7
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 b
u
t 
th
e
y
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 m

a
te
ri
a
l 
a
m
o
u
n
ts
 o
f 
it
e
m
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
n
k
 b
u
t 
n
o
t 
in
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r.
 N

o
t 
a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 a
m
o
u
n
ts
 w
e
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 t
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
 

le
v
e
l.

P
ic
k
e
d
 u
p
 b
y
 t
h
e
 S
p
e
n
n
y
m
o
o
r 
te
a
m
 w
h
e
re
 e
x
te
n
s
iv
e
 w
o
rk
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 

in
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
. 
A
 d
e
ta
ile

d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
. 
W
e
e
k
ly
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
/ 

u
p
d
a
te
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
 d
ra
ft
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
o
 3
1
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
. 
 H

o
w
e
v
e
r,
 a
 m

a
tc
h
in
g
 

e
x
e
rc
is
e
 i
s
 s
ti
ll 
u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
. 
T
h
e
 f
in
d
in
g
 r
e
fe
rs
 t
o
 m

a
te
ri
a
l,
 u
n
re
c
o
n
c
ile

d
 i
te
m
s
, 
th
is
 

re
fe
rs
 t
o
 c
h
e
q
u
e
 a
n
d
 B
A
C
S
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
d
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 O

p
e
n
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 s
y
s
te
m
 

a
n
d
 n
o
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 O

ra
c
le
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

N
o
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 s
in
c
e
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
. 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

s
ta
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
o
n
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 d
is
tr
ic
t,
 n
o
t 
e
a
c
h
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t,
 f
o
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
6
 m

o
n
th
s
 o
f 
th
e
 y
e
a
r.
 I
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
th
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

e
r 
d
is
tr
ic
t 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

N
o
 I
n
c
o
m
e
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 f
u
n
d
 b
a
n
k
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r.
 

T
h
is
 i
s
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
 b
a
n
k
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 f
a
c
ili
ty
 w
it
h
in
 I
C
O
N
 i
s
 n
o
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
. 

 A
s
 t
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 n
o
 i
n
te
rf
a
c
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 u
n
ti
l 
A
p
ri
l-
1
2
 t
o
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
G
L
 

c
o
d
in
g
 i
n
 O

ra
c
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
s
e
 i
te
m
s
, 
m
a
n
u
a
l 
jo
u
rn
a
ls
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 i
n
s
te
a
d
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
w
 a
n
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 t
o
 m

a
tc
h
 b
a
n
k
 t
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 (
B
A
C
S
 b
a
tc
h
 

v
a
lu
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
h
e
q
u
e
 a
m
o
u
n
ts
) 
w
it
h
 m

a
n
u
a
l 
jo
u
rn
a
l 
e
n
tr
ie
s
 (
b
a
tc
h
 

a
m
o
u
n
ts
).
 T
h
is
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 w
/e
 2
0
/5
/1
2
. 
A
s
 h
ig
h
lig

h
te
d
, 
th
e
 l
a
s
t 

re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
s
 a
t 
3
0
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
. 
S
in
c
e
 t
h
is
 d
a
te
, 
e
a
c
h
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 K
 C

o
a
d
 /
 J
 

D
o
w
s
o
n
 /
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 

H
ig
h

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
b
a
n
k
 o
r 
G
e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 
e
rr
o
rs
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
rr
e
c
te
d
 o
n
 a
 t
im

e
ly
 b
a
s
is
.

C
o
m
p
le
te

R
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
In
c
o
m
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
in
 1
1
/1
2
 

w
a
s
 n
o
t 
d
o
n
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
a
t 
y
e
a
r 
u
n
ti
l 
a
 

m
a
n
u
a
l 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
n
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 1
2
 a
n
d
 a
n
o
th
e
r 
fi
n
a
l 
o
n
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 

in
 M

a
rc
h
 1
2
. 
E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 s
u
p
p
lie

d
. 
G
o
in
g
 

fo
rw

a
rd
, 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 o
n
 a
 t
im

e
ly
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 b
a
s
is

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

E
n

su
re

 t
h

e
 r

e
co

n
ci

li
a

ti
o

n
s 

a
re

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
, r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 
e

v
id

e
n

ce
 r

e
ta

in
e

d

T
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 is

 t
h

a
t 

D
a

v
id

 W
a

tc
h

m
a

n
 a

n
d

 I
a

n
 S

m
a

ll
 

T
h
is
 i
s
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
 b
a
n
k
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 f
a
c
ili
ty
 w
it
h
in
 I
C
O
N
 i
s
 n
o
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
. 

In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
th
e
 B
a
n
k
 R

e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 o
n
 a
 t
im

e
ly
 b
a
s
is
. 
B
a
n
k
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 b
e
in
g
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 e
v
e
n
 t
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
y
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 m

a
te
ri
a
l 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
n
g
 

it
e
m
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
s
 a
t 
3
0
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
. 
S
in
c
e
 t
h
is
 d
a
te
, 
e
a
c
h
 

o
f 
th
e
s
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 o
p
e
ra
te
d
 o
n
 a
n
 i
m
p
re
s
t 
b
a
s
is
 (
in
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
c
re
d
it
 

tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
re
 t
ra
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
 o
n
 a
 d
a
ily
 b
a
s
is
 o
v
e
r 
to
 t
h
e
 I
n
c
o
m
e
 

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
a
n
d
 a
re
 a
c
c
o
u
n
te
d
 f
o
r 
v
ia
 I
C
O
N
).
 A
n
y
 d
e
b
it
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
it
 t
h
e
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
a
re
 c
o
d
e
d
 m

a
n
u
a
lly
 i
n
 O

ra
c
le
. 
T
h
e
 b
a
la
n
c
e
s
 o
n
 e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 

w
e
re
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 
to
 z
e
ro
 a
s
 a
t 
3
1
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
.T
h
e
 f
in
a
l 
e
x
e
rc
is
e
 i
s
 s
ti
ll 
to
 b
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 G

L
 b
a
la
n
c
e
s
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
, 
re
c
o
n
c
ile

 t
o
 z
e
ro
 a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 

o
f 
1
1
/1
2
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 d
a
y
s
 o
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
l 
a
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 t
h
a
t 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
b
a
la
n
c
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 F
u
n
d
s
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 I
C
O
N
 b
a
n
k
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 I
C
O
N
 a
u
to
m
a
te
d
 

b
a
n
k
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 m

o
d
u
le
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
s
 s
o
m
e
 d
a
ta
 c
le
a
n
s
in
g
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

M
a
n
u
a
l 
b
a
n
k
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 f
o
r 
F
e
b
ru
a
ry
, 
M
a
rc
h
 &
 A
p
ri
l 

a
n
d
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 s
ti
ll 
b
e
in
g
 w
o
rk
e
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
ly
.

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 5
1
: 
B
a
n
k
 R
e
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
s
: 
M
a
te
ri
a
l 
s
u
m
 o
f 
it
e
m
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 b
a
n
k
 

n
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 G
e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 
(E
x
. 
5
7
) 
T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 o
n
ly
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 w
h
e
n
 a
ll 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
n
g
 i
te
m
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
  

N
o
 i
n
te
rf
a
c
e
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 O

p
e
n
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 s
y
s
te
m
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 
e
x
is
ts
. 

T
h
e
re
fo
re
 t
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 p
o
s
te
d
 m

a
n
u
a
lly
. 
T
h
is
 h
a
s
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 l
a
rg
e
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili
n
g
 i
te
m
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 B
a
n
k
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 i
te
m
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 B
a
n
k
 

b
u
t 
n
o
t 
y
e
t 
p
o
s
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r.
 F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 i
n
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
 t
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 a
 

to
ta
l 
o
f 
£
1
0
0
.9
 m

ill
io
n
. 
S
o
m
e
, 
b
u
t 
n
o
t 
a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 b
a
la
n
c
e
s
, 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 d
o
w
n
 

to
 t
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
l.
 E
v
e
n
 t
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
n
g
 i
te
m
s
 e
x
is
t,
 t
h
e
 b
a
n
k
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
re
 s
ti
ll 
b
e
in
g
 s
ig
n
e
d
 o
ff
. 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 K
 C

o
a
d
/J
 

D
o
w
s
o
n

H
ig
h

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 
w
ill
 n
o
t 
a
c
c
u
ra
te
ly
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th
e
 

b
a
n
k
 t
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 m

a
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 o
th
e
r 
a
re
a
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 

b
u
d
g
e
ta
ry
 c
o
n
tr
o
l.
 M

a
n
u
a
l 
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
s
 a
n
 a
d
d
e
d
 r
is
k
 o
f 

e
rr
o
r 
o
r 
m
a
n
ip
u
la
ti
o
n

A
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
n
o
w
 h
a
s
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
re
v
ie
w
in
g
 a
ll 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 a
 p
re
-a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 c
h
e
c
k
lis
t,
 o
n
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 
a
 m

o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
.

C
o
m
p
le
te

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d

D
o
w
s
o
n
 /
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 

Ia
n
 S
m
a
ll

H
ig
h

T
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 is

 t
h

a
t 

D
a

v
id

 W
a

tc
h

m
a

n
 a

n
d

 I
a

n
 S

m
a

ll
 

a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 F

u
n

d
 b

a
n

k
 r

e
co

n
ci

li
a

ti
o

n
 

fo
r 

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
.

2
5

/0
3

/1
3

 0
9

:5
8

C
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v\

D
a

ta
\A

g
e

n
d

a
It

e
m

D
o

cs
\7

\0
\8

\A
I0

0
0

0
9

8
0

7
\$

5
zs

yj
h

g
i.

xl
s/

IG
R

6
 o

f 
7

Page 100



2
0
1
0
/1
1

F
in
d
in
g

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y

P
ri
o
ri
ty

A
u
d
it
o
r 
C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e

A
c
ti
o
n
s

C
o
m
p
le
te
 b
y
:

U
p
d
a
te
:

E
v
id
e
n
c
e

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 5
2
: 
S
P
O
C
C
: 
N
o
 r
e
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 S
P
O
C
C
 s
y
s
te
m
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 P
a
y
a
b
le
 s
y
s
te
m
 (
E
x
.3
1
) 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld
 p
e
rf
o
rm

 f
o
rm

a
l 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 S
P
O
C
C
 s
y
s
te
m
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 

P
a
y
a
b
le
 S
y
s
te
m
. 
A
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
s
h
o
u
ld
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 f
o
rm

a
l 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 P
a
y
a
b
le
 s
y
s
te
m
 a
n
d
 S
P
O
C
C
 

s
y
s
te
m
. 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 s
ta
te
d
 t
h
e
y
 g
a
in
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

S
P
O
C
C
 s
y
s
te
m
 a
re
 u
p
lo
a
d
e
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 P
a
y
a
b
le
 s
y
s
te
m
 f
o
r 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t,
 i
f 
n
o
 

e
rr
o
r 
w
a
rn
in
g
 a
p
p
e
a
rs
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 f
ile

 i
s
 u
p
lo
a
d
e
d
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 P
a
y
a
b
le
 -
 C

h
ri
s
 

J
o
n
e
s

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 P
a
y
a
b
le
 s
y
s
te
m
 a
n
d
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 

w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
.

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 g
o
v
e
rn
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
ts
 o
f 
O
ra
c
le
, 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
/c
o
n
tr
o
l 
s
h
e
e
ts
 a
re
 

n
o
w
 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
, 
m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 a
n
d
 f
ile

d
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 e
a
c
h
 u
p
lo
a
d
. 
 A
n
 A
P
 s
u
p
e
rv
is
o
r 

re
v
ie
w
s
 a
n
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
.

C
o
m
p
le
te

C
o
m
p
le
te

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d

2
5

/0
3

/1
3

 0
9

:5
8

C
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v\

D
a

ta
\A

g
e

n
d

a
It

e
m

D
o

cs
\7

\0
\8

\A
I0

0
0

0
9

8
0

7
\$

5
zs

yj
h

g
i.

xl
s/

IG
R

7
 o

f 
7

Page 101



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



Audit 2012/13

February 2013

Durham County Council –

Audit Strategy Memorandum 

2012/13 

January 2013

Agenda Item 10

Page 103



Contents

2

Our reports are prepared in the context of the Audit Commission’s ‘Statement of 

responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies’. Reports and letters prepared by 

appointed auditors and addressed to members or officers are prepared for the 

sole use of the Authority and we take no responsibility to any member or officer in 

their individual capacity or to any third party. 

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, the international advisory and accountancy 

organisation. Mazars LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England 

with registered number OC308299.

Purpose and background

Independence

Audit approach

Significant risks and key judgements

Value for money

Audit timeline

Fees for audit and other services

Your audit team

Appendices

p3

p5

p6

p9

p12

p14

p16

p18 

p20

Page 104



3

01

Purpose and 

background

This document 

communicates to you the 

scope of our audit, the 

risks we have identified 

and the procedures we 

will perform to deliver the 

audit.

Page 105



4

Purpose and background

Purpose of this document

This document sets out our audit plan in respect of the external audit of Durham County Council (the Council) for 

the year ending 31 March 2013. This document forms the basis for discussion at the Audit Committee meeting on 

4 April. 

The Plan sets out our proposed audit approach and is prepared to assist you in fulfilling your governance 

responsibilities. The responsibilities of those charged with governance are defined as to oversee the strategic 

direction of the entity and obligations related to the accountability of the entity, including overseeing the financial 

reporting process.

Our communication with you is important in:

• reaching a mutual understanding of the scope of the audit and the responsibilities of the auditor and those 

charged with governance;

• sharing information to assist both the auditor and those charged with governance to fulfil their respective 

responsibilities;

• providing to those charged with governance constructive observations arising from the audit process; and

• ensuring as part of the two-way communication process that we, as external auditors, gain an understanding 

of the attitude and views of those charged with governance of the internal and external operational, financial, 

compliance and other risks facing the Council which might affect the audit, including the likelihood of those 

risks materialising and how they are monitored and managed

Scope of engagement

We are appointed to perform the external audit of Durham County Council for the year to 31 March 2013. The 

scope of our engagement is laid out in the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice for Local Government 

bodies.

Respective responsibilities

The Audit Commission’s Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and of Audited Bodies sets out our respective 

responsibilities as the auditor and the audited body. The Audit Commission has issued a copy of the Statement to 

you. 

The Statement summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body begin and end 

and we undertake our audit work to meet these responsibilities.

We comply with the statutory requirements governing audit work, in particular the:

• Audit Commission Act 1998; and 

• Code of Audit Practice for Local Government bodies. 

We, as auditors to the Council, are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the financial statements 

and reaching a conclusion on the arrangements you have put in place to secure economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in the use of your resources (the Value for Money conclusion). 

We are also required to report on the consistency of your Whole Government Accounts L-Pack with the audited 

financial statements.

Our audit does not relieve management or the Audit Committee, as those charged with governance, of their 

responsibilities.

Page 106



5

02

Independence

We have policies and procedures in place which 

are designed to ensure that we carry out our work 

with integrity, objectivity and independence. If at 

any time you have concerns or questions about 

our integrity, objectivity or independence please 

discuss these with the engagement lead.  

We are required by the Audit and Assurance 

Council (previously the Auditing Practices Board -

APB), which has issued ethical standards for 

auditors, to confirm we have complied with 

relevant ethical standards requirements regarding 

independence. This is to ensure our objectivity 

and independence is maintained.

Based on the information provided by you and our 

own internal procedures to safeguard our 

independence as auditors, we confirm that in our 

professional judgement there are no relationships 

between us and any of our related or subsidiary 

entities and you and your related entities creating 

any unacceptable threats to our independence 

within the regulatory or professional requirements 

governing us as your auditors. 

We include in Appendix 1 our analysis of the 

principal threats to our objectivity and 

independence and the safeguards we have put in 

place.

Page 107



6

03

Audit approach

We work with you to 

ensure our audit 

approach is efficient, 

effective and limits the 

impact on your staff.

Page 108



7

Audit approach

Our audit approach is designed to provide you with an audit that complies with all professional requirements. 

Our audit of the financial statements will be conducted in accordance with International Standards of Auditing (UK 

and Ireland) issued by the Audit and Assurance Council (previously the APB). Our work is focused on those 

aspects of your business which we consider to have a higher risk of material misstatement such as judgement 

and estimation, application of new accounting standards, changes of accounting policy, changes to operations or 

areas which have been found to contain material errors in the past. We raise and discuss these with you on a 

regular basis, not just at the time of the audit fieldwork. We shall expect to obtain appropriate evidence as we 

consider sufficient to enable us to draw reasonable conclusions therefrom and will use a combination of controls 

and substantive testing procedures as appropriate.

We plan our audit to have a reasonable expectation of detecting fraud where the potential effects would be 

material to the financial statements. We will consider the control procedures in place to prevent and detect fraud, 

whether there are any significant risks of fraud that may have a material impact on the financial statements and 

adapt our procedures accordingly. We also plan our audit to negate the risk of management overriding controls by 

testing year-end journal entries and the major judgements and estimates that management make.

Our audit will be planned and performed so as to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are 

free of material misstatement and give a true and fair view.

We outline the key stages of the audit in the diagram below.

��������

����������	�
��

���
��

�

����

���������������
���
�����������

���������
�����
������������������


���	��������������


�������

��������������������
������������


���������������
�������������


�
���


�������
��
�����	��
����������

��

����������������
��������

���
�

�����������

����� 

!�������

������	��������

��	�������������
����������


��������


����

�

����������

�������

��"������������

��������
��������

������������



������������
�����

�#�������������
������

�����

�

��


�#�����������������

#���������

�!�������	��������

��
���
����������
��
�������������


��������


�!��������������
��	���

������������������
�������������

�����
��������

������������������
������#��������

���	���������
��

��������
�����
�	���


������	��������


�����������
����������


��������
$�

�����������

�������%
�������$�
&!'�������
���$�

�(���

�������

�������������

�����������

�)

����������������
������*�����

Page 109



8

Audit approach

Reliance on internal audit

Where possible we will seek to utilise the work performed by internal audit to modify the nature, extent and timing 

of our audit procedures. We will meet with internal audit to discuss the progress and findings of their work prior to 

the commencement of our controls evaluation procedures.

Where we intend to rely on the work on internal audit, we will evaluate the work performed by your internal audit 

team and perform our own audit procedures to determine its adequacy for our audit. 

Reliance on experts

We plan to place reliance on the following work of experts.

Group accounts

Local authorities are required to consider interests in other entities and whether those interests might necessitate 

the production of group accounts. Although the Council has financial relationships with other related companies, 

joint ventures and joint arrangements it has determined that the consolidation of related companies would have 

no material effect on its financial performance or position. Therefore it has been concluded that it is not necessary 

to produce Group Accounts for 2012/13. This is consistent with the approach adopted in 2011/12. We will 

reassess the Council’s proposed approach to ensure this remains reasonable for 2012/13. 

Service organisations

We are required to assess whether there are any material entries  in your financial statements where the Council

is dependent on an external organisation. We call these entities service organisations. The Council has two ‘Arms 

Length Management Organisations’ (ALMOs), East Durham Homes Ltd and Dale and Valley Homes Ltd which 

are recognised as service organisations . We will substantively check  transactions for repairs and maintenance 

and supervision and management expenditure. 

Area Expert engaged by:

You Us

Asset valuation Internal valuer Audit Commission – Gerald Eve

Pension liability Actuary – Aon Hewitt Audit Commission – PwC

Financial instruments – fair value 

disclosures

Sector (Treasury Management 

Advisor) and Public Works Loan 

Board

Audit Commission – national 

consideration of the use of Sector

Page 110



9

04

Significant 

risks and key 

judgement 

areas

We plan our audit to 

focus on the risk of 

material misstatement in 

your financial 

statements.

Page 111



10

Significant risks and key judgement areas

We met with senior management as part of the audit planning process. We discussed the risks that, in 

management’s opinion, you face and considered the impact on our audit risk. Set out below are the audit risks 

and the areas of management judgement to which we will pay particular attention to reduce the risk of material 

misstatement in the financial statements.

In addition, in the table below we have considered the areas of management judgement to which we will pay 

particular attention to reduce the risk of material misstatement in the financial statements.

����������� �	
������ �������������

����������

�����������������
� ����������

���������	�
��
��	�	�
����
���
�
��������	�

���
����������	����������������
�����
����

���
�	������
�
�������	�
�������������������

���������������
�����
���
����������������	�


�������
�����
�����������
���
��	�
������	�

���������������������	��
��������	��
���
��

����������
������������������

�������������������	������
�
�������

�������������������	�������
������������������

�������������	���	����������		����	�����������

�������	�
����	����������
�	�������
�����	�����

�
����
����		�
����������
�	�������
����

���
������
�������������	�
������
�����
��
��������

������
���������	 ���������	�
	��
����������
�������
�������

������������������������
���
�����	��
		�		������

�	��
��������	� ��������	����������� 
		��
���	���������

����������������
����
�
����������������������	�
���

�����		�	�����
		�		���������	�������
������������
���
��

	�
������	�
���
��
�������	������
������������������	�����

���
������������
���

������	�����	��
�����������	�	�������
�����	�����������
��������

������� �

• �����
���������!����
����	����"�

• ���	����
�����
��������������
����
��
����������

�	���
��	"�

• ���	����
�����
�������������
������	�
�����	�������
���

��	���		���
�	
�����	"�
���

• ���	����
��������
�����������
���
����	��

������������������ ���

#�����
���
��	�
������	�����
����
����
��

���	���	�������	������	����������������������

�������	��

#���
����
����������	�����	���	�������	��

����
		��	�
�����
�������	���
�����	��!�������

	�������
������
�������
����������	 �	���
��	�

�
	��������
�������$������
���������
���
��
��


		�������	�

#�	���	���	����
�������
	�����	������
����
��

��		�
��������

����������	��		�������������
��	�
���	�������
����
���	����

������	���	��	���
��	�����������������
�
��������������
��


������	��

%��
���������������	�
��
��������
�����������������	�
��
��

������� �

• ��
��
����
�
��������������	����
		�		����

��
	��
�����		����������	����������������
���
��"�

• ���	�����
����		��	�����������������$����
��
����������

������	�������������
��������
����������
���������"�


��

• ���	����������
	��
�����		�������
���
��&	���������

�������������
���$����&	�����������
���
���
���	��
����
����

�����	������		������
���
����������������

�����		�����

Page 112



11

Significant risks and key judgement areas

(continued)

In addition, in the table below we have considered the areas of management judgement to which we will pay 

particular attention to reduce the risk of material misstatement in the financial statements.

����������� �	
������ �������������

����������

��	�������������������������

#�����������	���
�	���������
�
���������

�����	��
�
�����	����
		�������	���	������

����$�	�����%'(�
		�������	�����

#�����	�
���	���
������
�
�������������

����
������������������
����
�������	�������

���
��
����
����		�
��������

����������	��		��������������
��	��������������������
�����

�����		��������� 

• ��
��
�� �
�
��������������	����������
�
�����
�����

�����		"�
��

• �������
�����	�������	�����
���
�
�
	����������
����

	����		�������

���	�����

#�����������
���	�
�����	�
		��	������
������

��
��������������	���������������	�����
��

�����
�������
����
������������	����

�
��
����	��
������
���
����
���

#�����	�
���	���
���
��	�����
����
����
		�	�

���
		��	��
������
���������������������

�
��
����������
����	����������
��
����
��

��		�
��������

#�����	�
�	��
���	������
����
����		�
�������

�����������	���
�����������
������#�	��	�

���
�	��
����������
����
��������
��
����	�

�	�������������	�������
��
����
�����������������

�������������&	��
����
		����
	���

����������	��		��������������
��	��������������
��
����	�����

���� 

• ��
��
�� �
�
��������������	����������
��
�����

�����		"�

• 
		�		������
	��
�����		���������
		����
��
����	�������

���
���
��	�
������	��	��������������������$������)��
���

*��"�

• ��	�����
��
����������������	�
���	������������

�
��
����	����������������
	�	�
	�	���������������
���

����
���"�
���

• ��	���
��
		����
��
����	�
��������
�������
�����


��������������
�����	���	�������������
���
��	�
������	��

 ������������������

�	�
������������(����
���+,-.�������������


	���������������������������������������

�
������������
����	�����������+,-+�����

�$�����������/
�����������
������������
����	�


�����������������������������
��0����

���������
�������������������1
��+,-+����

2��������+,-+��	���������������������
����

#�����	�
���	���
��������
������
����
��

�������������
�����	��

����������	��		�������������
��	�����������������
���

���������
����	���������� 

• ��
��
����
�
��������������	����������
���

���������
����������		"�

• ����������������		�������������������������
���

���������
�������������������1
�����2��������+,-+�"�
���

��	��		�
���	�������
�������
����
���������������
�����	�

• 	��	�
����������	�������
�������
������������
�����

!��������������"�����������#���

2������+,-+3-.��������������
��������������

���
��
��������	�������4����*
	���
	������

�����������������
������4���
	����

%�����
����
�����������

)��������������$��
����������	��$����	��

������	�
���	���
������
��
�����������

�������&	�����	������������
���������������

��
�������
���
����
��
����������������	�


�����	���	���	����������
����
���������������

����������	��		��������������
��	�������������������
������

�$����	���������� 

• ��
��
�� �
�
��������������	�������
��
�����
���


���������������		�	"�

• ��
��
��������
	��
�����		�������
����
���
�������

�
��������������&	�����	������������
������"�
��

• ����������
����������������	����������
���
��	�
������	�

Page 113



12

05

Value for 

money

We conclude on the 

arrangements you have 

in place to deliver value 

for money in the use of 

your resources.

Page 114



13

Value for money

We are required to reach a conclusion on your arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 

the use of your resources. 

Our conclusion on your arrangements is based on two criteria, specified by the Audit Commission:

• securing financial resilience – focusing on whether you are managing your financial risks to secure a stable 

financial position for the foreseeable future; and

• challenging how you secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness – focusing on whether you are prioritising 

your resources within tighter budgets and the need to improve productivity and efficiency.

We have considered the risks that are relevant to our value for money conclusion and have not identified any 

significant risks that need to be addressed specifically through our work. 

However, the Council faces financial pressures from reduced funding and continues to identify plans to deliver 

future savings. The Council has identified as a key risk that slippage in delivery of the MTFP will require further 

savings, which may result in further service reductions and job losses. We will focus our work on the robustness 

of plans to make the savings required to ensure the Council has a balanced budget as noted in the Council’s 

Medium Term Financial Plan. We will also review any relevant data, such as VFM Profiles and the Council’s work 

on benchmarking.. 

Page 115



14

06

Audit timeline

We work closely with 

you to agree an audit 

timeline that enables us 

together to meet 

statutory target dates.

Page 116



15

Audit timeline and deadlines

The diagram below sets out the timing of the key phases of our audit work. We will communicate with 

management throughout the audit process to facilitate a two way process of updates and identifying issues. We 

will continue to communicate outside of these dates to ensure that all parties understand developments and 

issues as they arise and to help in providing timely and appropriate solutions.

����������	

���������
�
�����������
�
�����
��� �
�
	�
��
����

���
��	

����������
�
����������
������
�����	���������

������������
���	
	��
�
���������� 

�������

�!��
��	����"�
#��������������
	��
���"$�

�%
�����������
��	�
���������&#����
'���
���
(��$

�)��������"�#�����*+��
$�
�����
�����������
����
	
���

�)������
,�
������
�
��������������
	
����
#+��
$

��������

�����������
	
������
����������������"����
���
������,��
�����
 ��+��


���
�����"-���� +�����

�����.
��
	�
�

�/�
�����
�	

�����
������������	��
�����
�
������.
��
	�
�

��	
����

�(

�������������,
�
�������������������
����
	
���

�!���
��������0���
����1�
2�(����������������
34����������


�/
��������	��
��������
�
������

�!���
��������������
5
��
�

������

Page 117



16

07

Fees for audit 

and other 

services

The Audit Commission 

has established a scale 

audit fee for our work. 

We will keep you 

informed if we need to 

make any changes.

Page 118



17

Fees for audit and other services

Audit fees

As communicated to you in our letter dated 5 October 2012, the Audit Commission has set a scale fee of 

£333,180. Our audit fees for the audit are outlined in the table below:

Non-audit services

We do not currently plan any non-audit services, and no audit or non-audit services are currently provided to the 

Council by Mazars LLP associated entities.

���� ������� $%�$&�' ������
 $%��&�$����	��

����� 5...�-6, 777�.,,

��������
���� 57.�+,, 58,�,,,

Page 119



18

08

Your audit 

team

We know that you value 

a team who understands 

the environment you 

operate in, understands 

your systems and 

controls and has a good 

working relationship with 

your staff and internal 

auditors. Your team 

meets all these criteria.

Page 120



19

Your audit team

Name and contact Role Experience and responsibilities

Cameron Waddell

Tel: 0191 383 6314

Email: 

cameron.waddell@mazars.co.uk

Engagement Lead Cameron has over 20 years external audit experience 

of a wide range of public sector bodies. He is 

responsible for the overall delivery of the audit, 

including the quality of audit reports. Cameron will sign 

the auditor’s report. 

Steve Nicklin

Tel: 0191 383 6300

Email: 

steve.nicklin@mazars.co.uk

Independent Director Steve has over 30 years external audit experience of a 

wide range of public sector bodies. He is responsible for 

the independent review of the audit.

Catherine Banks

Tel: 0191 383 6410

Email: 

catherine.banks@mazars.co.uk

Engagement Manager Catherine has managed the Durham County Council 

audit for a number of years.  She will manage and 

coordinate the different parts of the audit and be the 

key point of contact. 

Campbell Dearden

Tel: 0191 383 6410

Email: 

campbell.dearden@mazars.co.uk

Team Leader Campbell is an experienced team leader having worked 

on both local government and NHS audits.  

Page 121



20

09

Appendices

A – Independence

B – Materiality

C – Required 

communication

Page 122



0

1

21

Appendix A - Independence

Independence is an on-going consideration and as such we monitor it throughout the audit process.  The principal 

types of threats to the auditor's objectivity and independence are:

• self-interest threat - exists when the auditor has financial or other interests which might cause the auditor to be 

reluctant to take actions that would be adverse to the interests of the audit firm or any individual in a position to 

influence the conduct or outcome of the audit;

• self-review threat - exists when the results of a non-audit service performed by the engagement team or by 

others within the audit firm are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in the financial statements;

• management threat - exists when the audit firm undertakes work that involves making judgments and taking 

decisions that are properly the responsibility of management;

• advocacy threat - exists when the audit firm undertakes work that involves acting as an advocate for an audited 

entity and supporting a position taken by management in an adversarial context;

• familiarity (or trust) threat – exists when the auditors are predisposed to accept or are insufficiently questioning of 

the client’s point of view (for example, where they develop close personal relationships with client personnel 

through long association with the client); and

• intimidation threat – exists when the auditor’s conduct is influenced by fear or threats (for example, when they 

encounter an aggressive and dominating individual).

Prior to the provision of any non-audit services the engagement partner will undertake appropriate procedures to 

consider and fully assess the impact that providing the service may have on our auditor independence.

The following principal threat to our independence and associated safeguards have been identified: 

�	� ��������
������� �����	��


A member of the wider audit team has

declared a close personal relationship

with an officer in the Revenues and

Benefits team of the Council.

Self-interest If this member of the team is used on the
Durham County Council audit, then appropriate
safeguards will be put in place

Page 123



0

1

22

Appendix B - Materiality

'Materiality' is an expression of the relative significance or importance of a particular matter in the context of financial 

statements as a whole. 

Misstatements in financial statements are considered to be material if they, individually or in aggregate, could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. 

Judgements on materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances and are affected by the size and nature of 

a misstatement, or a combination of both. Judgements about materiality are based on consideration of the common 

financial information needs of users as a group and not on specific individual users.

The assessment of what is material is a matter of professional judgement and is affected by our perception of the 

financial information needs of the users of the financial statements. It is reasonable for us to assume that users:

• have a reasonable knowledge of business, economic activities and accounts; 

• have a willingness to study the information in the financial statements with reasonable diligence;

• understand that financial statements are prepared, presented and audited to levels of materiality;

• recognise the uncertainties inherent in the measurement of amounts based on the use of estimates, judgement 

and the consideration of future events; and

• will make reasonable economic decisions on the basis of the information in the financial statements.

We will consider materiality whilst planning and performing our audit. 

Whilst planning, we will make judgements about the size of misstatements which we will consider to be material and 

which will provide a basis for determining the nature, timing and extent of risk assessment procedures, identifying 

and assessing the risk of material misstatement and determining the nature, timing and extent of further audit 

procedures. 

The materiality determined at the planning stage does not necessarily establish an amount below which uncorrected 

misstatements, either individually or in aggregate, will be considered as immaterial. 

We will revise materiality for the financial statements as our audit progresses should we become aware of 

information that would have caused us to determine a different amount had we been aware of that information at the 

planning stage.

We will include in our Audit Completion Report all unadjusted errors we have identified above those which are 

clearly trivial.

Page 124



0

1

23

Appendix C – Required 
communication
ISA 260 ‘Communication with Those Charged with Governance’ and ISA 265 ‘Communicating Deficiencies In 

Internal Control To Those Charged With Governance And Management’ require the auditor to communicate a 

number of matters with those charged with governance. These matters are set out below along with our proposed 

approach. 

!�(	���
 ����	�������� )������
�����������������	������������*�	

Respective responsibilities of auditor and those 
charged with governance.

Our responsibility for performing the audit in 
accordance with ISAs (UK and Ireland), which is 
directed towards forming and expressing an opinion 
on the financial statements.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve
management or those charged with governance of
their responsibilities.

Section 3 of this report and the Audit Commission’s
Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and of Audited
Bodies.

Communication of the planned scope and timing of
the audit.

Matters communicated include:

� significant audit risks and how we will address
them;

� our approach to internal control relevant to the
audit;

� the application of the concept of materiality in
the context of an audit;

� our use of the work of internal audit;
� your approach to internal control and how you

oversee the effectiveness of internal control
procedures;

� the attitude, awareness and action of those
charged with governance concerning the
detection or possibility of fraud; and

� your response to new accounting standards,
corporate governance practices and related
matters.

Included in this document.

These matters were discussed at the planning meeting
and responses incorporated into this document as
appropriate.

Our views on significant qualitative aspects of
accounting practices including accounting policies,
accounting estimates and financial statement
disclosures.

When applicable, why we consider a significant
accounting practice not to be appropriate to the
entity.

We will communicate these in our Audit Completion
Report, orally as they arise and at the Audit Committee.

Depending on the extent of the issue, either orally at
the Audit Committee, in our Audit Completion Report or
immediately we become aware of the issue.

Page 125



0

1

24

Appendix C – Required 
communication (continued)
ISA 260 ‘Communication with Those Charged with Governance’ and ISA 265 ‘Communicating Deficiencies In 

Internal Control To Those Charged With Governance And Management’ require the auditor to communicate a 

number of matters with those charged with governance. These matters are set out below along with our proposed 

approach. 

!�(	���
 ����	�������� )������
�����������������	������������*�	

Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the
audit.

Significant difficulties encountered during the audit
may include such matters as:

� Significant delays in management providing
required information;

� An unnecessarily brief time within which to
complete the audit;

� Extensive unexpected effort required to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence;

� The unavailability of expected information;
� Restrictions imposed on the auditor by

management; and
� Management’s unwillingness to make or

extend its assessment of the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

We will communicate these in our Audit Completion
Report, orally as they arise and at the Audit Committee
meeting.

Details of significant matters discussed with, or
subject to correspondence with management.

We will communicate these in our Audit Completion
Report, orally as they arise and at the Audit Committee
meeting.

Details of written representations we require for our
audit.

We will communicate this in our Audit Completion
Report.

Any other matters which we consider to be significant
to the oversight of the financial reporting process.

Other significant matters arising from the audit that
are directly relevant to those charged with
governance in overseeing the financial reporting
process may include such matters as material
misstatements of fact or material inconsistencies in
information accompanying the audited financial
statements that have been corrected.

As any matters arise which we consider should be
communicated to you and within the Audit Completion
Report.

Page 126



0

1

25

Appendix C – Required 
communication (continued)
ISA 260 ‘Communication with Those Charged with Governance’ and ISA 265 ‘Communicating Deficiencies In 

Internal Control To Those Charged With Governance And Management’ require the auditor to communicate a 

number of matters with those charged with governance. These matters are set out below along with our proposed 

approach. 

!�(	���
 ����	�������� )������
�����������������	������������*�	

Statement that the engagement team and the firm
have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence.

Written disclosure of relationships which have a
bearing on our independence and safeguards we
have put in place, details of non audit services
provided and written confirmation of our
independence.

Section 4 and Appendix 1 of this document and as any
new matters arise.

Form, timing and general content of communications. We will issue our Audit Completion Report which will
conclude upon our audit and the issues presented in
this document. Should you require us to communicate
in a different way please inform us of your preferred
method.

Our evaluation of the adequacy of the communication
process between ourselves and those charged with
governance. This may include:

• observations on appropriateness and timing of
action taken by you in response to matters we
have raised;

• the openness of your communication with us

• your willingness and capacity to meet with us
without management being present;

• your opportunity to fully comprehend matters we
have raised

• the extent to which you probe issues raised and
our recommendations;

• any communications we have had in establishing
with you the form, timing and general content of
communications; and

• your awareness of how our discussions impact on
your governance and management responsibilities
and whether your communication with us meets
legal and regulatory requirements.

Should we consider it necessary to raise any of these
issues, we will consider the most appropriate method
and the most appropriate person. The nature of our
observation will determine the method and timing of our
communication.

We may consider that any inadequacy in the
communication process is indicative of an
unsatisfactory control environment and increase our
assessment of audit risk. We will also consider whether
we need to reassess our audit strategy. We will discuss
with you any additional procedures we consider
necessary as a result of these observations.

If we consider the communication between you and us
to be inadequate and we are unable to agree additional
procedures which we consider necessary, we may
modify our audit opinion, obtain legal advice, discuss
with other third parties as we consider appropriate or
may, if permitted under applicable law or regulation,
withdraw from the engagement.

Page 127



0

1

26

Appendix C – Required 
communication
ISA 260 ‘Communication with Those Charged with Governance’ and ISA 265 ‘Communicating Deficiencies In 

Internal Control To Those Charged With Governance And Management’ require the auditor to communicate a 

number of matters with those charged with governance. These matters are set out below along with our proposed 

approach.

!�(	���
 ����	�������� )������
�����������������	������������*�	

Any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
have identified during the audit.

We will communicate these to you in our Audit
Completion Report. Should it be appropriate, we will
discuss significant deficiencies with management as
they arise.

Our written communication will include a description of
the deficiencies with sufficient explanation for you to
understand the context of the deficiency and an
explanation of the potential effects.

We are required to communicate all significant
deficiencies to you, irrespective of whether you are
already aware of them or have chosen not to take
remedial action for cost or other reasons. We will
continue to communicate deficiencies previously
communicated to you until remedial action has been
taken. We will consider whether failure to act, or lack of
rational explanation itself represents a significant
deficiency.

Other deficiencies in internal control that we have
identified during the audit.

We will consider whether other deficiencies should be
reported to you, taking into account the likelihood and
potential magnitude of misstatements that may arise.
We will also determine whether we report these to you
orally or in writing.

Page 128



Audit 2012/13

February 2013

Durham County Council 

Pension Fund – Audit Strategy 

Memorandum 2012/13 -

DRAFTJanuary 2013

Agenda Item 11

Page 129



Contents

2

Our reports are prepared in the context of the Audit Commission’s ‘Statement of 

responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies’. Reports and letters prepared by 

appointed auditors and addressed to members or officers are prepared for the 

sole use of the Authority and we take no responsibility to any member or officer in 

their individual capacity or to any third party. 

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, the international advisory and accountancy 

organisation. Mazars LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England 

with registered number OC308299.

Purpose and background

Independence

Audit approach

Significant risks and key judgements

Value for money

Audit timeline

Fees for audit and other services

Your audit team

Appendices

p3

p5

p6

p9

p12

p14

p16

p18 

p20

Page 130



3

01

Purpose and 

background

This document 

communicates to you the 

scope of our audit, the 

risks we have identified 

and the procedures we 

will perform to deliver the 

audit.

Page 131



4

Purpose and background

Purpose of this document

This document sets out our audit plan in respect of the external audit of Durham County Council Pension Fund 

(the Fund) for the year ending 31 March 2013. This document forms the basis for discussion at the Audit 

Committee meeting on 4 April. 

The Plan sets out our proposed audit approach and is prepared to assist you in fulfilling your governance 

responsibilities. The responsibilities of those charged with governance are defined as to oversee the strategic 

direction of the entity and obligations related to the accountability of the entity, including overseeing the financial 

reporting process.

Our communication with you is important in:

• reaching a mutual understanding of the scope of the audit and the responsibilities of the auditor and those 

charged with governance;

• sharing information to assist both the auditor and those charged with governance to fulfil their respective 

responsibilities;

• providing to those charged with governance constructive observations arising from the audit process; and

• ensuring as part of the two-way communication process that we, as external auditors, gain an understanding 

of the attitude and views of those charged with governance of the internal and external operational, financial, 

compliance and other risks facing the Fund which might affect the audit, including the likelihood of those risks 

materialising and how they are monitored and managed.

Scope of engagement

We are appointed to perform the external audit of Durham County Council Pension Fund for the year to 31 March 

2013. The scope of our engagement is laid out in the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice for Local 

Government bodies.

Respective responsibilities

The Audit Commission’s Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and of Audited Bodies sets out our respective 

responsibilities as the auditor and the audited body. The Audit Commission has issued a copy of the Statement to 

you. 

The Statement summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body begin and end 

and we undertake our audit work to meet these responsibilities.

We comply with the statutory requirements governing audit work, in particular the:

• Audit Commission Act 1998; and 

• Code of Audit Practice for Local Government bodies. 

We, as auditors to the Fund, are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the financial statements.

Our audit does not relieve management or the Audit Committee, as those charged with governance, of their 

responsibilities.

Page 132



5

02

Independence

We have policies and procedures in place which 

are designed to ensure that we carry out our work 

with integrity, objectivity and independence. If at 

any time you have concerns or questions about 

our integrity, objectivity or independence please 

discuss these with the engagement lead.  

We are required by the Audit and Assurance 

Council (previously the Auditing Practices Board -

APB), which has issued ethical standards for 

auditors, to confirm we have complied with 

relevant ethical standards requirements regarding 

independence. This is to ensure our objectivity 

and independence is maintained.

Based on the information provided by you and our 

own internal procedures to safeguard our 

independence as auditors, we confirm that in our 

professional judgement there are no relationships 

between us and any of our related or subsidiary 

entities and you and your related entities creating 

any unacceptable threats to our independence 

within the regulatory or professional requirements 

governing us as your auditors. 

We include in Appendix 1 our analysis of the 

principal threats to our objectivity and 

independence and the safeguards we have put in 

place.

Page 133



6

03

Audit approach

We work with you to 

ensure our audit 

approach is efficient, 

effective and limits the 

impact on your staff.

Page 134



7

Audit approach

Our audit approach is designed to provide you with an audit that complies with all professional requirements. 

Our audit of the financial statements will be conducted in accordance with International Standards of Auditing (UK 

and Ireland) issued by the Audit and Assurance Council (previously the APB). Our work is focused on those 

aspects of your business which we consider to have a higher risk of material misstatement such as judgement 

and estimation, application of new accounting standards, changes of accounting policy, changes to operations or 

areas which have been found to contain material errors in the past. We raise and discuss these with you on a 

regular basis, not just at the time of the audit fieldwork. We shall expect to obtain appropriate evidence as we 

consider sufficient to enable us to draw reasonable conclusions therefrom and will use a combination of controls 

and substantive testing procedures as appropriate.

We plan our audit to have a reasonable expectation of detecting fraud where the potential effects would be 

material to the financial statements. We will consider the control procedures in place to prevent and detect fraud, 

whether there are any significant risks of fraud that may have a material impact on the financial statements and 

adapt our procedures accordingly. We also plan our audit to negate the risk of management overriding controls by 

testing year-end journal entries and the major judgements and estimates that management make.

Our audit will be planned and performed so as to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are 

free of material misstatement and give a true and fair view.

We outline the key stages of the audit in the diagram below.

��������

����������	�
��

���
��

�

����

����������
�����
���
�����������
���������
�����
�����������
�������


���	��������������

�������

����������
��������������
��������


���������������
�������������

�
���


�������
��
�����	��
����������
��

���������
������������
���

���
��������
����
����� 

!�������

������	��������
��	�������������
����������

��������


����

�

����
������
�������

��"������������

��������
��������
������������



������������
�����

�#�������������
������

�����
�

��


�#���������
��������

#���������

�!�������	��������
��
���
����
������
�����
����������

��������


�!��������������
��	���

����������
������������������
���
�����
��������

������������������
������#��������

���	���������
��
��������
�����
�	���


������	��������

�����������
����������

��������


�$

���������
�������������
%�����

Page 135



8

Audit approach

Reliance on internal audit

Where possible we will seek to utilise the work performed by internal audit to modify the nature, extent and timing 

of our audit procedures. We will meet with internal audit to discuss the progress and findings of their work prior to 

the commencement of our controls evaluation procedures.

Where we intend to rely on the work on internal audit, we will evaluate the work performed by your internal audit 

team and perform our own audit procedures to determine its adequacy for our audit. 

Reliance on experts

We plan to place reliance on the following work of experts.

Service organisations

We are required to assess whether there are any material entries in your financial statements where the Fund is 

dependent on an external organisation. We call these entities service organisations. The Fund has two categories 

of service organisation, investment managers and global custodian. The global custodian is JP Morgan and the 

investment managers who have provided services during the year are:

AllianceBernstein

Barings Asset Management

BlackRock

CBRE

Edinburgh Partners

Royal London Asset Management

We will substantively test transactions undertaken by the service organisations during the year, and the valuations 

applied to investments at the year end.

Area Expert engaged by:

You Us

Actuarial Present Value of Future 

Retirement Benefits.

Actuary – Aon Hewitt Audit Commission – PwC

Nature and extent of risk arising 

from financial instruments

P-Solve None.

Page 136



9

04

Significant 

risks and key 

judgement 

areas

We plan our audit to 

focus on the risk of 

material misstatement in 

your financial 

statements.

Page 137



10

Significant risks and key judgement areas

We met with senior management as part of the audit planning process. We discussed the risks that, in 

management’s opinion, you face and considered the impact on our audit risk. Set out below are the audit risks 

and the areas of management judgement to which we will pay particular attention to reduce the risk of material 

misstatement in the financial statements.

In addition, in the table below we have considered the areas of management judgement to which we will pay 

particular attention to reduce the risk of material misstatement in the financial statements.

����������� �	
������ �������������

����������

�����������������
� ����������

���������
�������
�
����������������������
�

��������&�����
�������������������������'�

�����
���������������(
���������������������

������������������������������������������
�

���������������������������������
��������
�

����	����������������
�������������
���������

�����������������������	���)�

������������	��������
���������������

�	�����������������
������	�������������������

������'�������
��
���	�������

����
�����������

�������
������
�������������
�������������
����

�����������

��������������
����������)�

�����	�������������������
�������������	������������

����������������
 ���������
��
���������������������������'�

����������������������������������
��

�

����)�

�
������������
' ��������
���������� �

������
����������

������#����������������������������������������
�����

�����

�
������

�

����������
���������������������������


��������
����������������
���������������������'���
�����

�������������������)

*�����
�����
���������������
�
�������������
�������������������

�������+�

• ���������������,���������
����-�

• ���
����������������	���������������������������

�
������
-�

• ���
����������������	��������������
�������
�����������

��
���

�����
������
-�����

• ���
�����������������������������������
)�

���	���������	��	���
����������

.��������	����������	�
�����
 �������/���

�

��
�0����������������
���&������

��	�
�����
�'�����������	�����������������������

1233���42)56�����������

��
 ��
����74�8�����

2942)�

.���	����
�������
����	�
�����
���������

&������ ����������	������������
��������
�����

�����
�����	�
�����
)�.���	����
��
����������

�������
��������
�����	�������������

�������
���
����������������������

�
������
�����,��������
���	��	���������

������
)�

.��
���
���
�������������
�����
�������������

��

��������)�

������� ��
��

����������������
���	��	�����������	���������

�����&��������	�
�����
)��������+

• �	�������������������������
��	�������	���������

�����

-

!�����	�
�����
������������������������
�����������������

��������������������������
������'��������+

• ��������������
�������������������������
���������������

��
������:
�������-�����

• ����� ��������������������������	������)

!�����	�
�����
���������������������;���
�����'���������

�������������������������������������
������'��������+

• ��������������������������������������������������
������1 �

������
�������������������
������1 '������������������

������
�
�����
���
������������������������������

&���������������
������������	�
�������������
-

• ���������������������������������������������##�!-����

• ����� ��������������������������	������)

Page 138



11

05

Audit timeline

We work closely with 

you to agree an audit 

timeline that enables us 

together to meet 

statutory target dates.

Page 139



12

Audit timeline and deadlines

The diagram below sets out the timing of the key phases of our audit work. We will communicate with 

management throughout the audit process to facilitate a two way process of updates and identifying issues. We 

will continue to communicate outside of these dates to ensure that all parties understand developments and 

issues as they arise and to help in providing timely and appropriate solutions.

����������	

���������
�
�����������
�
�����
��� �
�
	�
��
����

���
��	

����������
�
����������
������
�����	���������

������������
���	
	��
�
���������� 

�������

�!��
��	����"�
#��������������
	��
���"$�

�%
�����������
��	�
���������&#����
'���
���
(��$

�)��������"�#�����*+��
$�
�����
�����������
����
	
���

�)������
,�
������
�
��������������
	
����
#+��
$

��������

�����������
	
������
����������������"����
���
������,��
�����
 ��+��


���
�����"-���� +�����

�����������

�.�
�����
�	

�����
������������	��
�����
�
������/
��
	�
�

��	
����

�(

�������������,
�
�������������������
����
	
���

�!���
��������0���
����1�

�.
��������	��
��������
�
������

�!���
��������������
2
��
�

������

Page 140



13

06

Fees for audit 

and other 

services

The Audit Commission 

has established a scale 

audit fee for our work. 

We will keep you 

informed if we need to 

make any changes.

Page 141



14

Fees for audit and other services

Audit fees

As communicated to you in our letter dated  5 October 2012, the Audit Commission has set a scale fee of 

£25,919. Our audit fee for Durham County Council Pension Fund is in line with this scale fee of £25,919 (2011/12 

£42,551).

Non-audit services

We do not currently plan any non-audit services, and no audit or non-audit services are currently provided to the 

Fund by Mazars LLP associated entities.

Page 142



15

07

Your audit 

team

We know that you value 

a team who understands 

the environment you 

operate in, understands 

your systems and 

controls and has a good 

working relationship with 

your staff and internal 

auditors. Your team 

meets all these criteria.

Page 143



16

Your audit team

Name and contact Role Experience and responsibilities

Cameron Waddell

Tel: 0191 383 6314

Email: 

cameron.waddell@mazars.co.uk

Engagement Lead Cameron has over 20 years external audit experience 

of a wide range of public sector bodies. He is 

responsible for the overall delivery of the audit, 

including the quality of audit reports. Cameron will sign 

the auditor’s report. 

Alistair Fraser

Tel: 020 7063 4272

Email: 

Alistair.fraser@mazars.co.uk

Independent Partner Alistair has over 25 years external audit experience of 

a wide range of bodies. He is responsible for the 

independent review of the audit.

Catherine Banks

Tel: 0191 383 6410

Email: 

catherine.banks@mazars.co.uk

Engagement Manager Catherine has managed the Durham County Council 

Pension Fund audit for a number of years.  She will 

manage and coordinate the different parts of the audit 

and be the key point of contact. 

Sharon Liddle

Tel: 0191 383 6410

Email: sharon.liddle@mazars.co.uk

Team Leader Sharon is an experienced team leader having worked 

on pension fund audits for a number of years.  

Page 144



17

08

Appendices

A – Independence

B – Materiality

C – Required 

communication

Page 145



0

1

18

Appendix A - Independence

Independence is an on-going consideration and as such we monitor it throughout the audit process.  The principal 

types of threats to the auditor's objectivity and independence are:

• self-interest threat - exists when the auditor has financial or other interests which might cause the auditor to be 

reluctant to take actions that would be adverse to the interests of the audit firm or any individual in a position to 

influence the conduct or outcome of the audit;

• self-review threat - exists when the results of a non-audit service performed by the engagement team or by 

others within the audit firm are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in the financial statements;

• management threat - exists when the audit firm undertakes work that involves making judgments and taking 

decisions that are properly the responsibility of management;

• advocacy threat - exists when the audit firm undertakes work that involves acting as an advocate for an audited 

entity and supporting a position taken by management in an adversarial context;

• familiarity (or trust) threat – exists when the auditors are predisposed to accept or are insufficiently questioning of 

the client’s point of view (for example, where they develop close personal relationships with client personnel 

through long association with the client); and

• intimidation threat – exists when the auditor’s conduct is influenced by fear or threats (for example, when they 

encounter an aggressive and dominating individual).

Prior to the provision of any non-audit services the engagement partner will undertake appropriate procedures to 

consider and fully assess the impact that providing the service may have on our auditor independence.

No principal threats to our independence have been identified: 

Page 146



0

1

19

Appendix B - Materiality

'Materiality' is an expression of the relative significance or importance of a particular matter in the context of financial 

statements as a whole. 

Misstatements in financial statements are considered to be material if they, individually or in aggregate, could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. 

Judgements on materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances and are affected by the size and nature of 

a misstatement, or a combination of both. Judgements about materiality are based on consideration of the common 

financial information needs of users as a group and not on specific individual users.

The assessment of what is material is a matter of professional judgement and is affected by our perception of the 

financial information needs of the users of the financial statements. It is reasonable for us to assume that users:

• have a reasonable knowledge of business, economic activities and accounts; 

• have a willingness to study the information in the financial statements with reasonable diligence;

• understand that financial statements are prepared, presented and audited to levels of materiality;

• recognise the uncertainties inherent in the measurement of amounts based on the use of estimates, judgement 

and the consideration of future events; and

• will make reasonable economic decisions on the basis of the information in the financial statements.

We will consider materiality whilst planning and performing our audit. 

Whilst planning, we will make judgements about the size of misstatements which we will consider to be material and 

which will provide a basis for determining the nature, timing and extent of risk assessment procedures, identifying 

and assessing the risk of material misstatement and determining the nature, timing and extent of further audit 

procedures. 

The materiality determined at the planning stage does not necessarily establish an amount below which uncorrected 

misstatements, either individually or in aggregate, will be considered as immaterial. 

We will revise materiality for the financial statements as our audit progresses should we become aware of 

information that would have caused us to determine a different amount had we been aware of that information at the 

planning stage.

We will include in our Audit Completion Report all unadjusted errors we have identified above those which are 

clearly trivial.

Page 147



0

1

20

Appendix C – Required 
communication
ISA 260 ‘Communication with Those Charged with Governance’ and ISA 265 ‘Communicating Deficiencies In 

Internal Control To Those Charged With Governance And Management’ require the auditor to communicate a 

number of matters with those charged with governance. These matters are set out below along with our proposed 

approach. 

���	���
 ����	�������� �������
�����������������	��������������	

Respective responsibilities of auditor and those 
charged with governance.

Our responsibility for performing the audit in 
accordance with ISAs (UK and Ireland), which is 
directed towards forming and expressing an opinion 
on the financial statements.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve
management or those charged with governance of
their responsibilities.

Section 3 of this report and the Audit Commission’s
Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and of Audited
Bodies.

Communication of the planned scope and timing of
the audit.

Matters communicated include:

� significant audit risks and how we will address
them;

� our approach to internal control relevant to the
audit;

� the application of the concept of materiality in
the context of an audit;

� our use of the work of internal audit;
� your approach to internal control and how you

oversee the effectiveness of internal control
procedures;

� the attitude, awareness and action of those
charged with governance concerning the
detection or possibility of fraud; and

� your response to new accounting standards,
corporate governance practices and related
matters.

Included in this document.

These matters were discussed at the planning meeting
and responses incorporated into this document as
appropriate.

Our views on significant qualitative aspects of
accounting practices including accounting policies,
accounting estimates and financial statement
disclosures.

When applicable, why we consider a significant
accounting practice not to be appropriate to the
entity.

We will communicate these in our Audit Completion
Report, orally as they arise and at the Audit Committee.

Depending on the extent of the issue, either orally at
the Audit Committee, in our Audit Completion Report or
immediately we become aware of the issue.

Page 148



0

1

21

Appendix C – Required 
communication (continued)
ISA 260 ‘Communication with Those Charged with Governance’ and ISA 265 ‘Communicating Deficiencies In 

Internal Control To Those Charged With Governance And Management’ require the auditor to communicate a 

number of matters with those charged with governance. These matters are set out below along with our proposed 

approach. 

���	���
 ����	�������� �������
�����������������	��������������	

Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the
audit.

Significant difficulties encountered during the audit
may include such matters as:

� Significant delays in management providing
required information;

� An unnecessarily brief time within which to
complete the audit;

� Extensive unexpected effort required to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence;

� The unavailability of expected information;
� Restrictions imposed on the auditor by

management; and
� Management’s unwillingness to make or

extend its assessment of the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

We will communicate these in our Audit Completion
Report, orally as they arise and at the Audit Committee
meeting.

Details of significant matters discussed with, or
subject to correspondence with management.

We will communicate these in our Audit Completion
Report, orally as they arise and at the Audit Committee
meeting.

Details of written representations we require for our
audit.

We will communicate this in our Audit Completion
Report.

Any other matters which we consider to be significant
to the oversight of the financial reporting process.

Other significant matters arising from the audit that
are directly relevant to those charged with
governance in overseeing the financial reporting
process may include such matters as material
misstatements of fact or material inconsistencies in
information accompanying the audited financial
statements that have been corrected.

As any matters arise which we consider should be
communicated to you and within the Audit Completion
Report.

Page 149



0

1

22

Appendix C – Required 
communication (continued)
ISA 260 ‘Communication with Those Charged with Governance’ and ISA 265 ‘Communicating Deficiencies In 

Internal Control To Those Charged With Governance And Management’ require the auditor to communicate a 

number of matters with those charged with governance. These matters are set out below along with our proposed 

approach. 

���	���
 ����	�������� �������
�����������������	��������������	

Statement that the engagement team and the firm
have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence.

Written disclosure of relationships which have a
bearing on our independence and safeguards we
have put in place, details of non audit services
provided and written confirmation of our
independence.

Section 4 and Appendix 1 of this document and as any
new matters arise.

Form, timing and general content of communications. We will issue our Audit Completion Report which will
conclude upon our audit and the issues presented in
this document. Should you require us to communicate
in a different way please inform us of your preferred
method.

Our evaluation of the adequacy of the communication
process between ourselves and those charged with
governance. This may include:

• observations on appropriateness and timing of
action taken by you in response to matters we
have raised;

• the openness of your communication with us

• your willingness and capacity to meet with us
without management being present;

• your opportunity to fully comprehend matters we
have raised

• the extent to which you probe issues raised and
our recommendations;

• any communications we have had in establishing
with you the form, timing and general content of
communications; and

• your awareness of how our discussions impact on
your governance and management responsibilities
and whether your communication with us meets
legal and regulatory requirements.

Should we consider it necessary to raise any of these
issues, we will consider the most appropriate method
and the most appropriate person. The nature of our
observation will determine the method and timing of our
communication.

We may consider that any inadequacy in the
communication process is indicative of an
unsatisfactory control environment and increase our
assessment of audit risk. We will also consider whether
we need to reassess our audit strategy. We will discuss
with you any additional procedures we consider
necessary as a result of these observations.

If we consider the communication between you and us
to be inadequate and we are unable to agree additional
procedures which we consider necessary, we may
modify our audit opinion, obtain legal advice, discuss
with other third parties as we consider appropriate or
may, if permitted under applicable law or regulation,
withdraw from the engagement.

Page 150



0

1

23

Appendix C – Required 
communication
ISA 260 ‘Communication with Those Charged with Governance’ and ISA 265 ‘Communicating Deficiencies In 

Internal Control To Those Charged With Governance And Management’ require the auditor to communicate a 

number of matters with those charged with governance. These matters are set out below along with our proposed 

approach.

���	���
 ����	�������� �������
�����������������	��������������	

Any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
have identified during the audit.

We will communicate these to you in our Audit
Completion Report. Should it be appropriate, we will
discuss significant deficiencies with management as
they arise.

Our written communication will include a description of
the deficiencies with sufficient explanation for you to
understand the context of the deficiency and an
explanation of the potential effects.

We are required to communicate all significant
deficiencies to you, irrespective of whether you are
already aware of them or have chosen not to take
remedial action for cost or other reasons. We will
continue to communicate deficiencies previously
communicated to you until remedial action has been
taken. We will consider whether failure to act, or lack of
rational explanation itself represents a significant
deficiency.

Other deficiencies in internal control that we have
identified during the audit.

We will consider whether other deficiencies should be
reported to you, taking into account the likelihood and
potential magnitude of misstatements that may arise.
We will also determine whether we report these to you
orally or in writing.

Page 151



Page 152

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 
Audit Committee 
 

4 April 2013 
 

Pension Fund Committee - Terms of 
Reference 
 

 

Don McLure, Corporate Director Resources 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1 To inform Members of the operational terms of reference for the 

Pension Fund Committee. 
 
Background 
 
2 An Internal Audit report considering the Governance and Funding of 

the Pension Fund was presented to the Pension Fund Committee on 6 
December 2011 by the Internal Auditor.  This report was to provide 
assurance over the governance arrangements in place for the Pension 
Fund.   
 

3 The report gave the committee only limited assurance. 
 

4 The report recommended that a review should take place to clarify that 
the responsibilities of the Pension Fund Committee were clearly 
defined and understood. 
 

5 The audit approach involved reviewing documentation provided by the 
Fund, as well as interviews with County Council officers and members 
of the Pension Fund Committee. 
 

6 The establishment of clear Terms of Reference for the Committee was 
a recommendation of the report and this was considered to be 
necessary as a precursor to the other recommendations of the Internal 
Auditor’s report being implemented. 
 

Terms of Reference 
 
7 The Pension Fund Committee has responsibility delegated from the 

Council to discharge the powers and duties arising from Section 7 of 
the Superannuation Act 1972 and Regulations made following from 
this, including: 

 

• approval of applications from bodies seeking admission to the 
Local Government Pension Scheme; 

 

Agenda Item 12

Page 153



 

• appointment of external investment managers and advisers. 
 

8 No changes were suggested to be made to this delegation. 
 

9 A draft ‘Terms of Reference’ was drawn up for the Committee to 
consider, but before formally agreeing to the Terms of Reference, a 
workshop was held on 6 February 2013 when the proposed Terms of 
Reference were discussed in detail by the Committee.   
 

10 At this workshop the information requirements of members were 
considered and documented in the Terms of Reference to ensure that 
Members are able gain assurance that the functions of the committee 
are being addressed. 
 

11 Following discussions at the workshop, amendments were made to the 
draft Terms of Reference presented to the Pension Fund Committee in 
December.   
 

12 The revised Terms of Reference agreed by the Pension Fund 
Committee at its meeting on 7 March 2013 are attached at Appendix 2.  
The amendments made following the workshop have been shaded in 
the Appendix. 
 

13 The Operational Terms of Reference attached provide clarity to the 
members of the Pension Fund Committee in a number of areas: 
 
• High level objective of the Committee 

• Authority of the Committee 

• Composition of the Committee 

• Detailed Terms of Reference to achieve the High Level 
Objective 

• Meetings 

• Programme of work 

• Performance and Review 
 
14 They will determine the future programme of work of the committee 

and following discussions, the frequency of reporting on the individual 
term of reference has been included. 
 

15 It was agreed that the Terms of Reference are to be reviewed at least 
annually to ensure that they include any changes to items described in 
paragraph 13. 
 

Impact on Audit Committee 
 
16 The Pension Fund Accounts are included within the County Council’s 

Statement of Accounts, the approval of which is the responsibility of the 
Audit Committee. 
 

17 However, the Terms of Reference set out the responsibilities of the 
Pension Fund Committee to gain assurance that the governance 

Page 154



 

arrangements are in place to produce the Accounting Statements.  
These are as follows: 
 

• To be responsible for governance arrangements including 
regulatory compliance and implementation of audit 
recommendations – Term of Reference (TOR) 5 

 
• To agree an accounting policy for the Fund consistent with IFRS 

and relevant authoritative guidance in order to prepare and 
publish a Pension Fund Annual Report including an abstract of 
accounts – TOR 16 

 

• To review the Annual Report and Accounts of the Pension Fund 
and report its findings to the Audit Committee, where the 
Accounts are approved – TOR 17 
 

 
Conclusion 
 
18 Members are asked to note the Terms of Reference of the Pension 

Fund Committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background papers 
 
(a) Pension Fund Committee – 6 December 2011 – Internal Audit 

Progress Report 

(b) Pension Fund Committee – 4 December 2012 - Terms of Reference 

(c) Pension Fund Committee – 7 March 2013 - Terms of Reference 

 
 

Contact: Hilary Appleton     Tel: 03000 266239 

 
 

Page 155



 

 
 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

 
Finance -  

None. 

 

Staffing -  

None 

 

Risk -  

None 

 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty -  

None 

 

Accommodation -  

None 

 

Crime and Disorder -  

None 

 

Human Rights -  

None 

 

Consultation -  

None 

 

Procurement -  

None 

 

Disability Issues -  

None 

 

Legal Implications -  

None 

Page 156



 

 
 
Appendix 2: Pension Fund Committee – Terms of Reference 
 
 
1. Objectives 
 

1.1. The Pension Fund Committee’s objective is to ensure effective 
stewardship of the Fund’s affairs.  The Pension Fund is 
governed by Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 
and the Committee will ensure that the Pension Fund is run in 
accordance with the Regulations. 

 
2. Authority 
 

2.1 The Local Government Pension Scheme is a statutory scheme 
governed by Regulations.  Durham County Council, acting as 
Administering Authority for the Pension Fund has determined to 
delegate all functions relating to the maintenance of the Pension 
Fund to the Pension Fund Committee for its governance, and for 
prudent and effective stewardship. 
 

2.2 Members act as committee members and not as Trustees.  
There is no Trust Deed or Agreement as with Private Pension 
funds.  Nonetheless, Members have fiduciary duties to 
participating employers and scheme members and take 
decisions with advice from Corporate Director Resources, 
officers and professional advisors, in accordance with the 
committee rules and voting procedures. 
 

2.3 Under the terms of the County Council’s Constitution, the 
Pension Fund Committee has been delegated the following 
terms of reference: 

 
2.3.1. Powers and duties arising from Section 7 of the 

Superannuation Act 1972 and Regulations made 
thereunder including: 

 

• approval of applications from bodies seeking 
admission to the Local Government Pension 
Scheme; 

 

• appointment of external investment managers and 
advisers. 

 
3. Composition 
 

3.1. The Myners’ first principle states that decisions should only be 
taken by persons or organisations with the skills, information 
and resources necessary to take them effectively.  In order to 
take investment decisions, they must have sufficient expertise 

Page 157



 

and appropriate training to be able to evaluate critically any 
advice they take.  The Fund holds training sessions in advance 
of decisions being taken, in particular when the investment 
strategy is considered, presentations on topical issues, related 
to possible choices of future investment.  Further training in time 
for actuarial valuations is also undertaken. 

 
3.2. The structure of the Pension Fund Committee is as follows: 

 

 
Body/ category of bodies represented 

Number of Committee 
Members 

Durham County Council 11 

Darlington Borough Council 2 

Colleges 1 

Other Statutory Bodies 1 

Admitted Bodies 1 

Member representatives 2 

Total    18 

plus non-voting union observers 2 

 
3.3. The allocation of members to the Committee broadly reflects the 

number of active members, pensioners and deferred pensioners 
each of the larger employers has within the Fund.  It has 
appropriate representation for the large employers within the 
Fund whilst maintaining a manageable governance framework 
for the size of the committee.  The two trade union 
representatives are invited as observers.  

 
3.4. The representatives from Durham County and Darlington 

Borough Councils are appointed by decisions of the respective 
councils. Representatives of the colleges, other statutory bodies, 
and admitted bodies are selected by the Committee from 
nominations made by the employers and are appointed for 4 
years. The two scheme member representatives are selected by 
the Committee from applications received from the membership 
following advertisement in the newsletter: one from active 
scheme members and one from pensioner members. 

 
3.5. All members of the Committee, union observers and 

independent advisers are given full access to papers and are 
allowed to participate in meetings. 

 
3.6. All members appointed to the Committee have voting rights. 

Union observers and advisers do not have voting rights as they 
do not act as formal members of the Committee. 

 
3.7. The Pension Fund Committee meets four times a year and 

occasionally holds special meetings when required.  
 

3.8. The quorum for each regular meeting of the Committee is 5. 
 

Page 158



 

3.9. Minutes of the Committee are reported under the existing 
County Council Committee framework. 

 
3.10. Detailed performance reports will remain confidential items on 

Committee agenda as will any other item deemed as such by 
the Chairman although the Committee will aim to operate as 
transparently as feasible. 

 
4. Terms of Reference 
 

Number Term of Reference Frequency of 
Reporting 

 The Pension Fund Committee’s objective is 
to ensure effective stewardship of the Fund’s 
affairs.  The Pension Fund is governed by 
Local Government Pension Scheme 
Regulations and the Committee will ensure 
that the Pension Fund is run in accordance 
with the Regulations. 
 

 

1 To prepare, monitor and undertake an annual 
review of policy documents including the: 
 

• Funding Strategy Statement 

• Statement of Investment Principles 

• Governance Policy 

• Communications Policy 

• Administration Strategy (discretionary) 
 

 
Annually 

2 To review policy on social, environmental and 
ethical matters and on the exercise of rights, 
including voting rights. 
 

 
Annually  

3 To appoint and terminate, within the 
procurement and contract rules,: 
 

• investment managers 

• custodian 

• actuary 

• independent external advisers 

• Additional Voluntary Contribution 
(AVC) providers, and 

• other contracts related to the 
management of the Pension Fund 
 

 
In line with 
contractual 

requirements and 
as and when 
required 

4 To consider the appropriateness of the 
committee structure to deliver the outcomes 
required by the Terms of Reference, e.g the 
establishment of an investment sub-
committee. 

 
Annually 

Page 159



 

Number Term of Reference Frequency of 
Reporting 

5 To be responsible for governance 
arrangements including regulatory 
compliance and implementation of audit 
recommendations 
 

 
Quarterly 

6 To approve the annual internal audit plan and 
monitor progress on it’s delivery. 
 

 
Annually and 
quarterly 
monitoring 

 

7 To review and monitor the Pension Fund Risk 
Register. 
 

 
Annually 

8 To determine the overall investment strategy 
and strategic asset allocation, ensuring that 
investments are sufficiently diversified, not 
over concentrated in any one type of 
investment and that the pension fund is 
invested in suitable types of investments; 
 

 
Minimum of 2 
yearly reviews 

9 To obtain, and have due regard to, 
professional advice from the fund managers, 
investment advisers, officers and the fund 
actuary as appropriate; 
 

 
Quarterly and as 

and when 
required 

10 To monitor and review the investment 
managers’ performance against established 
benchmarks and to be satisfied of the 
investment managers’ expertise and the 
quality of their internal systems and controls; 
 

 
Quarterly 

11 To take appropriate and timely action in 
cases of unsatisfactory performance of the 
investment managers and independent 
external advisers; 
 

 
Quarterly and as 

and when 
required 

12 To monitor the cash flow forecasts of the 
fund; 
 

Quarterly 

13 To review the resources allocated to 
investment managers on a regular basis; 
 

 
Quarterly 

 

14 Ensure appropriate arrangements are in 
place for the administration of benefits and 
contributions. 
 

 
Annually 

 

Page 160



 

Number Term of Reference Frequency of 
Reporting 

15 To approve, apply and decide upon 
employers joining and leaving the Fund.  To 
consider, and if appropriate, approve 
applications of employers to become 
admitted bodies to the fund. 
 

 
As and when 
required 

16 To agree an accounting policy for the Fund 
consistent with IFRS and relevant 
authoritative guidance in order to prepare and 
publish a Pension Fund Annual Report 
including an abstract of accounts. 
 

 
Annually 

17 To review the Annual Report and Accounts of 
the Pension Fund and report its findings to 
the Audit Committee, where the Accounts are 
approved. 
 

 
Annually 

18 To consider all other relevant matters to the 
investment and administration of the fund. 
 

 
As and when 
required 

 
 

5. Meetings 
 

5.1. The Pension Fund Committee meets four times a year and 
occasionally holds special meetings when required.  The 
Pension Fund Committee also holds an Annual General Meeting 
to which all employers are invited.  This maintains a 
manageable governance framework in terms of the frequency of 
meetings. 

 
6. Programme of Work 
 

6.1. An annual programme of work, cross referenced to the terms of 
reference, will be agreed annually by the Pension Fund 
Committee showing expected documents and reports to be 
presented and any training requirements. 

 
7. Performance and Review 

 
7.1. The Pension Fund Committee will carry out an annual self-

assessment, including a review of these terms of reference, to 
evaluate its own performance and determine any action required 
to improve its effectiveness. 

 

Page 161



Page 162

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Audit Committee 
 
4 April 2013 
 

Action Plan for Corporate Governance 
Improvements 

 

 

 
 

Report of Don McLure, Corporate Director Resources 

Purpose of the Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to update the Audit Committee on progress in 
implementing the agreed governance action plan, which highlights areas of 
improvement arising from the annual review of the effectiveness of corporate 
governance arrangements.  

Background 

2. The Council has approved and adopted a code of corporate governance 
which is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework – 
‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government’.  The Annual Governance 
Statement (AGS) explains how the Council complies with this code and also 
meets the requirements of Regulation 4 (3) of the Accounts and Audit 
(England) Regulations 2011 in relation to the publication of a Statement on 
Internal Control.   

 
3. To inform the 2011/12 AGS, the annual review of the effectiveness of 

corporate governance arrangements was carried out. In support of this review, 
all Corporate Directors were asked to provide an assurance statement to 
ensure that there is understanding council wide of the Council’s governance 
arrangements and that they are embedded within each operational area 
including project and partnership responsibilities.   

4. From this review, a number of areas for improving corporate governance have 
been identified. These were reported in the 2011/12 AGS, and are 
documented in a governance action plan attached to this report in Appendix 2.  

Recommendations and reasons 

5. Audit Committee to confirm that this report provides assurance that action is 
being taken to address areas of improvement in corporate governance 
arrangements, as set out in the attached action plan in Appendix 2. 

 

Contact:  David Marshall Tel: 0191 3834311 
 

Agenda Item 13

Page 163



 

 
Finance - Financial planning and management is a key component of effective 
corporate governance. 

Staffing - Ensuring the adequate capability of staff meets a core principle of the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)/Society of Local 
Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) guidance. 

 
Risk – Delivery of the corporate governance action plan will strengthen the decision 
making and strategic and operational management of the Council’s business. 
 

Equality and Diversity/ Public Sector Equality Duty - Engaging local communities 
including hard to reach groups meets a core principle of the CIPFA/ SOLACE 
guidance. 

 

Accommodation – None directly, although asset management is a key component 
of effective corporate governance 

 

Crime and Disorder – None. 

 

Human Rights - None. 

 

Consultation - Engaging local communities meets a core principle of the CIPFA/ 
SOLACE guidance. 

 

Procurement – None.  

 

Disability issues – Ensuring access to services meets a core principle of the 
CIPFA/ SOLACE guidance. 

 

Legal Implications – Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, and 
ensuring that expenditure is lawful, is a key component of effective corporate 
governance 

 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

Page 164



 

 

Appendix 2:  Annual Governance Statement – Action Plan 
 

The Lead Officer is the officer who will oversee and monitor the implementation of the action.  However, for a number of actions, it is the responsibility of the 
Services, not the Lead Officer, to implement the actions 

 
No. Significant 

governance issue  
Further Action Required Lead Officer Target 

Implementation 
Date  

Status as at December 2012 

1 Continue the positive 
direction of travel by 
implementing the 
planned control 
improvements to 
financial systems. 

The actions to address the financial systems 
weaknesses will be incorporated into the Resources 
Service Improvement Plan.  Progress on these 
improvement plans will be monitored by CMT 
throughout the year. 

Don 
McLure 

Throughout 
2012/ 13 

Positive direction continues. This progress is 
supported by comments from External Audit 
as part of the accounts closure process and 
reported to the Audit Committee. 
 

2 Pay Harmonisation 
and Single Status.   

Work is underway to fully implement the project, and 
resolve outstanding pay harmonisation and single 
status issues, with planned implementation from 
October 2012 subject to the outcome of trade union 
employee ballots.   
 

Kim Jobson December 
2012 

Complete 
 
The three recognised Trade Unions (GMB, 
Unison and Unite) and the Council have now 
all signed the Local Collective Agreement 
which details the revised pay and conditions 
package for the National Joint Council (Green 
Book) employees up to and including spinal 
column point 49 (£41,616). 
 
The agreement’s effective date is 1 October 
2012 
 
Where employees have a reduction in basic 
pay as a result of this agreement, they will 
receive protection of basic contractual pay up 
to 30 September 2014. 
 

3 Implement revised 
Financial 
Management 
Standards 

The revised Financial Management Standards should 
be finalised and implemented as soon as possible on 
the basis that the original implementation date has 
been missed.   
 

Jeff Garfoot December 
2012 

The FMS have now been approved and 
signed-off, and the process of rolling out these 
standards will be complete by the end of 
March 2013. 

P
age 165



 

No. Significant 
governance issue  

Further Action Required Lead Officer Target 
Implementation 

Date  

Status as at December 2012 

4 Business Continuity.   Develop a robust ICT architecture with as few 
potential single points of failure as possible and 
replication of key systems 

Phil 
Jackman 

March 2013 Significant amount of work undertaken to 
develop ICT architecture with minimal potential 
single points of failure.   
Member Officer Working Group has approved 
the capital for a backup site, which will be in 
partnership with Sunderland City Council.  
Work has commenced, and should be live by 
September 2013. 
 

5 Changing 
Government Policy 
on the Ethical 
Framework.   

Now that the Localism Bill has been enacted, we will 
review the ethical framework and implement a new 
compliant, fit for purpose and workable ethical 
structure for the Council, and provide advice and 
guidance to Members, Officers and other key 
stakeholders on the new ethical structure. 

Colette 
Longbottom 

October 2012 Complete.  The council adopted a new code of 
conduct, delegations and assessment 
framework in summer and training was 
presented to members and to parish councils 
in Autumn. 
 

 

P
age 166



 

  

 

Audit Committee 
 
4 April 2013 
 
Financial Management Standards 

 

 

 
 

Don McLure, Corporate Director Resources 

 
Purpose of the Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to update the Audit Committee on the 
development and implementation of Financial Management Standards.  

2. Financial Management Standard (FMS) 01, attached at Appendix 2, 
provides an introduction to what the Standards are, why they are 
important and lists the standards developed. 

3. A link to the Standard’s on the intranet can be found at: 
http://intranet/Pages/PoliciesandProceduresDetails.aspx?ItemId=2681 

 
Background  

4. Good, sound financial management is a key element of the Council’s 
Corporate Governance Framework and aims to secure value for 
money, control spending , ensure due probity of transactions and allow 
decisions to be informed by accurate accounting information.  

5. Financial Procedure Rules within the Council’s Constitution provide the 
overall high level framework for managing the Council’s financial 
affairs. These were developed for the unitary council in 2009 following 
local government reorganisation. 

6. At the time Financial Procedure Rules were developed, the more 
detailed financial management framework was in many areas yet to be 
determined.  This was largely due to the extent of change in systems, 
processes, procedures and staffing.   It is only really in the last year 
with the unitisation of the finance function and the consolidation of key 
financial systems that a more detailed framework could be finalised.      

7. Underpinning the FMS’s are a number of detailed policies, procedures 
and documentation and where possible a link is provided within the 
Standards to individual policies and procedures on the intranet.  More 
links will be established as more information is added to the intranet. 

  
8. Responsibility for monitoring compliance with the Standards and 

ensuring that they and the Financial Procedure Rules are reviewed on 
a continuous basis is the responsibility of the Corporate Director 
Resources as the Council’s Chief Financial Officer. 

Agenda Item 14

Page 167



 

  

9. Corporate Directors and Heads of Service are ultimately responsible for 
ensuring the Standards are applied and observed and for reporting any 
known or suspected breaches of the Standards to the Chief Financial 
Officer.  

Recommendations and reasons 

10. The Committee note the report to gain further assurance on the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s financial management 
control framework.  

 

 

 

Contact:  Avril Wallage  Tel: 03000 269645 

 

Page 168



 

  

 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

 
Finance -  

Financial Management Standard’s are a key aspect of the Council’s Financial 
Control Framework. 

 

Staffing -  

None 

 

Risk -  

None 

 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty -  

None 

 

Accommodation -  

None 

 

Crime and Disorder -  

None 

 

Human Rights -  

None 

 

Consultation -  

None 

 

Procurement -  

None 

 

Disability Issues -  

None 

 

Legal Implications -  

None 

Page 169



Page 170

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 1 

FMS01 INTRODUCTION TO FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STANDARDS 
 

What are Financial Management Standards? 

 
1. Financial Management Standards support the Council’s Financial Procedure 

Rules set out in the Council’s Constitution.  Financial Procedure Rules 
provide the overall high level framework for managing the Council’s financial 
affairs and Financial Management Standards set out in more detail how these 
procedures will be implemented to embed sound financial management 
across the Council. 

Why are they important? 

2. Good, sound financial management is a key element of the Council’s 
Corporate Governance framework which helps to ensure that the Council is 
doing the right things in the right way for the right people in a timely, open and 
accountable manner. 

3. All staff and members have a duty to abide by the highest standards of 
probity in dealing with financial issues. This is facilitated by ensuring that 
everyone is clear about the standards to which they are working and the 
controls that are in place to ensure that these standards are met. 

4. Financial Management Standards set out the key controls and roles and 
responsibilities for each area of financial activity identified in the Financial 
Procedure Rules and will be supplemented by more detailed documented 
businesses processes.    

Key Controls  

5. The key controls and control objectives for Financial Management Standards 
are: 

 the promotion of these standards throughout the Council; 

 a performance management system to review compliance with 
financial standards and regular comparisons of performance 
indicators and benchmark standards that are reported to Cabinet; 

 regular reviews of the Financial Procedure Rules and the Financial 
Management Standards to ensure they remain fit for purpose. 

Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer (S151 Officer) 

6. The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for: 

 ensuring the proper administration of the financial affairs of the Council 

 establishing the Financial Management Standards and monitoring 
compliance with them 

 reviewing the Financial Management Standards regularly to ensure they 
remain fit for purpose

 ensuring that proper professional practices, standards, and ethics are 
adhered to  

Page 171



 

 2 

 advising on the key strategic controls necessary to secure sound financial 
management 

 ensuring that financial staffing resources are adequate to maintain 
adherence to these standards 

 establishing a framework of documented business processes that support 
these financial management standards and ensuring that they are 
reviewed regularly  

 

Responsibilities of Chief Officers 

7. To promote the financial management standards set by the Chief Finance 
Officer within their service area and to monitor adherence to those standards 
and practices, liaising as necessary with the Chief Finance Officer. 

8. To promote sound financial practices in relation to the standards, 
performance and development of staff in their service area. 

9. To support the Chief Finance Officer by promoting proper professional 
practices, standards, and ethics. 

10. Ensuring that all staff are properly managed, developed, and trained and 
have adequate support to carry out their financial duties effectively. 

Page 172



 

 3 

 

Appendix 1 
 

List of Financial Management Standards 
 

 

1 Introduction to Financial Management Standards 

2 Budget Preparation & Medium Term Financial Planning 

3 Budget Monitoring and Reporting 

4 Accounting Policies 

5 Accounting Records and Returns 

6 Preparation and Monitoring of the Capital Programme 

7 Annual Statement of Accounts 

9 Maintenance of Reserves 

10 Risk Management 

11 Audit Requirements 

12 Internal Control 

14 Insurance 

15 Treasury Management 

16 Banking 

17 Income Collection 

18 Debt recovery 

20 Corporate Procurement Cards 

21 Payroll and Personnel requirements 

22 Taxation 

24 Ordering and paying for works, goods & services 

25 Partnerships 

26 Grants and External Funding                                

29 Voluntary Funds and Trust Funds                         

   

Page 173



Page 174

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the meeting held on 21 February 2013
	21 2 13  Action Plan

	4 Exemptions to the P2P Process - Report of Corporate Director, Resources
	5 Changes to the Code of Practice for Local Authority Accounting in the U.K for 2012/13 - Report of Corporate Director, Resources
	6 Consideration of "Going Concern Status" for the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2013 - Report of Corporate Director, Resources
	7 Agreement of Accounting Policies for Application in the 2012/13 Financial Statements - Report of Corporate Director, Resources
	8 Final Accounts Timetable for the year ended 31 March 2013 - Report of Corporate Director, Resources
	Appendix 2 - Final Accounts  Timetable Year End 2012-13

	9 Action Plan - 2011/12 Audit of Accounts - Update - Report of Corporate Director, Resources
	Appendix 2 ( Update on Action PLan from 2011-12 Accounts  - ARG Actions)
	Appendix 2 ( Update on Action PLan from 2011-12 Accounts  - IRG Actions)

	10 Durham County Council - Audit Strategy Memorandum 2012/13 - Report of the External Auditor
	11 Durham County Council Pension Fund - Audit Strategy Memorandum 2012/13 - Report of the External Auditor
	12 Pension Fund Committee - Terms of Reference - Report of Corporate Director, Resources
	13 Action Plan for Corporate Governance Improvements - Report of Corporate Director, Resources
	14 Financial Management Standards - Report of Corporate Director, Resources
	Appendix 2 FMS01 Introduction to FMS


